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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Review of Results

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$947.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”), compared to
a revenue of approximately HK$174.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. It was mainly attributable to the commission
income generated from the provision of Debt Capital Market (the
“DCM”") services of approximately HK$790.6 million. The net
profit before tax for the Year was approximately HK$248.5 million
as compared to the net loss before tax of approximately HK$58.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2018. The significant
increase in revenue and net profit before tax for the Year was
mainly attributable to the outstanding performance in the provision
of DCM services.

The net profit after tax for the Year was approximately HK$208.4
million as compared to the net loss after tax of approximately
HK$67.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018. Basic
earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent for the Year was approximately HK1.42 cents (31 December
2018: basic loss per share of approximately HK0.48 cent).

Economy Review

The global economy had a weak start in 2019 due to US-China
trade tensions. During the Year, US-China trade tensions have
escalated again, as the US has raised the rate of additional tariffs
on billion worth of imports from China and indicated its intention
to further extend the scope of these tariffs. US also banned Huawei
and other Chinese enterprises from purchasing from US companies.
China has also announced countermeasures. Lately, the situation
has a sign of improvement as the US has signed first phase of US-
China trade deal with China and talks on second phase of US-
China trade deal have begun.

The Hong Kong economy contracted in 2019. Total exports of
goods registered an enlarged decline, whereas exports of services
deteriorated sharply as inbound tourism suffered severely from
the local social incidents. Domestic demand also worsened
significantly. The value of merchandise exports recorded a decline
in 2019. Exports to the major advanced economies stayed weak.
In contrast to the performance of the real economy, the local stock
market rebounded as investor sentiment improved. This is mainly
attributable to the receding concerns about further US interest rate
hikes.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Regarding the China’s bond market on which our business focus,
the scale of issuance and the demand for the offshore US dollar
denominated bonds rose. Due to the weak performance of the
global economy, high yield bonds are attractive to investors,
especially the bonds issued by the local government financing
vehicle (the “Chengtou Bonds”) since they carry high yield with
credit from the Chinese local government. Also, the domestic debt
will be at the peak of repayment in the coming few years. It is likely
that more companies will choose the offshore market financing in
future.

Business Review

In 2017, we saw opportunities and potentials in the China’s bond
market especially the Chengtou Bonds market. We have transformed
opportunities into sustainable progress through our continuing effort
and the competence of our professional team. During the Year, the
issue size of the DCM projects we participated and the income
generated from the DCM business have been soaring. Our DCM
business is getting on track.

In 2018, we have obtained type 4 (advising on securities) and
type 9 (asset management) regulated activities licenses under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance to further expand our business to
asset management. In future, we would continue to obtain other
relevant financial license(s) in order to provide more comprehensive
services to our clients.

During the Year, Bloomberg added Chinese Renminbi denominated
government and policy bank securities to the Bloomberg Barclays
Global Aggregate Index. The addition of these securities will be
phased in over a 20-month period starting April 2019. In 2020, J.P.
Morgan Chase & Co. begins to include Chinese government bonds
in its Global Bond Index-Emerging Markets Global Diversified
benchmark index.

We can see that China is winning more recognitions from global
bond investors. We will further expand our business by leveraging
our strength in linking China and other Asian countries with the
global financial market through facilitating the development of the
DCM.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis

FEwE MEER BT kT

Brokerage and Placing Commission

Brokerage & margin financing

The business are carried on through Instant Achieve Limited (“IAL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in Central Wealth Securities Investment
Limited (“CWSI”) and Central Wealth Futures Limited (“CWF”").
CWSI and CWF are incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability
and are carrying on business in type 1 (dealing in securities), type
2 (dealing in futures contracts), type 4 (advising on securities) and
type 5 (advising on futures contracts) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

During the Year, the commission income from securities and futures
dealing was approximately HK$9.7 million and the interest income
from the securities margin financing was approximately HK$41.5
million. The Group will maintain its prudent credit policy and
risk management approach with a view to achieve a sustainable
business environment.

Debt capital market business

The business are carried on through IAL, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in CWSI. CWSI is incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and is carrying on business in type 1 (dealing
in securities) and type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

The Group through CWSI has been providing DCM services to
support debt financing need of China domiciled companies since
July 2017. During the Year, the Group has participated in 45 debt
issues with roles of joint global coordinator, joint book-runner,
joint lead manager or placing agent with an aggregate issue size of
approximately US$9.8 billion. The debts are issued through either
private or public offerings with coupon rates ranging from 3% to
11.25% per annum. According to the information published on
Bloomberg as of 25 March 2020, CWSI ranked as the 39th manager
in the issuance of offshore China bonds in 2019 based on the
issuance volume credited to each involved party. During the Year,
the provision of DCM services has recorded a commission income
of approximately HK$790.6 million. The Group will continue to
strengthen our services in the coming year and broaden our service
range with an aim to provide one stop service to our customers.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Asset management

The business are carried on through IAL, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in Central Wealth Asset Management
Limited (“CWAM”). CWAM s incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and is carrying on business in type 4 (advising on
securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

During the Year, the Group provides investment management
services on diversified and comprehensive investment products
including private funds and discretionary accounts to individual,
corporate and institutional clients. Currently, our investment fund,
namely the Central Wealth Investment Fund SPC (“CWIF”), mainly
focus on the China’s bond market as it is the third largest bond
market in the world and offers attractive yield opportunities. It
is expected that the market will continue to grow and transform
with the global economy. The Group believes it will become more
capital market oriented and open to foreign investors. Besides,
CWAM also served as an investment advisor for clients providing
advice on equity funds, fixed income funds and other investment
products.

About Central Wealth Investment Fund SPC

CWIF is a segregated portfolio company incorporated in Cayman
Islands with limited liabilities in June 2018. CWIF has seven
segregated portfolios as at 31 December 2019. The investment
objectives of CWIF are to achieve a high rate of return through
capital appreciation and seek fixed income returns with a high
degree of security.

Investment strategies

The investment manager seeks to achieve the investment objectives
by investing in fixed income financial tools, fixed income
instruments traded in the bond market, bond funds, money market
funds, bond initial offerings, structured products and derivatives.
The portfolios mainly invest in offshore US dollar denominated
bonds issued by Chinese institutions. The portfolios start to invest in
onshore CNY corporate bonds as well. The investment manager will
continue to diversify the investment portfolios when opportunities
arise.

Fund growth

As at 31 December 2019, the assets under management have
reached approximately US$310.2 million (31 December 2018:
US$197.1 million). The management fee and performance fee
income is approximately HK$16.2 million during the Year.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
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Property Investments

The Group principally focuses on the luxury property investments
in Hong Kong market and currently holds one luxury property
located at No. 2 Lincoln Road, Kowloon Tong in Hong Kong (“No.
2 Lincoln Road Property”). During the Year, the rental income from
No. 2 Lincoln Road Property was approximately HK$1.4 million
and the Group recorded a loss on revaluation of No. 2 Lincoln
Road Property of HK$45 million. The Group will continue to
monitor its property portfolio with an aim to generate the stable
rental income and the capital appreciation.

The Group has entered into a conditional formal agreement on
20 March 2020 to dispose of the No. 2 Lincoln Road Property. For
details, please refer to the announcements published by the Group
dated 4 February 2020, 12 February 2020, 28 February 2020 and
23 March 2020.

Financial Investments and Services

Financial investments and trading

During the Year, the Hang Seng Index starts at 25,824.44 points
and closed at 28,189.75 points. Despite the local stock market
rebounded, the Group recorded unrealized fair value losses
on equity investments at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$4.8 million.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has debts investments at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$168.5 million.
During the Year, the interest income from debt investments
amounted to approximately HK$7.1 million. The Group recorded
unrealized fair value gains on debt investments at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately HK$19.8 million.

Money lending business

During the Year, the interest income from the money lending
business was approximately HK$37.0 million. The net balance of
loan book recorded an increase of approximately HK$147 million
to approximately HK$446.5 million as compared to approximately
HK$299.5 million as at 31 December 2018. The money lending
business charged annual interest rates at a range from 5% to 12%
(31 December 2018: range from 5% to 12%). The Group will
continue to maintain its prudent credit policy and risk management
approach with a view to achieve a sound financial management
and sustainable business environment.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Prospects

The United States and China signed a preliminary agreement of
a “phase one” trade deal in January 2020. Under the agreement,
China will boost its purchases of United States manufactured goods,
agricultural products, energy and services over the next two years.
Despite the United States and China promise at least a cease-fire
between the world’s two biggest economies, the trade wars are far
from over.

Global debts hit a record high in 2019, led by a surge in borrowings
in the U.S. and China. The global economy faces escalating risks
from rising levels of corporate debt, with companies around the
world needing to repay or refinance over the next few years.

The outbreak of new coronavirus recently has seriously damaged
the global economy. The number of confirmed cases of the new
coronavirus has overtaken the 2003 SARS outbreak in global, as the
virus was confirmed to have spread across the world. The sudden
restrictions on travel to and from the city and country could hit the
global economy especially in the tourism and retail sales sectors.
The economic impact will be significant if the virus continues to
spread.

Besides, we shall not overlook the downside risks due to the
expectation of US interest hike and the threat of geopolitical tension
which continue to cloud the global economic recovery. Also the
Group will evaluate the economic impact of a weaker yuan as
China may use it as the countermeasure to US tariffs.

In light of these macroeconomic challenges, the Group will
continue to stay alert, but positive, to pursue its prudent investment
strategy in developing its existing and new businesses.

Financial Review

The Group for the Year recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$947.7 million as compared to the revenue of approximately
HK$174.5 million last year. The Group’s revenue principally
comprised the interest income from money lending business of
approximately HK$37.0 million, commission income from provision
of DCM services of approximately HK$790.6 million, commission
income from securities and futures dealing of approximately
HK$9.7 million, interest income from securities margin financing
of approximately HK$41.5 million and property rental income of
approximately HK$1.4 million.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis

FEwE MEER BT kT

The Group recorded other comprehensive loss of approximately
HK$907.8 million for the Year (other comprehensive loss for
the year ended 31 December 2018: approximately HK$1,052.1
million). It was mainly attributable to a fair value loss of
approximately HK$901.1 million on equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (for the year ended
31 December 2018: approximately HK$943.8 million). As at
31 December 2019, the Group's net asset value was approximately
HK$1,215.3 million (31 December 2018: HK$1,848.8 million).

Major Customers

During the Year, the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for approximately 37.07% and 68.04%
respectively of the Group's total revenue. As far as the Directors are
aware, none of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders
who owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital had any
interest in the five largest customers of the Group.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the Year, the Group generally financed its operation
with internally generated cash flow, overdrafts, bank and other
borrowings and other fund raising activities. The Group’s cash
and bank balances as at 31 December 2019 were approximately
HK$99.2 million (31 December 2018: HK$100.9 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had bank overdrafts of
approximately HK$117.1 million (31 December 2018: HK$45.1
million), interest-bearing bank borrowings of approximately
HK$261.3 million (31 December 2018: HK$298.7 million), interest-
bearing other borrowings of approximately HK$429.9 million
(31 December 2018: HK$472.2 million) and non-current notes
payable of approximately HK$86.6 million (31 December 2018:
HK$86.6 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s current ratio was
approximately 1.41 times (31 December 2018: 1.14 times)
based on current assets of approximately HK$1,367.9 million
(31 December 2018: HK$914.4 million) and current liabilities of
approximately HK$966.9 million (31 December 2018: HK$799.1
million). As at 31 December 2019, the Group has no capital
commitment (31 December 2018: Nil). The Group also had no
other contingent liabilities (31 December 2018: Nil).
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s gearing ratio was
approximately 73.6% (31 December 2018: 48.82%). Gearing ratio
equals total borrowings divided by net asset value as at the end
of the reporting period. The total borrowings of approximately
HK$894.9 million includes bank and other borrowings, bank
overdraft and notes payable.

The Group’s bank balance, borrowings and interest payment are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong and US dollars. Most of the
Group's revenue are made in US dollars. Therefore, the exchange
risks that the Group is exposed to are insignificant.

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy
liquidity position throughout the Year. The Group strives to reduce
exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments
and evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage
liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group's assets,
liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding requirements
from time to time.

Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2019, the Group maintained a portfolio of
investments including equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, equity and fund investments at fair value
through profit or loss and debt investments at fair value through
profit or loss with total carrying amount of approximately HK$790.7
million.

The Directors consider that equity investments, debt investments
and fund investments with a market value that account for more
than 5% of the Group’s net assets at the reporting date as significant
investments. The details of the equity investments, debt investments
and fund investments which accounted for more than 5% of the
Group's net assets as at 31 December 2019 is set out below:
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis
FEwE MEER BT kT

Significant Investments EXRE
Percentage
of the fair
Percentage of value of the
shareholding  investment in Carrying Fair value
in the listed listed securities Fair value of value of the gains/(losses) of
securities  to total assets the investment  investment in  the investment Realised
held by the  of the Group in listed listed securities in listed  gain/(loss) for
Group as at asat securities as at asat securities as at the year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Stock Code ~ Name of the investees 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
R=Z-1%§
+=A
R-Z-1& =+-A RZZ-1% Bz
+=ZF A&EzLH RIB-AE RIZ-hH +=A —E-hE
St BEREZ +=A +=A =t+-R2 +=A
rEEREL ATE =t+-H =t+-H tmE% =+—-HL
mEREZ HEELR Ih#S ThES REDTE FEZREB
RORE REHZEE REBDL ZEAL BREZATE REZREE WE/ (BB WE/(FR)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT TR

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

BREMZANERATENIRZRFRE

1141 CMBC Capital Holdings Limited 6.97% 19.60% 475,747 1,192,721 (716,974) (97,899)
1141 RFEXRIEREB LT
Others N/A 1.27% 30,903 123,462 (92,559) (153,430)
Hit TER
Total 506,650 1,316,183 (809,533) (251,329)
FEE

Equity and fund investments at fair value through profit or loss

BRRREATEFEZBARERRE

141 CMBC Capital Holdings Limited 0.48% 1.34% 32,410 52,127 (19,717) -
1141 RBBAERERAF
Others N/A 3.42% 83,095 68,183 14,912 52
it @R
Total 115,505 120,310 (4,805) 52
@it

Debt investments at fair value through profit or loss*

ERBRERATEIGZERRE"

Total 168,530 148,777 19,753 m
@5t
= The debt investments are invested though Fortune China Bond SPIl,  * RIR & H B 477 i8 Fortune China Bond SPII
none of the debt investments account for more than 5% of the TR EBREMNG R EEZ EEFE% KL

Group’s net assets at the reporting date.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Performance and prospects of the investees

1.

CMBC Capital Holdings Limited (“CMBC")

CMBC together with its subsidiaries (the “CMBC Group”) are
principally engaged in (i) securities business, (ii) investment
and financing and (iii) asset management and advisory
business. As mentioned in its interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2019, the CMBC Group recorded a
total revenue and other income of approximately HK$450.1
million for the six months ended 30 June 2019. The CMBC
Group has reported a net profit of approximately HK$150.3
million attributable to owners of CMBC. The basic and diluted
earnings per share were both HKO0.32 cent. As at 30 June
2019, the audited consolidated net asset value of the CMBC
Group was approximately HK$2,129.5 million. CMBC Group
has not declared an interim dividend for the six months ended
30 June 2019.

In May 2017, China Minsheng Banking Corp. Ltd. became the
ultimate controlling shareholder of CMBC and since then the
CMBC Group started its rapid development. Subsequently in
August 2017 and October 2017, the CMBC Group acquired
the entire issued share capital of CMBC Capital Finance
Limited and CMBC International Capital Limited, respectively
and as a result, the CMBC Group is licensed to engage in type
1 (dealing in securities), type 2 (dealing in futures contracts),
type 4 (advising on securities), type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities,
as well as the licensed money lending business and has all
material licenses required for services expected to be required
by most of its potential clients at current stage.

Leveraging on the strong reputation, expertise and capability
of the China Minsheng Bank, and the licenses it possesses,
the CMBC Group has achieved rapid growth in its financial
performance. The Company has strong confidence in the
experienced and competent management team of CMBC that
they can lead CMBC to perform much better in the future
and improve the earnings. The management of the Group
considers the investment in CMBC is for long term purpose.
However, the Group would not rule out the possibility of
realizing the investments from time to time where to do so
is to be in the best interests of the Group or where the terms
on which such realization to be particularly favorable to the
Group.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held 3,553,545,829
shares of CMBC. CMBC closed at HK$0.143 as at 31 December
2019 as compared to HK$0.325 as at 31 December 2018.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis

TEmENERE N wm MO
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Fortune China Bond SP Il

Fortune China Bond SP Il now mainly invests in the US dollar
denominated bonds including the Chengtou Bonds issued by
Chinese institutions. The coupon rate of the bonds range from
4.58% to 8.75% per annum with maturity period range from
one year to perpetual.

The investment objectives of Fortune China Bond SP Il are to
achieve a high rate of return through capital appreciation and
seek fixed income returns with a high degree of security. The
investment manager seek to achieve the investment objectives
by investing in fixed income financial tools, fixed income
instruments traded in the bond market, bond funds, money
market funds, bond initial offerings, structured products and
derivatives.

In recent years, the Chinese government has done a series
of fruitful work in simplifying the overseas debt issuance
approval process and procedures. It has further implemented
measures in the area of bond connection, capital use, and
financing leverage. The Chinese government maintains a
relatively flexible regulatory policy for China’s bond market
and encourages Chinese companies to raise funds overseas.
This helps to accelerate the internationalization of Reminbi
and Chinese enterprises.

Since China’s bond yield is lower than that of last year, the
return for investors is not attractive. Although the Chengtou
Bonds is limited by its lower credit rating, it has local
government’s credit and pays a higher yield. It is expected
that the demand and issuance of the Chengtou Bonds will rise
in the future.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held 4,945.2799
participating shares of Fortune China Bond SP Il representing
29.26% interest of Fortune China Bond SP II.

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FZ & BZRERA A
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Details of Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had pledged certain
listed equity investments of approximately HK$505.6 million
(31 December 2018: HK$1,276.4 million) to secure the other
borrowings. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had pledged its
investment properties with a carrying amount of HK$390.0 million
to secure the bank borrowings (31 December 2018: HK$435.0
million).

Change of Company Name and Stock Short Name

To better reflect the current status of the Group’s business and its
direction of future development, the Company’s English name has
been changed to “Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited” and
the Company’s secondary name in Chinese has been changed to
“HhiEE BB R AR, Shares have been traded on the Stock
Exchange under the new stock short name “CENTRALWEALTHGP”
in English and “FZ &£ EER” in Chinese, with effect from
11 February 2019. The stock code of the Company remains
unchanged as “139”. For details, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 29 November 2018, 27 December 2018
and 1 February 2019, and the circular of the Company dated
30 November 2018.

Employment, Training and Development

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 91 employees.
The Group is committed to staff training and development and
structured training programs for all employees. Remuneration
packages are maintained at a competitive level and reviewed on
a yearly basis. Bonuses and share options are awarded to certain
employees according to individual performance and industry
practice.
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Report of the Directors

i%é

The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries during the year consisted of
securities and futures dealing business, trading of debts and equity
investments, money lending business and property investments.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the year ended 31 December
2019, an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial
key performance indicators and discussion on the Company’s
environmental policies and performances and the relationships with
its key stakeholders, are included in the “Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance
Report” and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report. The review forms part of this directors’ report.

Results and Dividends

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
the financial position of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 208.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements, is set out below. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.
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Results

Revenue WA

Profit/(loss) before tax BEaEH/ (BB)

Tax BE

(Loss)/profit for the year/period ITREREE /B
attributable to (B#B) /&#
Owners of the parent SYNGE 2PN
Non-controlling interests FERER

Assets and liabilities

Total assets EERE

Total liabilities BERE

Net assets BEFE

Report of the Directors

ERgWmE

E
For the period
from
1 April to
Year ended 31 December 31 December Year ended 31 March
A—-HZ
+=A
=t+-H
BEt-A=1-HILEE BE HE=A=1-HILEE
2019 2018 2017 2017 2016
=k ZE-N\E  ZE-tf CZE-tF CZE-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TER TER
947,744 174,454 228,055 (52,128) (472,438)
248,519 (58,875) 373,375 (156,397) (1,214,744)
(40,132) (8,186) (4,520) - 1
208,387 (67,061) 368,855 (156,397) (1,252,637)
- - - - 37,892
208,387 (67,061) 368,855 (156,397) (1,214,745)
EEHAE
As at 31 December As at 31 March
R+=B=+-H R=A=+-8
2019 2018 2017 2017 2016
= LSk —E-N\Ff C"Z-t§ CZZ-tFf CZB-xf%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR
2,427,162 2,890,899 4,228,648 1,424,451 1,025,544
1,211,815 1,042,077 1,504,744 108,872 91,088
1,215,347 1,848,822 2,723,904 1,315,579 934,456
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Report of the Directors

ERgWmE

Share Capital
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
note 35 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed

Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2019, the Company had no reserves available
for cash distribution and distribution in specie. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account and capital reserve, with an
aggregate balance of approximately HK$4,672,260,000 may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The aggregate revenue during the year attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers was 68.04% of the Group’s total revenue, of
which 37.07% was made to the largest customer.

There was no single supplier that contributed to 10% or more of the
Group's total purchase during the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the above customer or supplier.
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Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are as follows:

Executive directors:
Mr. Chen Xiaodong
Mr. Xu Ke

Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Lam Hay Yin

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Chen Youchun (resigned on 1 October 2019)
Mr. Wu Ming

Mr. Liu Hongwei (appointed on 1 October 2019)

Pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Xu Ke,
Ms. Lam Hay Yin and Mr. Liu Hongwei shall retire at the 2020
annual general meeting (the “2020 AGM”) and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the said meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company and the Company still considers them to be independent
as at the date of this report pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

Directors’ Biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 59 to 61 of the annual report.

Directors” Service Contracts

Each of Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Mr. Xu Ke, Mr. Yu Qingrui and Ms. Lam
Hay Yin has a service contract with the Company without any fixed
term.

Each of Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong, Mr. Wu Ming and Mr. Liu Hongwei
has been appointed for a fixed term of one year.

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment, other than statutory compensation.

%mndmemmmm
EEEWE

=
RAFERESAREAS AARZEEMT

BITEE:
BREER L4
R et
REHELE
iR 22

BILIHITESE
R E
WE%%EWZJ
R#EE
BREEE (R=-F

—NFE+H—HHFHE)
—NF+H—HEZE)

RIBARE 2 ARG R SE £ Mg T ix =
&%fﬁ%EM\fyf ih%ﬂiﬁAU_
TERRBEAE]) LRE - REDFTE

%I@ﬁﬁt LRg F2REE-

AAFCEEARARREBIFATEZTZFE
BYMRERE REBRATES EWRA ([ £
AN )E3 13 RARE BBHARARMERERS
BB AL

EEERE

RRREZZBEHNAFRSE Fo61H-

ESZRBEH
ADE S I RBRBER S R E  REH%
e R AT S 2 TR A D

BEXTEE - RBEERBEZELESTBER -
FZEEERERE-

REARR AR MEEZREARER
RERBFEASG LEREE-

(AR IAC])

B EN RERERRBFAS LIRESEZ
EXWEBEARARBITLARA AR —FAK
M BESNEEE CERERBERIN 2REEH -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F#& 19



Report of the Directors

ERgWmE

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Remuneration

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders” approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to directors” duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,

Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”,
no director nor a connected entity of a director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

Connected Transactions

Continuing Connected Transactions: Brokerage Services and
Margin Financing Agreement

On 17 August 2018, CWSI, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the brokerage services and margin
financing agreement (the “Agreement”) with Mr. Xu Ke, an
executive director and the chief executive officer of the Company,
in relation to the provision of the brokerage services and the margin
financing by CWSI to Mr. Xu on a non-exclusive basis commencing
from 17 August 2018 to 31 December 2020. Pursuant to the
Agreement, Mr. Xu would pay brokerage fees and interests on the
margin financing to CWSI in respect of the provision of brokerage
services and the margin financing by CWSI. Details were set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 17 August 2018.
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The annual caps for the brokerage fees, the maximum outstanding
amount of the margin financing; and the maximum interest amount
of the margin financing for each of the period commencing from
the date of the Agreement to 31 December 2018 and the two years
ending 31 December 2020 are as follows:
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B ASEErE - N\FE+_A=+—
AtEEBE-_Z_EF+_A=+—HILME
FEXEPH LB REERECHESTS
THEARBEHERSNEZFE LRAOT

From
17 August For the year For the year
2018 to ending ending
31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2019 2020
BE-ZE-N\E
NA+tRE HBE-T-NF HE-T-EF
“E-N\§¥ +=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+-H
+=ZA=+-H LEE LEE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT AT BT
Brokerage Fees KrE 500,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Maximum outstanding amount of AEERECRERS TR
the Margin Financing 40,000,000 40,000,000 40,000,000
Maximum interest amount of RESHETSFE
the Margin Financing 2,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000

Total brokerage fees, maximum outstanding amount of margin
financing and maximum interest amount of the margin financing for
the year ended 31 December 2019 were Nil, HK$12,152,000 and
HK$1,749,000 respectively.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions for the year ended
31 December 2019 and confirmed that the continuing connected
transaction related to the Agreement has been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

HE_ZT-NFT+_A=+—BHLFE KL &

BE -KREERELHREZ RS EBEARESR
BB Zz&EEEN A AZ 12,152,000 7T &
1,749,000/ Jt °

BE_T-—NF+A=+—HILEFE K27
BIUFATEFCENBERER S LHERE
2B ERZBERERS

(i) DEAKREEER —REFBREFFIL:
(i) THR—REEERKEEERETL: R

(i) DREBEREZXSFXHIMEBWBEII L M
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Rz BRI
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The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor of the Company has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Listing Rule 14A.56.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed
under the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” in this
directors’ report and note 38 to the financial statements, no equity-
linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered
into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year.

Share Option Schemes

The Company currently operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
(including but not limited to the directors and employees of the
Group) who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Details of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in note
38 to the financial statements.

After the expiry of the old share option scheme on 27 August 2013,
the Company adopted a new share option scheme on 27 September
2013 in order to provide incentives and rewards to the eligible
participants.

At the 2019 annual general meeting of the Company, the scheme
mandate limit was refreshed and approved by the then shareholders
such that the total number of shares which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the share
option scheme and any other share option scheme(s) as may
from time to time be adopted by the Company must not exceed
1,471,655,046 shares. As at the date of this report, the total number
of shares available for issue under the share option scheme of the
Company was 125,046 shares, representing approximately 0.0008%
of the issued share capital of the Company. The Company may
refresh the scheme mandate limit with its shareholders’ approval
provided that each such refreshment may not exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of the shareholders” approval.
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A summary of the movements of the share option schemes of the

Company during the year is set out as follows:
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RAFERER - AARZBRETEIZEHBmT :

Number of Number of
share options Number of Number of share options Exercise
outstanding share options share options Number of share outstanding Date of Exercise price of
at 1 January granted during lapsed during  options exercised at 31 December grant of period of share options
Name or category of participant 2019 the Year® ¥ the Year during the Year 2019 share options share options” (HKS$ per share)
RZB-1%
R=Z-N% +ZB=t-H
-B-RAEE  RAEERHZ  RAEEAME  RAEEGER WAL BRETRER
SRENATER TRzBRERE BREZRC O BREHE BREBE BRERE ETHRRERS BREGEABEY (BRER)
Director
iz
Chen Xiaodong 89,600,000 o (89,600,000 - - 20/02/2017 20/02/2017 - 19/02/2019 0.181
RER “Btf —Z-+§-f-1RZ
ZA=tA ZE-NEZATAR
127,120,000 S = = 127,120,000 18/04/2018 18/04/2018 - 10/04/2020 0.1174
B)\E “2-N\FMATNAE
MAtTAR “Z-REMATA
- 126,840,000 - - 126,840,000 03/05/2019 03/05/2019 - 02/05/2021 0.0586
o “E-NFEAZRE
TA=HR —2--%RA-A
216,720,000 126,840,000 (89,600,000) = 253,960,000
Xu Ke 127,120,000 S = = 127,120,000 18/04/2018 18/04/2018 - 10/04/2020 0.1174
o) “2-)\E “Z-\fMATN\RZE
mAtNR “R-REPNATA
Yu Qingrui 89,600,000 = (89,600,000) = = 20/02/2017 20/02/2017 - 19/02/2019 0.181
REH Bt e S y E Y
~R=tR “E-NFZRTNR
127,120,000 = = = 127,120,000 18/04/2018 18/04/2018 - 10/04/2020 0.1174
—B-)N\E “2-\FBATNRE
mA+TAR “R-REMATA
= 126,840,000 = = 126,840,000 03/05/2019 03/05/2019 - 02/05/2021 0.0586
“ENF “R-N¥RAZRZE
nA=A “®R--#RA-A
216,720,000 126,840,000 (89,600,000) - 253,960,000
Lam Hay Yin 127,120,000 = = = 127,120,000 18/04/2018 18/04/2018 - 10/04/2020 0.1174
HE —2-N\F —2-\fBATNRE
mA+AR “R-REMATA
= 146,800,000 = = 146,800,000 04/06/2019 04/06/2019 - 03/06/2021 0.046
—E-NE “E-NFRABRE
~ABA “B--FRA=H
127,120,000 146,800,000 - - 273,920,000
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Number of Number of
share options Number of Number of share options Exercise
outstanding share options share options Number of share outstanding Date of Exercise price of
at 1 January granted during lapsed during ~ options exercised at 31 December grant of period of share options
Name or category of participant 2019 the Year®®® the Year during the Year 2019 share options share options” (HK$ per share)
RZE-0E
RZB-NE +=B=t-H
LS REFERE 2 REFEXUH REFETREN AT BRETRE
$REREITH FEZERERE  MREBECCY  BEARE BRARE HEAEE  ATMBAEN BERGEERY  (SHER)
Director
2
Wu Ming - 87,000,000 - - 87,000,000 03/05/2019 03/05/2019 - 02/05/2021 0.0586
Rib “E0E “Z-N\FRAZAE
nAZA —Z2--%1A-A
Other employee
AftEE
In aggregate 3,000,000 = (3,000,000 S S 200022017 20/02/2017 - 19/02/2019 0.181
At “F-tF “3—+F-A-tRHZE
ZA=tR ZE-NEZATAR
437,864,000 - (109,466,000) - 328,398,000 18/04/2018 18/04/2018 - 10/04/2020 0.1174
B-N\F ZZ-\fmAT/N\RE
mA+NR “Z-ZEMATA
- 3,000,000 - (3,000,000 - 03/05/2019 03/05/2019 - 02/05/2021 0.0586
E-NE “E-N\FHRAZRZ
BA=H —2--%nA-A
= 146,800,000 = = 146,800,000 04/06/2019 04/06/2019 - 03/06/2021 0.046
ZE-NE “Z-nFRABRE
~AmB “B-—%7xA=A
= 441,462,000 = = 441,462,000 20/0612019 20/06/2019 - 19/06/2021 0.062
“2-hF “E-NFRAZTRE
~AZtH —Z--%/AThA
440,864,000 591,262,000 (112,466,000) (3,000,000) 916,660,000
Management personnel of
service providers
RBYEGZERREAS
In aggregate 713,800,000 - (713,800,000) - - 20/02/2017 20/02/2017 - 19/02/2019 0.181
ait “E-tF oy Y
—A=tH “E-hE-AthA
127,120,000 = = = 127,120,000 18/04/2018 18/04/2018 - 10/04/2020 0.1174
—2-0\F —2-\fBATNRE
mA+N\A “R-REMATA
= 634,200,000 = = 634,200,000 03/05/2019 03/05/2019 - 02/05/2021 0.0586
“B0E
hA=R
- 1,030,078,000 - - 1,030,078,000 20/06/2019 20/06/2019 - 19/06/2021 0.062
“Z-nE “E-NERAZTRE
AAZ1H ZEZ-ERATAR
840,920,000 1,664,278,000 (713,800,000) - 1,791,398,000
Total &5t 1,969,464,000 2,743,020,000 (1,005,466,000) (3,000,000) 3,704,018,000
Notes: Bg=E -

(1) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until (1) BEREZSBH AL B EEE/TE MK
the commencement of the exercise period. =Nl

(2)  The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the (2) ZEERESHBH _-_Z—-HAERA=HBIAE
date of grant of share options on 3 May 2019 was HK$0.057. NAEIRHUWTER0.0578TT

24 Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited 3 & @12 I 5 R 2 7



(3)  The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the
date of grant of share options on 4 June 2019 was HK$0.044.

(4)  The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the
date of grant of share options on 20 June 2019 was HK$0.062.

(5)  No share options have been cancelled during the year ended
31 December 2019.

Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of the directors of the
Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

(1) Long position in ordinary shares of the Company
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B) EERBRERLAH_Z-HAFXANANA
DA UL (B /0.04478 7T

4 EZEBRERLBABH-_"F-NAFAZ=+HAH
AR AR 7 I T (B 40.06258 7T

12352 %
ESRARERGREBRG &

m
S

\
A
N
/N
A

“E-NF+ZA=T R ARAESFERAE
A RBRRD (EXEREESFRARKRM
(EHFEHEERMDEXVE R HEBEAELZR
ARBRBEF KRB RO EI2GATUER
ZERM D IRELMETAZEFTETE
HFRBMREST A ([RETR])BAEARR T
S Bk iy Ul

1 RERFEBRZHER

Percentage* of

Number of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued share
Name of director Capacity interested capital
BEESZEN MGEQRACSHT
EEnAR 546 EEREE RAE 7
Chen Xiaodong Beneficial owner 4,180,246 0.03%
PR B 3R ERBEBEA
Xu Ke Beneficial owner 1,125,701,571 7.65%
GYal BESBEAA
Interests held by a controlled 2,000,000,000 13.59%
Corporation (Note)
BBXEBNARFA 2 Eam ()
3,125,701,571 21.24%
Yu Qingrui Beneficial owner 5,610 0.00%
REH ERBEBA
Wu Ming Beneficial owner 3,990,000 0.03%
R ERBERA

Note: These shares were held by Dragon Regal Holdings Limited
(“Dragon Regal”) which controlled by Xu Ke as to 100%.

e The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares
interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued
shares as at 31 December 2019.

M ZEROmEREEERAR ([8AE])
FA - MR R 2EES -

* B ERAEEN T BB BRIARRD

AR-_ZE—NFE+_A=+—HEETRK
PR -
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(2) Long position in underlying shares of the Company -
physically settled unlisted equity derivatives

2 RELXFEBEROGz2HRE —BUEEHEL
TRATETR

Percentage* of
Number of the underlying

underlying shares shares over

in respect of the the Company’s

share options issued share

Name of director Capacity granted capital

Friz BB IR A HER G

% R AE B ERB BT

BEENR 8 igvig 24! BRABD*

Chen Xiaodong Beneficial owner 253,960,000 1.73%
BREE R EmEAA

Xu Ke Beneficial owner 127,120,000 0.86%
ol BEaSBEAA

Yu Qingrui Beneficial owner 253,960,000 1.73%
REH BEmEAA

Lam Hay Yin Beneficial owner 273,920,000 1.86%
R gt BEaBEAA

Wu Ming Beneficial owner 87,000,000 0.59%
R4 BExmEAA

Details of the share options granted by the Company are set
out under the section “Share Option Schemes” in this report.

* The percentage represents the number of underlying shares
interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued
shares as at 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he/she was deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required to be entered into the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors” Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company” and “Share Option
Schemes” above and in the share option scheme disclosures in
note 38 to the financial statements, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any of the directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2019 the following parties had interests of
5% or more in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or as the Company is aware:
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B bt [ESRARA D RARRE R 2 ]
K (BB R &) BT A MM KM 38 EY
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RIE—NAF+-_A=+—B BEXRQABILE
ENHEGHIE3BIEEEFE ZECTATE
HIBEA RGN THEHFRARNR 258
AN R A5% A E 2 REES

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company READBEBRZERE
Percentage* of
Number of the Company’s
Name of substantial ordinary shares issued share
shareholder Capacity Note interested capital
BEEmz EEAQAERT
TERRESE 514 B E EEREE RAE D~
Dragon Regal Beneficial owner (1) 2,000,000,000 13.59%
2 ERBEBEA
Chen Xiangru Beneficial owner 2,065,092,548 14.03%
PR A LA EnlEAA
Future World Financial Holdings Interest held by a controlled (2) 1,070,621,316 7.27%
Limited corporation
AR RS RIZERBRRF] FRIERARFE 2R
Golden Horse Hong Kong Beneficial owner 1,070,621,316 7.27%

Investment Limited BEREAA
THEBREBRAR
Notes:
(1) These shares were held by Dragon Regal which was controlled by

Xu Ke. Accordingly, Xu Ke was deemed to be interested in these
2,000,000,000 shares held by Dragon Regal under Part XV of the
SFO. The interest of Dragon Regal is also disclosed as the interest of
Xu Ke in the above section headed “Directors’ interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company”.

(2)  These shares were held by Golden Horse Hong Kong Investment
Limited which was controlled by Future World Financial Holdings
Limited.

& The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares interested
divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at
31 December 2019.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company” above, had an interest or a short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business

During the year and up to the date of this report, no director is
considered to have interests in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As far as the directors are aware, during the year and up to the date
of this report, the Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its
business and operations.

Events after the reporting period
Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting
period are set out in note 48 to the financial statements.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance practices of the Company are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in
this annual report.
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Auditors

Ernst & Young has resigned as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 15 November 2019 as Ernst & Young and the Company
could not reach a consensus on the audit service fee regarding the
annual audit for the financial year ended 31 December 2019. The
Board, with the recommendation from the Audit Committee, has
resolved to appoint Moore Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore”) as the
new auditor of the Company with effect from 15 November 2019 to
fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Ernst & Young.

Moore will hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting. Moore will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment
of Moore as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other change of the
Company’s auditors in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Xiaodong
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 March 2020
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable
efforts to formulating and implementing corporate governance
practices appropriate to the Company’s needs.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has complied
with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. Key
corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarized below.

The Board

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board

Direction and control of Company business are vested in the
Board. The Board establishes policies, strategies and plans for the
development of Company business, and provides leadership in the
creation of value for shareholders. All directors have carried out
their duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, risk management and internal control
systems, material transactions (particularly those involving conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management of the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable laws and regulations are followed.
Any director may request independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses, upon
reasonable request made to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are led by the Executive Committee and senior
management of the Company. The Board has delegated a schedule
of responsibilities to these officers for implementing Board
decisions. The Board reviews the delegated functions and work
tasks regularly. The aforesaid officers have to obtain Board approval
prior to entering any significant transactions.
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Board Composition
The composition of the Board and the Board Committees as at the
date of this annual report is as follows:

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Xu Ke (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Lam Hay Yin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Wu Ming

Mr. Liu Hongwei

Executive Committee

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Ke

Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Lam Hay Yin

Audit Committee

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Ming

Mr. Liu Hongwei

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman)
Ms. Lam Hay Yin

Mr. Liu Hongwei

Nomination Committee

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman)
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Liu Hongwei

The biographical details of the directors and the relationships
among the members of the Board are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
in this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board at all times
met the requirement of the Listing Rules of having a minimum of
three independent non-executive directors (representing at least
one-third of the Board) with one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting and related financial
management expertise.
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The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of
skills and experience appropriate for the business requirement
and objectives of the Group and for the exercise of independent
judgement.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. To achieve clear division
of responsibilities between the management of the Board and
day-to-day management of the business and hence to ensure
balance of power and authority, there is separation of duties for the
Chairman and Chief Executive of the Company.

Currently, the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
are held by Mr. Chen Xiaodong and Mr. Xu Ke respectively. The
Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board, whereas the Chief
Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s business development
and daily management and operations generally. The respective
responsibilities between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer have been clearly established and set out in
writing. The separation of roles would ensure a balance of power
and authority, and strengthen the governance function and business
development of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The executive directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chen
Xiaodong, Mr. Xu Ke, Mr. Yu Qingrui and Ms. Lam Hay Yin, have
not been appointed for a specific term but they are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws. The
Company has also issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company for a term of
1 year.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Xu Ke,
Ms. Lam Hay Yin and Mr. Liu Hongwei shall retire at the 2020 AGM
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2020
AGM. The Board recommended the re-election of the above retiring
directors at the 2020 AGM.
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Training and Continuing Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

All directors of the Company receive a comprehensive induction
on his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of
the business and operations of the Group and full awareness of
director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction is normally
supplemented with visits to the Group’s key plant sites and/or
meetings with the senior management of the Company.

The existing directors are continually updated with legal and
regulatory developments, business and market changes to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Continuing briefings and professional development for directors are
arranged whenever necessary. In addition, reading materials on new
or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the Group
are provided to the directors from time to time for their studying
and reference. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company (i) has
organized briefings conducted by the Company Secretary for all its
directors on corporate governance and updates on the Listing Rules
amendments and (ii) has provided reading materials on regulatory
updates to all the directors for their reference and studying.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
directors” dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Own Code”)
on terms no less exacting than the Model Code. Specific enquiry
has been made of all the Company’s directors and all have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code and the Own Code throughout the period
from 1 January 2019 to the date of this report.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms
no less exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by relevant employees
of the Group who are considered to be likely to possess inside
information in relation to the Company or its securities. No incident
of non-compliance with the Employees Written Guidelines was
noted by the Company.

In case the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings
in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors
and relevant employees in advance.
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Directors’ Attendance Records

The attendance records of each director at the regular Board
meetings, Board Committee meetings and the general meetings of
the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2019 is set
out below:

EECcHERE
EEERBE_T-NAF+-_A=+—HLHF
BRITZANFEEEEHER EFRECT
LR RRG Z HECSRERFINT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEREEERY

Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual

Board Committee Committee Committee General

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting

BERZE® ¥MZERE REZEYE RREF

Name of Director Esps Ezges f =E f ] -

Mr. Chen Xiaodong R E 3R 5% A 4/4 - - 212 171

Mr. Xu Ke AL E 4/4 - - - 11

Mr. Yu Qingrui REHELE 4/4 - - = 17

Ms. Lam Hay Yin M2+ 4/4 = 3/3 = 0/1

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong BERLE 4/4 33 33 20 0/1

Mr. Chen Youchun (note 1) REFLE (M) 33 2 22 11 0/1

Mr. Wu Ming RepFEH 4/4 3/3 - = 0/1

Mr. Liu Hongwei (note 2) BRERE (i) 1" il - - -

Notes: k3

1. Mr Chen Youchun resigned as an independent non-executive director, 1. BRERBFLEERZT—NFTA—BHFETBE L

and ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company on 1 October
2019. During the period from 1 January 2019 up to his resignation
date, 3 Board meetings, 2 Audit Committee meetings, 3 Remuneration
Committee meetings, 2 Nomination Committee meetings and 1
Annual General Meeting were held.

25 Mr. Liu Hongwei was appointed as an independent non-executive
director, and a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company on
1 October 2019. During the period from his appointment date up to
31 December 2019, 1 Board meeting and 1 Audit Committee meeting
were held.

In addition, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, the chairman of the Board, held a

meeting with the independent non-executive directors without the
presence of executive directors during the year under review.
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Board Committees and Corporate Governance
Functions

The Board has established four Board committees, namely, the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees have been established with defined written terms
of reference, which are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website (www.hkexnews.hk) and on the Company’s website
(www.cwghl.com) (except for the written terms of reference of
the Executive Committee which is available to shareholders upon
request). All the Board committees should report to the Board on
their decisions or recommendations made.

Executive Committee

Currently, the Executive Committee comprises all the four executive
directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Mr. Xu Ke,
Mr. Yu Qingrui and Ms. Lam Hay Yin. The Chairman of the Board,
Mr. Chen Xiaodong, also acts as the Chairman of this committee.
The Executive Committee operates as a general management
committee under the direct authority of the Board to increase the
efficiency for business decision making. It monitors the execution of
the Company’s strategic plans and operations of all business units
of the Group and discusses and makes decisions on matters relating
to the management and day-to-day operations of the Group.

Audit Committee

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises of three members,
namely, Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman), Mr. Wu Ming and Mr. Liu
Hongwei, all of whom are independent non-executive directors.
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong possesses the appropriate accounting and
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a
former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the
financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the financial officers of the Group or
external auditors before submission to the Board; (ii) review and
monitor the relationship with the external auditors by referencing
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and
(iii) review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee
performed the following works:

- Reviewed and discussed the Company’s financial statements,
results announcements and reports for the year ended
31 December 2018 and for the six months ended 30 June
2019, the financial reporting, the related accounting
principles, practices and compliance procedures of the
Company;

- Discussed and recommended the re-appointment of external
auditors;

- Reviewed the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group; and

= Reviewed and discussed the remuneration, terms of
engagement and independence of external auditors, and
recommended the change of external auditors to Moore
Stephens CPA Limited.

The external auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee
meetings without the presence of executive directors to discuss with
the Audit Committee issues arising from the audit and financial
reporting matters. The Company’s annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2019 have also been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. There is no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the re-appointment of external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises both executive
directors and independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely, Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman), Ms. Lam Hay Yin and
Mr. Liu Hongwei.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure and the remuneration packages of directors and
senior management (i.e. the model described in the code provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code is adopted); (ii) review and approve
performance-based remuneration by referencing to corporate
goals and objectives; and (iii) establish a formal and transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his’/her own remuneration, the remuneration
of which will be determined with reference to the performance
of the individual and the Group as well as market practice and
conditions.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee has performed the following works:

- Reviewed and discussed the remuneration policy and
structure and the remuneration packages of the directors and
senior management of the Group;

- Discussed and recommended the grant of share options of the
Company; and

- Discussed and recommended the remuneration regarding
the appointment of Mr. Liu Hongwei as an independent
non-executive director of the Company.

The senior management of the Company are the directors of the
Company. Details of the remuneration of each director of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note
8 to the financial statements contained in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises both executive
directors and independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely, Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman), Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong and
Mr. Liu Hongwei.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and recommend
any changes to the Board; (ii) identify qualified and suitable
individuals to become Board members and select and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors of the Company, having
regard to the requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iv) make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors in particular, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive of the Company.
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The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as
an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy has been adopted
by the Company, the Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing annually the structure, size and composition of the Board
and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and
to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In
relation to reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the
Nomination Committee is committed to diversity at all levels and
will consider a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional and industry
experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth
and is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection
practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately
structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered. The
Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time
to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

The Company has also adopted the Director Nomination Policy
which sets out the criteria and process and the Board succession
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment
of directors of the Company, and aims to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following: character and
integrity; qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy; diversity in all aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service; requirements of independent
non-executive directors on the Board and independence of the
proposed independent non-executive directors in accordance with
the Listing Rules; and commitment in respect of available time
and relevant interest to discharge duties as a member of the Board
and/or Board committee(s) of the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination
Committee performed the following works:

- Reviewed the Board Diversity Policy, the structure, size and
composition of the Board to ensure that it has a balance
of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Group;

- Considered and recommended the re-election of the retiring
directors standing for re-election at the 2019 annual general
meeting of the Company;

—  Assessed the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company; and

- Considered and recommended the appointment of Mr. Liu
Hongwei as an independent non-executive director of the
Company.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board has reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code and Employees Written Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting
in Respect of the Financial Statements

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019.
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The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.
The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on
an ongoing basis. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board is fully responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take to achieve
the Company’s strategic objectives, and for establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the
Group's assets.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in overseeing the design
and implementation of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Company has developed and adopted different risk
management procedures and guidelines. Self-evaluation would be
conducted each year to confirm that the Company has properly
complied with the risk management and internal control policy.
All divisions would conduct internal control assessment to identify
risks factors with potential impact on the Group’s business. The
management would assess the likelihood of risk occurrence,
monitor the progress of risk management and report to the Board
and the Audit Committee on the findings and effectiveness of the
systems.
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The Group has developed its disclosure policy to provide a general
guide to the Company’s directors, officers, senior management and
relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

The Company’s internal audit staff has performed independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems. Key issues such as accounting
practices and all material controls were examined. The relevant
findings and recommendations are provided to the Board and the
Audit Committee.

The Board, as assisted by the Audit Committee and the
management, has reviewed the report from the management and
the internal audit findings, and reviewed the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, including the
financial, operational and compliance controls for the year ended
31 December 2019. The annual review also covered areas on
financial reporting, internal audit function, staff qualification,
experiences and relevant resources. The Board considered that such
systems are adequate and effective and ongoing review of the same
nature would be conducted in subsequent years.

External Auditors and Auditors’” Remuneration

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report. During the
year ended 31 December 2019 the remuneration paid/payable to
the former external auditors of the Company, Ernst & Young and
the current external auditor of the Company, Moore Stephens CPA
Limited, is set out below:
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Remuneration

Nature of Services (HK$)
REME EN (BT
Audit services (Moore Stephens CPA Limited) BRI (RESHRESHMESMERAA) 1,774,000
Non-audit services (Note) IEFFT AR (BI5E)

(Ernst & Young) (ZKREFRIEFT) 690,000
TOTAL: et 2,464,000
Note: The non-audit services provided mainly included other assurance — Fiit: BIRMZIFBFFRBEI 2B EMEZRS

services, tax compliance and advisory services.
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Company Secretary

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Szeto Pui Tong,
Patrick, the Company Secretary, has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge.

Communications with Shareholders and Investors
The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors” understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.

The Company maintains a website at “www.cwghl.com” as a
communication platform with shareholders and investors, where
information and updates on the Group’s business operations,
developments and financial information are available for public
access. Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or
requests to the Company using the below contact details:

Address: Unit 6706B—08A, Level 67, International Commerce
Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Department of Investor
Relations)

Fax: (852) 2865 4654

Email: info@cwghl.com

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, will normally
attend the annual general meeting and other shareholders’ meetings
to answer questions.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them posted of the Company’s developments.
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Policies Relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholders” Communication Policy
to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company
and the Group and the conditions and factors as set out in the
Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the
Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial
year will be subject to the shareholders” approval.

Shareholder Rights

To safeguard shareholders” interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors. The
Company’s shareholders may convene a special general meeting or
put forward proposals at shareholders” meetings as follows:

(1) Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company at the date of deposit of the requisition
may request the Board to convene a special general meeting
pursuant to Clause 71 of the Company’s bye-laws by sending
a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at
the Company’s head office in Hong Kong. The objects of the
meeting must be stated in the written requisition.

(2)  Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights at the date of the requisition or not
less than 100 shareholders may put forward a proposal at a
shareholders’ meeting, pursuant to the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda by sending a written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong. The proposal should be stated in the written requisition
and such written requisition should be submitted as early
as practicable to enable the Company to make necessary
arrangement (in case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the meeting; and in
case of any other requisition, not less than one week before
the meeting).
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(3) If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a

retiring director for election as a director of the Company at
a general meeting, the shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting shall send a written notice, duly signed by
the shareholder, of his/her intention to propose such person
for election and also a notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong,
or the office of the Company’s branch share registrar. The
period for lodgement of such notices shall commence on the
day after the dispatch of the notice of such general meeting
and end 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders” information may be disclosed as required by
law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its bye-laws. An up-to-date version of the Company’s
bye-laws is also available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.cwghl.com).

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
shareholders” meeting.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Refo

Scope and Reporting Period

This is the fourth Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG”)
report of Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
and collectively with its subsidiaries referred as the “Group”),
highlighting ESG performance, with disclosure reference made to
the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules and Guidance set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The principal activities of the Group are engagement in financial
investments, trading and money lending business. This ESG report
covers the Group’s overall environmental and social performances
of its major business operations in its offices in Hong Kong and
Shanghai of the People’s Republic of China (with a total floor
area of 1,439 m?), from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019,
unless otherwise stated. As compared to 2018, the reporting scope
is the same. Yet, since the office in Sheung Shui, Hong Kong,
ceased operation in October 2019, some of the data will not
include information of the office. In this case, it will be mentioned
specifically.

The Group’s Future Development and Commitments
With rising emphases on developing sustainably, there comes with
opportunities and risks associated with the environmental and
social discourse. In face of such uncertainty, the Group will actively
adjust its development plans according to the market trends. With
a long-term goal to expand its operations, the Group will make use
of opportunities and avoid risky investments to achieve an effective
while stable business growth.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Group to
report on for this ESG report, the Group regularly collects views
and discusses ESG matters with stakeholders through a variety of
channels, such as engagement sessions including routine meetings
and annual general meetings. When issues have been identified,
they are discussed as an issue of the corporate culture. The Group
also emphasises on the importance to pay attention to issues and
giving appropriate response to the arising problems. Solutions to
relevant topics are regularly explored on such that relevant issues
can be addressed and resolved.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has specifically engaged
board members, senior management, frontline employees, and
business partners to gain further insights on ESG aspects they find
material and relevant challenges that they may induce. A materiality
assessment has then been produced according to the engagement
as follow.
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Environmental Social Others
BE HeE Hit
Al Energy B1  Employment C1  Risk Management
Al BER B1 (&% 1 EARER
A2 Water B2  Employee Health & Safety C2  Protection of Client’s rights
A2 KER B2 REERFHEZZ C2  RERFERN
A3 Air Emissions B3 Development & Training C3  Prevention of Malpractice
A3 REBHER B3 BRI C3 HERER
A4 Effluent and Waste B4  Labour Standards
A4 5IKEEY B4 5T HA|
A5 Other Raw Materials Consumption B5  Supply Chain Management
A5 EARIEERE B5 (HE#ER
A6 Environmental Protection Policies B6 Intellectual Property Rights
A6 IRIRBUK B6  AIEH
B7  Data Protection
B7  EBiHR#E
B8  Customer Service
B8 HEFIR®
B9  Product/Service Quality
B9 Em/RBEEE
B10 Anti-corruption
B10 XES
B11 Community Investment
B11 HEKRE
According to the assessment, the five most material topics to the REBEF M AHEAEESREEZNTEASEKERE
Group are therefore, =K
1. Customer Service 1 B PR
2. Anti-Corruption 2. R&ES

3. Product/Service Quality
4. Health and Safety

5. Data Protection

The Group aims to keep close communication with its stakeholders

ANSR B S 1E 5t B 335 40 B SR 55 AR AR

for the identified aspects and continue to improve its ESG
performance. The Group also hopes to have better management
on ESG-related risks for future business development. In alignment
with the Group's vision on sustainability, the business will continue
to operate with high ethical standards and provide sustainable
returns to stakeholders.
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Stakeholders” Feedback

The Company welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on its
environmental, social and governance approach and performance.
Please give your suggestions or share your views with the Group via
email at info@cwghl.com.

A. Environmental

Al.

Emissions

Due to the nature of the business, the Group’s
operations are office based and their related
environmental impact was very minimal. The Group did
not note any cases of material non-compliance relating
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharge into
water and land, and the generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste as required by the applicable laws
and regulations.

Al.1.Air Emissions
During the Reporting Period, there was 1
group-owned passenger car. It contributed to
0.09 kg of SOx, 48.71 kg of NOx, and 1.33 kg of
PM emission.

A1.2. Greenhouse Gas Emissions

During the Reporting Period, 90.68 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e) greenhouse
gases (“GHG”, mainly carbon dioxide, methane
and nitrous oxide) were emitted from the Group’s
operations. This is a 15% increase from last year.
The increase was due to the inclusion of electricity
data from the Shanghai office this year as such
data was not available in the previous Reporting
Period. The intensity was 0.06 tCO,e per m?
of total office area. See Table 1 for the detail
breakdown of GHG contribution.
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Al.3.

Al.A4.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Table 1 Sources of GHG

RIE e RERRE

RUBRERERR

Emission Total Emission

Scope of GHG Emission Sources (in tCO,e) (in %)
28
BEREBHKEE BEHUR (H-SE{tmEE BN E (%)
Scope 1
g1EN
Direct Emissions Combustion of fuels in 15.82 17.4
mobile sources — Petrol

=RE3713i BRI B BE — Uk
Scope 2
EE2
Energy Indirect Emission Purchased Electricity 72.77 80.2
BE IR PR BE PR BEE
Scope 3
EE3
Other Indirect Emissions Paper Waste Disposal 2.09 2.3
H fth R 3 BERR BERESE
Total 90.68 100
et

Note: Emission factors were made reference to
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and their referred
documentation as set out by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, unless stated otherwise.

Hazardous Waste

During the Reporting Period, 20 pieces of waste
lamps, 12 pieces of waste printing cartridges,
and 5 kg of hardware waste from printers were
generated from daily office operation.

Non-hazardous Waste
The Group’s operations generated approximately
87 tonnes of non-hazardous waste, which mainly
included food waste and packaging, newspaper
and office wastepaper.

Al.5. Measures to Mitigate Emissions

The Group’s operations resulted in insignificant
emissions. The main source of emission was
electricity used for daily office operations, details
of which will be presented in section A2. In terms
of vehicles, the Group prioritises electric cars
when it has to rent one, followed by fuel efficient
ones. The Group hopes that this can contribute to
minimising the amount of emission produced.
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Al.6. Waste Reduction and Initiatives

The Group generated very minimal hazardous
waste from its office operations. They were
generated only when replacement was needed.
Waste lamps were collected by the Management
Office, and waste printing cartridges and other
hardware wastes were sent back to suppliers.
Non-hazardous waste from the Group is collected
and handled by the Management Office. Paper is
used for daily office operations such as documents
printing and deliverables packaging. Paper saving
initiatives are encouraged among employees, such
as adopting double-sided printing and printing
with single-sided used paper. The Group tries to
recycle paper used whenever possible in attempt
to reduce waste disposed of at landfills.

With the principles of “reduce, reuse and
recycle”, the Group centralised stationary
supply to utilise stationaries and avoid wastage.
It returns used cartridges to suppliers and
purchases remanufactured toner cartridges for
its multi-functional devices. Reusable dishes
and tableware instead of disposable ones are
used in office. Other wastes including unneeded
computers and furniture are donated to Caritas
Hong Kong whenever possible.

A2. Use of Resources
The Group has not established policies on the efficient
use of resources. Nevertheless, employees are reminded
of resource conservation practices in offices.

AZ2.1. Energy Consumption

A total of 191,800 kWh of energy was consumed
by the Group for its operations during the
Reporting Period. Electricity was the major source
of energy for the Group, generating 139,783 kWh
for its offices’” lighting, office equipment, and other
miscellaneous items necessary for maintaining the
offices” daily operations. The rest of the Group’s
energy source was petrol used for fuelling its
passenger car. 5970 litres of petrol were used,
which generated approximately 52,018 kWh of
energy.

A2.2. Water Consumption
Water supplies were included in the management
fee of all offices. Thus, no such data is available
for the report.
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A3.

A2.3.

A2.4.

A2.5.

Environmental, Social and Governance Rejport

Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives

As compared with 2018, the use of electricity
increased despite the cease of the Sheung Shui
office in October. This is because electricity
used in the Shanghai office was not reported in
the previous Reporting Period due to the lack
of accessibility to such information from the
management company. However, as it has been
provided with relevant information this year, the
scope of the electricity record, hence its usage,
has expanded. To reduce electricity consumption,
employees are reminded to turn off office lights,
computers, printers and air conditioners when
leaving office. Energy efficient office equipment
are also used when possible.

Water Use Efficiency Initiatives

Water was supplied and managed by the building
management of all offices and there was no issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

Packaging Materials

The Group’s operations did not involve any
regular use of packaging materials. When there is
such usage once in a while, card boxes made by
recycled materials are used.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to conducting its business
responsibly, ensuring that its business does not
contribute to significant adverse impact on the
environment and society while bringing sustainable
growth and profit.

A3.1. Significant Impacts of Activities on the Environment

Although the Group’s business does not generate
significant adverse environmental impact as
compared with businesses in other sectors, the
Group is committed to reducing GHG emissions
and preserving natural resources. With electricity
consumption as its main source of GHG emission,
and printing practices as another source of
emission and waste, the Group frequently reminds
employees to practise energy and resources-saving
habits in offices.
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Social B. #&
1. Employment and Labour Practices 1. BRREIER
B1. Employment Bl. Ef#

The Group continues to invest in capacity building
among local human resource, following local
and national laws, and adopting best practices.
The Group did not note any cases of material
non-compliance in relation to employment during
the Reporting Period.

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had a total
of 91 employees in its International Commerce
Centre, Hong Kong and Shanghai offices. The
number of employees increased by 17% as
compared to the previous year. As the Sheung Shui
office ceased operation in October, its number
of employees is not included in the summary.
See Figure 1 for the total workforce with yearly
comparison, and Table 2 for the detail breakdown
of the workforce.
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Figure 1 Total Workforce by Year ENRFE I NE B AR
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Table 2 Total Workforce Breakdown

Total Workforce as of 31 December

BET-A=T-HHNEBHAH

R2E B H BB A

2018
—g-Nf

2019
=2-NF

By Employment Type
RESEHEED
Full-time
28
Part-time
e BBt
By Gender
BRI 8D
Female
i
Male
EELES
By Employee Category
RESER &S
Senior Management
SRERRE
Middle Management
PREEE
Frontline and Other Employees
AIAR M EL AR B
By Age Group
RERMAR 82
18-25
18E255%
26-35
26%355%
36-45
36E455%
46-55
46555
56 or above

56558k A E

A total of 39 employees left the Group during the Reporting
Period, which gave a turnover rate of 42.9%. The Group
regularly reviews salary remuneration and benefits to retain
talents and stay attractive and competitive in the market.
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62%
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B1.1.

B1.2.

Competitive Compensation and Benefits

The Group abides by all applicable
employment and labour related laws of
Hong Kong and Mainland China. Employees
are provided with attractive salary with
year-end double pay. Salary is reviewed
on a periodic basis with considerations
given to employees’ performance during
the year, market rate of the industry, profit
result, and the projected earning ability of
the Group. Individual salary adjustment in
respect of promotion, confirmation, transfer,
re-classification etc. are recommended by
the Department Head in consultation with
the Administration Department. For certain
job positions, the Group pays commission
and incentives in line with trade practices
and management policies. Various types
of leave, including annual leaves, sick
leaves, maternity leaves, paternity leaves
and jury services leave, are also provided.
Apart from the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF”) scheme, employees are entitled to
medical benefits scheme and employees’
compensation insurance. The standard
working hours are 8.5 hours per day and 5
days per week.

There were no major changes in policies
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity
and anti-discrimination during the Reporting
Period.

Promotion, Transfer and Dismissal

The Group aims to provide channels of
promotion and promote employees based
on their performance, qualification, integrity
and ability. Promotion will be offered with
considerations of the Group’s operation,
competence, potential and interpersonal
skills of the employee and recommendations
given by the employee’s Department
Manager. The Group reserves the right to
transfer any employee to other locations
or opportunities to perform jobs of similar
nature if necessary.
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B1.3.

B1.4.

Environmental, Social and Governance Rejport

Employees who completed the probation
period and wish to resign must notify
in writing to the Department Manager
with at least one month’s notice. Specific
notification periods for different positions
are stipulated in the appointment letters. For
employees who fall under circumstances
including redundancy, termination with or
without prejudice, they shall be provided
with one month’s notice or one month’s
salary in lieu of notice if their employment is
to be terminated.

Equal Opportunity

The Group provides equal opportunities for
employees in respect of recruitment, training
and development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. Employees are
not discriminated against or deprived of
such opportunities based on gender, ethnic,
background, religion, colour, age, marital
status, family status, retirement, disability,
pregnancy or any other discrimination
prohibited by applicable laws of Hong Kong
and Mainland China.

Employee Communication

To enhance employees’ sense of belonging,
the Group regularly organises gatherings,
such as annual dinners and Christmas parties
for its employees. During the Reporting
Period, the Group signed employees up for
trail runs and outward bounds specifically to
help create a bond and team spirit amongst
them.
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B2.

B3.

Employee Health and Safety

The Group complies with the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance, Chapter 509 of the Laws of
Hong Kong and Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases, and no
material non-compliance with related laws and
regulations was noted.

As employees spend most of the time on working
with the computers, the Group has installed eye
protectors on monitors to reduce the chance of
eye damage that may be caused by computer
screens. Employees are also reminded to maintain
good posture and appropriate viewing distance
between eyes and computer screens, and conduct
stretching exercises during rest breaks. The Group
also arranges professionals to sterilise the working
environment, and place greenings in the office.
By these, the Group hopes that employees” health
can be safeguarded in workplace. With regards
to precautious measures against fire hazards,
the Group has arranged fire drills for employees
to familiarise them with the office buildings’
escape routes and location of fire extinguishing
equipment.

There were no major changes in management
practice in relation to occupational health and
safety during the Reporting Period.

Development and Training

The Group continuously monitors employees” job
performance in order to identify training needs.
Employees are encouraged to participate in
work-related and personal development trainings
through on-the-job trainings and external trainings.
During the Reporting Period, 46 employees
received training as arranged by the Group, and
the average training hours that each employee
received (inclusive of those who did not received
training) was 4.2 hours. Training provided was
mostly duty-related courses or seminars delivered
by external service providers. The trainings
covered topics such as accounting standards, laws
and regulations.
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B4.

Environmental, Social and Governance Rejport

Labour Standards

Pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong and Labour Law
of the PRC, there was no child nor forced labour
in the Group’s operation. All resumes, original
identification cards and relevant certificates of job
candidates are first checked by the Group during
interviews. Candidates’ preceded employers may
be contacted for provision of references.

2. Operating Practices

B5.

B6.

Supply Chain Management

Only suppliers related to technology and financial
tools were engaged during the Reporting Period.
Despite the relatively low environmental and
social risks involved in the Group’s supply
chain, the Group encourages best practices in
supply chain management. The Group prioritises
cooperation with suppliers it has worked with
before to ensure the quality of supplies. There
were no major changes in practices in relation to
supply chain management during the Reporting
Period.

Product Responsibility
Confidential and Customer Information

As stated in the employment contract, employees
shall not at any time, during the course of their
employment, and after the termination of the
employment:

] use any confidential information for his/her
own purpose or for any purpose other than
that of the Group;

e divulge or communicate to any person any
confidential information except to those
of the employees or officials of the Group
whose province it is to know the same; or

J cause any unauthorized disclosure of
confidential information (including without
limitation), relating to the dealings,
organization, business, finance, transactions
or any other affairs to the Group or its clients
or customers, through failure of exercising
due care and diligence.
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B7.

B8.

All notes, memoranda, records and writings made
by the employees in relation to the business or
concerning any of its dealings or affairs or the
dealings or affairs of any clients or customers of
the Group shall be handed over by him/her to the
Group from time to time on demand and in any
event upon his leaving the service of the Group
and the employees shall not retain any copy
thereof. A breach of the above provisions can be
subject to dismissal without notice and legal claim
for damages.

The Group complies with all applicable laws
regarding confidential information and data
protection of the laws of Hong Kong and Mainland
China. No substantiated complaints concerning
breaches of client privacy, identified leaks, thefts,
or losses of customer information was received
during the Reporting Period.

Anti-corruption

The Group abides by the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance, Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong
and applicable laws in Mainland China in relation
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
All other guidelines outlined by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) and
Securities and Futures Commission (SFC) are also
followed by the Group. There was no concluded
legal case regarding corrupt practices brought
against the Group or its employees during the
Reporting Period.

Community Investment

The Group understands that engaging the
community in which it operates is an essential
corporate responsibility. The Group will consider
contributing to activities and organizations that
benefits the community in the future.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Executive Directors

Chen Xiaodong

Chen Xiaodong, aged 38, is an executive director, the chairman of
the Board of the Company, and the chairman of both the Executive
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company since
2 December 2016. He holds a bachelor degree of management
from Royal Holloway, University of London. He also holds a master
of science degree in process technology and business management
from University of Warwick. He has more than 10 years of
experience in bank and securities marketing and is familiar with
the local market and has strong capabilities in market exploration,
customer appraisal and risk management. He also has extensive
experience of regulations and rules of financial market in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, as well as certain corporate financial
analysis skill. Mr. Chen has resigned as an executive director and
chief executive officer of Future World Financial Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 572) with effect from 24 December
2018.

Xu Ke

Xu Ke, aged 41, has been appointed as an executive director, the
chief executive officer and a member of the Executive Committee
of the Company on 27 February 2018. He is a director and
a shareholder of Dragon Regal, a substantial shareholder of
the Company. He holds a bachelor degree in Economics from
Shandong University of Finance and Economics, a master degree
in Economics from Carleton University and a doctor degree in
business administration from Business School Netherlands. He has
extensive experience in the financial and securities sector. Mr. Xu
has served as the deputy managing director of Industrial Securities
Co., Ltd since 2012 and is responsible for the development and
audit of bond financing projects as well as the promotion and
marketing of certain bond projects. Mr. Xu served as a director
of Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd from 2007 to 2012 and was
responsible for the sales and marketing and project coordination of
debt financing projects in Three Northeastern Provinces, Guizhou
Province and Shandong Province in China. He was also responsible
for the implementation and design of the lead underwriting projects
and has executed lead underwriting projects involving urban
infrastructure, transportation, electricity and energy, coal production
and other industries. From 2001 to 2003, Mr. Xu was appointed
as the program executive of the China Chamber of International
Commerce (Shandong Province) and was responsible for liaison
with foreign business partners during their business trips in China
and negotiations on business cooperation with foreign educational
institutions.
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Yu Qingrui

Yu Qingrui, aged 48, is an executive director and a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company since 22 June 2016.
Mr. Yu specializes in property investment and trading business in
the People’s Republic of China. After graduating from high-school
in 1989, Mr. Yu joined the shipping and trading business in the
PRC. He was the general manager of a shipping company before
he became a private investor in 2003. In 2011, Mr. Yu joined a
marketing and management firm in Shanghai and served as their
property investment manager. On 21 July 2014, Mr. Yu was engaged
to provide advisory and consultancy services relating to property
investments and trading to Future World Financial Holdings Limited
(@ company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 572). Currently, Mr. Yu is an
executive director of Future World Financial Holdings Limited.

Lam Hay Yin

Lam Hay Yin, aged 39, is an executive director and a member of
both the Executive Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company since 20 July 2016. Ms. Lam holds a bachelor degree
in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She
also holds a master degree of business administration from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She has extensive experience in
property investment, brokerage and trading fields.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Kwok Chi Kwong

Kwok Chi Kwong, aged 56, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since January 2014, and the chairman
of both the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee,
and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Kwok holds a master degree in business administration from
the University of Leicester. He is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practicing) registered with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), an associate member of the
HKICPA and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Kwok has been a partner of JYC & Co
since 2005. He has gained more than 21 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and finance area.

Wu Ming

Wu Ming, aged 47, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company since 2 October 2018. He holds a bachelor of science
with honours in business with marketing from The City University
London. Mr. Wu specializes in trading business in the People’s
Republic of China and Hong Kong and has extensive experience in
trading and management.
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Liu Hongwei

Liu Hongwei, aged 50, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director, and a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company since 1 October 2019. He holds a master degree in
business administration and a bachelor degree in economics from
Renmin University of China. Mr. Liu has more than 20 years of
experience in finance and securities trading in China. Mr. Liu has
served as the chairman of the board of Beijing Guoxin Rongji
Holdings Co., Ltd. (bt REIEREE AR AR X F]) since September
2018. He also served as the managing partner of Glory Capital
Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd. from March 2016 to September
2018. From January 1995 to March 2016, Mr. Liu served as
the director of financial office and director of credit office at
Department of Fiscal and Financial Affairs of National Development
and Reform Commission. Mr. Liu has not held other directorships in
the last three years in any other public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY 2B AR S S

K| MOORE

To the Shareholders of Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 208, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Audlitor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion

Independent Auditor’s Report
BUZBENRE S
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on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

BEETEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMWESFOMEEFARETSE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables from securities and futures dealing business

EHFRHEEERBELZENE SR B EFIE

The Group has adopted a forward-looking “expected-loss”
impairment model to recognise the expected credit losses
(the “ECLs”) of trade receivables from securities and futures
dealing business in accordance with the requirements of
HKFRS 9.
EEERBEEEM B RELERFHTRERAREIE [TEH
BERIBERERBSRHEESXEBEL CRENE SR
FEREREEBER ([BHREEER]) -

As at 31 December 2019, gross trade receivables from
securities and futures dealing business, and the related
ECLs amounted to approximately HK$498,271,000 and
HK$85,927,000, respectively.
R-B-NAF+-_A=+—H EFMHAEEEXKEL
2B S ERBENABEBHREREE 54 %5498,271,000
7 7T 185,927,000/ 7T °

The assessment of ECLs of trade receivables from
securities and futures dealing business involves significant
management judgements and estimates, including estimation
of probability of defaults, valuation of collateral, expected
future cash flows and future economic conditions.
EFFHMEEERKELE CREWEIER BB EEEE
TR EEBELERAG ARG BRYEOH R K
HmfbE BHERARRERE R ARREBER AR -

For the assessment of the classification at each stage,
we have checked the outstanding margin receivable
balances to the corresponding values of collateral assets
(defined as loan-to-value);

LRSS ER R RN S RIS ZE REEBRER

EeHEREEREENEEREENLXR (EEAERE
EBELX):

For trade receivables from securities and futures dealing
business classified at stage 1, we evaluated the Group's
estimation methodology of ECLs, and checked the
parameters to external data sources where available,
including the price volatility of selected underlying
collateral;
HEROBARIEENESRPEEEXRBELE 2B
BHEFBMACHE EXENRMEEEBEMGET
F XA EET SR BERIRETEE &
R AR E R M R BRI -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B RE S

Key audit matter

BEETEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANETNMEEERETSEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables from securities and futures dealing business (continued)

EERHEEEREELZ EWNEZENZ B ETE(E)

The Group assesses whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk for exposures since initial recognition
by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected
life between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition.

BEREEBLBRHmE A MENGER ARz HNEFTFH
NELENEDRR FEEVNEEIAREERRBELSR
Eghne

Related disclosures about trade receivables from securities
and futures dealing business, and its related ECLs are
included in Notes 3 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.
BERMEEEXBEAZERBEZERREEBERE
EEB 2 EARRENGE B RERMTEIR21 -

For trade receivables from securities and futures dealing
business classified as stages 2 and 3, we checked
the price volatility and liquidity of the collateral, and
developed a reasonable range of expected cash shortfall
for comparison with the Group's assessment; and
BROBEAE2MBEBRNELFLMEEERREL L
FEYE 5 B30 AP X B R m e (E AR RIR SR B 1 -
VREHEHRSRENSIEHE NE SEBEHOFE
EITHE: &

We also evaluated the related disclosures regarding the
accounting policy, the judgement and estimates involved
and the details of the ECLs included in Notes 2, 3 and
21 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

BRI EATS RS BER - HE KA IARGEE Y
BmAME2 321 EBEMEEERFBEEMNE-

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receivables from money lending business

HERBELZ EWREZLRFEZREFE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had gross loan and
interest receivables from money lending business amounting
to approximately HK$466,520,000 and HK$27,988,000,
respectively. The Group had recognised ECLs on loan
and interest receivables amounting to approximately
HK$20,058,000 and HK$395,000, respectively.
RZZBE-NAF+T-_A=+—HB EBEEBEENREEB
EEZEIRE R EF S #8585 Bl £1466,520,00078 TT &
27,988,000 L > BEHEECHEBURER L E#EREHR
= B B18 5 511420,058,0007% 7T % 395,000 T °

We assessed the effectiveness and marketability of
certain collaterals, including considering fair values of
collaterals and the liquidity of the collaterals.
BAFEETERR 2 BAREREHE L 27 BEM
a0 1 B K B ) A

We assessed the reasonableness and relevancy of the
external information used by the Group as the default
rates and forward looking information including
economic data and forecasts published by government
bodies and monetary authorities, such as GDP growth
rates, unemployment rates, etc.

BAFHE ESEREROERATEEER 2SN EEER
A B RARIE BRBTEE R BERFI ML
BEERIER PIMBEAEEREERE KERE-
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Key audit matter

BMEETER

Independent Auditor’s Report
BUZBENRE S

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANSENMEEERETSEE

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receivables from money lending business (continued)

HMERBEELZ ENESRFEZREFG (E)

The models and assumptions adopted by the management
in estimating ECLs are related to the future macroeconomic
conditions and borrowers’ creditworthiness (e.g. the
likelihood of default by customers). The management
believes that they have considered reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost and effort for this purpose. Such
assessment has taken the quantitative and qualitative
historical information and also, the forward-looking analysis.
EREENGFRBEEEERRANRE R RRERKR
BREEMRAREBERANGEE (MEFROMAIRELE) B -
ERERR WECEEMBEANESZAERAIEEH
BEFRHEETVERARE N -ZEFHORAEE
K TE M 2 RS2 B B A M ATRE M 3 AT o

Related disclosures from loan and interest receivables
from money lending business, and their related ECLs are
included in Notes 3, 20 and 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MEEGEE ZERERENENKEAEREREESE
ZABRARBEEH N R E M E AR MRS - 20823 o

Valuation of an investment property

REYEIGE

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the Group's
investment property was HK$390,000,000 The estimation
of the fair value of the investment property requires
management’s significant judgement.
R-Z-NF+-_A=+—H EEEREMEZLQF
{/3390,000,000/8 T 5t IREMEZ A FEFREEE
1EH E R HI i -

The Group commissioned professional valuer to appraise
the fair value of the Group’s investment property, and
determines the fair value of this property with reference to
the valuation carried by the professional valuer.
EEBZBEXRMGEMNE SEEREVEZAFE"
YWSEBXRMEEMAETEHEEEZSEVEZAFE

Related disclosures about investment property are included
in Notes 3 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

REMEZRBERBEHNGEE P BHRRMEIRIS

We checked the accuracy of the calculation of ECLs
based on the methodology adopted by the Group and the
adequacy of the Group’s classification of stages based on
the past due dates of the loan and interest receivables,
as well as disclosures in relation to credit risk exposed
by the Group in the Notes 20 and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BPERERE EXEMRATAFTERACEEERR
ZERNEN ERERBEREAEFREMNEBEDHEE
THEERISBENRD T A REGEE M BHRKRME20%2358
#H EXEEHRZEERMRBBRE-

Our audit procedures included reviewing the
objectivity, independence and competency of the valuer
commissioned by the Group. We reviewed the valuation
methodologies and assumptions adopted by the valuer,
assessing their related data as inputs for the valuation
and comparing them with market data of comparable
properties. We also assessed the disclosures relating to
the assumptions used in determining the fair value in
Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
BANBAREFEREN EREMZEBEAEMZTE
M B R F R A - PR B BT AT SRR B (TS
ERBR - FHEEERAREZ BBEBBRY S A BHIE
HEAl BB R 2 TS BIRIFL & - RPN G EEE
e mRM IS D FEMARREEZHE
BFte
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Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 26 March
2019.

Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

J Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements (continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Wing Yin

Practising Certificate Number: PO5035

Hong Kong, 25 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—%F

~NFFZA=1—HULFE

2019
—B-NF
Notes HK$’000
Bt &E FTHER
Revenue WA
Financial investments and services B/ #51% & & fR7% 26,146
Brokerage and commission income — ££ 42 &A@ UL A 841,798
Property investment MEKRE 1,350
Advisory fee income HAERA 78,450
5 947,744
Brokerage and commission expenses #¢42 & A kA& X (405,065)
Gross profit ER 542,679
Other income and (losses) or HAWA K (BHE) K
gains, net e 58 5 VA VL))
Administrative expenses TERAX (213,559)
Other operating expenses H & &R (5,962)
Finance costs MBER 6 (60,561)
Unrealised fair value losses on FRBHEATEIERZ
equity investments at fair value BRARE 2 REH A FE
through profit or loss, net BRI (4,805)
Unrealised fair value gains on iﬂ?gﬁﬁf”$ﬁ§”ﬁ§2
debt investments at fair value EEREZAREHRTE
through profit or loss, net Yo s % 58 19,753
Credit loss allowances on other HitheMEEZEEE
financial assets 18 B (89,651)
(Loss)/gain on revaluation of REMEZEM (BER)
investment property W s 15 (45,000)
Gain on deemed disposal of BIEHE—HBERFZ
an associate U 25 18 105,739
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FRE QR 2 K 13 -
Provision for impairment loss on REEE R R ZIRE 2 RIE
investment in an associate BiEREE 18
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate 9 {h B & X &) 2 & Fll,/
(Jééﬂ,a) 7,065
Profit/(loss) before income tax I‘?Fﬁ SBAER, (BE) 7 248,519
Income tax expense BREX 10 (40,132)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable 7~ 2 T #H A EE R EE
to owners of the Company wEL(EE) 208,387
Earnings/(loss) per share ARREEAELRER
attributable to owners of BR (F#8)
the Company
Basic 2R 12 HK1.42 cents &l
Diluted e 12 HK1.41 cents &4l
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2018
—T-N\F
HK$'000
THET

17,282
150,130
6,650
392

174,454
(4,051)

170,403

5,147
(152,921)
(5,200)
(64,407)

(17,348)

5,000

65,620

(51,257)

(13,912)

(58,875)
(8,186)

(67,061)

HK(0.48) cent /&1Ll

HK(0.48) cent /&1l




Consolidated Statement of Comprehenswe Income

meazmEkaER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—%F

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to REERQPAEE AEN
owners of the Company wBR(BE)
Other comprehensive loss His 2 HEE

Other comprehensive loss that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

ARERBERBRMEN DR
ERmzHEMEEER:

BEBINEL 2B ER

Other comprehensive loss that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:

Equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income:

Changes in fair value, net of tax

Share of other comprehensive loss of
an associate

BTG REER AR ER D8R
ERnzHEMEEER:

BB A2 TR
ATEFIRZ RARE
ATEZD (BHE)

DM AT 2 Ei 2 E AR

Release of fair value reserve upon HERBIBERFRZ
partial disposal of an associate N ERBRED

Net other comprehensive loss that will not T ERERBFEFTHEE
be reclassified to profit or loss in BaRz A2 EER R
subsequent periods

Total comprehensive loss for the year KA EEARERFEE
attributable to owners of the Company 2EHEBRASHE

2019
—B-AF
HK$'000
FERT

208,387

(1,075)

(901,061)

6,711)

(907,772)

(700,460)

~NFFTZA=1—HIEFE

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
THET

(67,061)

(943,780)

(108,738)

407

(1,052,111)

(1,119,243)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IS AR R R

As at 31 December 2019 R=-F—NF+=HA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hF —N\#F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt &E FERT FAET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E R NS 14 15,466 4,104
Investment property REWMHE 15 390,000 435,000
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 21,632 =
Intangible assets BIEE 17 500 500
Investment in an associate REEERRZIRE 18 = 225,194
Equity investments at fair value ~ BEBEMEE KRR A TE
through other comprehensive 5Bk Z IR AR E
income 19 506,650 1,296,154
Deferred tax assets BIETRIRE E 34 4,391 2,734
Loan receivables from money WMEEBEE 2 BIRER
lending business 20 89,805 -
Deposits and prepayment ®re RFEMNKIE 23 30,847 12,799
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 1,059,291 1,976,485
Current assets RBEE
Loan receivables from B ¥ EE 2 BIRE R
money lending business 20 356,657 299,497
Trade receivables from securities #FHRIEEBEXEBEE 2
and futures dealing business FEUE 5 BR K 21 412,344 395,294
Trade receivables from placing and BLE R EE B R EBE £ 2
asset management business FEUWE Z R 22 52,265 6,294
Prepayments, deposits and BENFIE R REME
other receivables W skIE 23 91,999 21,432
Equity and fund investments at ~ FiBREHEAFEIIRZ
fair value through profit or loss ~ BRARELRE 24 115,505 21
Debt investments at fair value FRBERRATEIRZ
through profit or loss BEBRE 25 168,530 =
Cash and bank balances Be MBITE 26 99,219 100,910
Bank balances held on behalf RREPHAERITHET
of clients 27 71,352 90,966
Total current assets MEEERE 1,367,871 914,414
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A AR R

As at 31 December 2019 R —F—F+—H=+—H

2019 2018
=E-AF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 THERT FHET
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables e E 5 R 28 74,108 99,486
Lease liabilities HERE 31 20,010 =
Third party interests in REEEREESZE=ZTEH
consolidated investment fund 29 109,599 =
Other payables and accruals Hib e RE N EFER 30 63,497 35,225
Other borrowings Hibg & 32 429,854 472,178
Bank borrowings RITEE 32 113,057 142,298
Bank overdrafts RITEX 32 117,103 45,095
Tax payable e IR 39,715 4,859
Total current liabilities BB BB 966,943 799,141
Net current assets RBEEFE 400,928 115,273
Total assets less current liabilites EEZAERREBEE 1,460,219 2,091,758
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Notes payable N EE 33 86,574 86,574
Bank borrowings RITEE 32 148,283 156,362
Lease liabilities HEB®RE 31 5,142 =
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 34 4,873 =
Total non-current liabilities RSB EAE 244,872 242,936
Net assets FEE 1,215,347 1,848,822
Equity L3
Equity attributable to owners of ZA2QRHEHE ABILERE
the Company
Share capital fi& 7 35 147,197 147,167
Reserves % 36 1,068,150 1,701,655
Total equity Emiaza 1,215,347 1,848,822

Chen Xiaodong Yu Qingrui
R B2 2R REH
Director Director
EE E=0
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-.r\Aiﬁiﬁlﬂl:%%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—%F

—NEFZA=F—AUFE

Notes
Bt 5E
Cash flows from operating activities K& EEZRETE
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETSRLATE T, (B1B)
Adjustments for: FLNSIIR B (FFE
Bank interest income RITA B WA 5
Finance costs MBER 6
Depreciation on property, Mm% BERREBITE
plant and equipment 7
Depreciation on right-of-use assets A& EHT & 7
Credit loss allowances on HihemEEL
other financial assets EEEERE
Gain on disposal of items of HEWE BB K&
property, plant and equipment HE 2 e 7
Write-off of property, plant and WEEY % BB &R
equipment 7
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBARzWam 13
Equity-settled share option PRiEEE 2 BBAE
arrangements, net HE 5%7"%@ 38
Gain on deemed disposal of equity %ET’EH:': & — Al &
interests in an associate N AR HE H—rZHﬂZﬁn 18
Loss on partial disposal of equity Mo HE —HEE QR
interests in an associate Mtz 1R 18
Loss from release of fair value o HE — B R A6
reserve upon partial Z N HERERELER
disposal of an associate 18
Share of (profit)/loss of an associate 5 {h —FEH & R &2
CaM) /BE
Loss/(gain) on revaluation of Eﬁ&ﬁ%%ZEﬂE/
investment property (Ma) 15
Dividend income from investment ~ ETRAFEHEE 2
in listed equity securities P B 5
Interest income from investment in ~ {EIFIRE 2 EF| B
debt investments WA 5
Provision for impairment loss on R—TEBE IR Z
investment in an associate KREZRBEEERB 18

Unrealised fair value losses on
equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, net

Unrealised fair value gains on
debt investments at fair value
through profit or loss, net

HRBRIEATFEYE
Zk$&é2$“ﬁ
NEEFEEFE
FEBEREAFENE
ZEBREZRER
NFEWEFE
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2019

—B-NF

HK$’000
TEx

248,519

66,809

(105,739)

(7,065)

45,000
(7,523)

(7,084)

(19,753)

2018
—T-N\F
HK$'000
TET

(58,875)

(12)
64,407

2,018

472

407

13,912

(5,000)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

r—‘—|
& \/\ i/}lbi%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 =F—NF+=—A=—+—HIFFEZ

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Operating profit before working EEEREHAN
capital changes f\‘«%/ﬁnﬂ 391,851 65,226
(Increase)/decrease in loan MEFEBE+ 2 B
receivables from money g3 gm Rd
lending business (165,249) 53,494
(Increase)/decrease in equity and FRBEREATEIEZ
fund investments at fair value BAREZRE
through profit or loss (#Em) Ed (120,289) 157,684
Increase in debt investments at FREREATEIEZ
fair value through profit or loss EERE LM (148,777) N
Increase in trade receivables %&Hﬂfff‘giﬁ%
from securities and futures EH 2 RIE 5 BRI M
dealing business (96,424) (10,626)
Increase in trade receivables from MENMEEEBREK
placing and asset EHEZ BIE 5 BRFKIE M
management business (45,559) (6,948)
Increase in prepayments, BNFE R REM
deposits and other receivables MR IR IE hn (81,026) (3,389)
Decrease/(increase) in bank REREFPHAERITHET
balances held on behalf of clients B (3Gn) 19,614 (342)
Decrease in trade payables e 8 5 R TR A (25,378) (108,592)
Increase in other payables H At & 5RIA M AT B B
and accruals 490 21,888 15,719
Increase in third party interests in REHREREZE=F
consolidated investment fund HE 2 38 0 109,599 =
Exchange realignment BEE 3¢ 58 - (71)
Cash (used in)/generated ks (A g
from operations Re (139,750) 162,155
Dividend received 2R B 522 =
Interest received B8 7,084 =
Interest paid BEAFE (31,072) (23,608)
Tax paid ERHIA (2,060) (15,163)
Net cash (used in)/generated rREFED (A B2z
from operating activities RWe 5 (165,276) 123,384
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

r—‘—|
& \/\ i/mi%

For the year endled 31 December 2019 B2 —F—NF+ _H=1—HILFEZ

2019
—E-hEF
Notes HK$’000
B 5 FTHET

Cash flows from investing activities REZTEHRESHKE
Purchases of items of property, BEWZE BFENEHEB

plant and equipment (15,103)
Acquisition of equity investments e B8 3 3 Ho A 2 T W 2

at fair value through other BATFEYRZ R

comprehensive income BE (6,304)
Proceeds from disposals of equity HEBBEMEEKE

investments at fair value through BN HES IR 2 IR

other comprehensive income REZ PSFIA 226,034
Proceeds from partial disposal of HEBERRHOREZ

equity interests in an associate FTiS 3R -
Dividend received BB 7,001
Interest received EEEIYS) 5 352
Net cash generated from/ REBHELE (FR)Z

(used in) investing activities ReF5 211,980
Cash flows from financing activities BMETBHELSHRE
Net proceeds from issuance of BAITHRR D PRIS SRIRF 58

new shares 176
Proceeds from other borrowings Hib B EMSHIA 189,776
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEMSHIA 105,000
Repayment of other borrowings EEEMEE (232,100)
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (142,320)

Repayment of the principal portion
of lease liabilities

Payment for interest portion of
other borrowings

Payment for interest portion of
bank borrowings

Payment for interest portion of
lease labilities

EEMEABASHY
HEMEERN S S

SATRITEEF S8

D

XNHEERENEED

17,519)

(12,512)

(8,726)

1,130

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

BMEED (A /EEZ
b f-

(119,355)
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2018
—EF-N\E
HK$’000
THT

(1,190)
(684,815)

485,310
666

12

(200,017)

200,000
180,248
75,000
(234,000)
(109,933)

(31,037)

(11,749)

68,529




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EIPAN D =2
%z\/:u\fﬁimbi%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —FE—NF+ _H=—1—HILFEZ

2019
—E-hF
Notes HK$’000
5 FTERT
Net decrease in cash and RERREEHEEB Z
cash equivalents W F (72,651)
Cash and bank balances at FzRERRITER
beginning of year 55,815
Effect of foreign exchange SMEEXRE B v F B FHE
rates changes, net (1,048)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRAZEERREZEER
end of year (17,884)
Analysis of balances of cash and ReERREESERBERZ
cash equivalents 2
Cash and bank balances Re RRITET 26 99,219
Bank overdrafts RITEX 32 (117,103)

(17,884)

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FHET

(8,104)

63,919

55,815

100,910
(45,095)

55,815
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—%F

80

BRI

~NFFZA=1—HIFE

Corporate and group information

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited, formerly known
as China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited, (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. Pursuant to a special resolution passed at
the special general meeting of the Company held on
27 December 2018 and approved by the Registrars of
companies of Hong Kong, with effect from 11 February
2019, the name of the Company was changed from “China
Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited” to “Central Wealth
Group Holdings Limited”. The Chinese translation of the
Company’s name for identification purposes was changed
from “FERENMEEEBRAR" to “PEREER
BBRATF]". The principal place of business of the Company
is located at Unit 6706B-08A, Level 67, International
Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
securities and futures dealing business, trading of debts and
equity investments, money lending business and property
investments.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

AAREEER
FEKEERERAR (AETPENE N
MEKEEBERQR) ([A2r)A/ARE
REFMKIZBERAR - REARAR
ZE-NFFTZAZTEHBITZRE
FRAAKEBBIERBRAEMERE K
HEZRFRIRZER AR R BHA [China
Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited ]
¥ 2% [Central Wealth Group Holdings
Limited |  B-Z—NWFE_A+—HEE
Mo RRAEMRBR 2 XEFRH [ EH
ENMEEBRERA TJEEAU%FEPi%I
ERAERRDE | AR EREEHBEURN
FEN Eﬂ:t”? ﬁhﬁh&ﬁf’f%f@vﬁ@
6706B-08A =

ARBETEEBR/RREEZER -ARFRE
M]‘% Al (I AEE]T2REESFRK
HEREXK BHEERBARE WE
EHRMERE -

MEQRZER
RIBE-NERZZB-NF+ZA=+—
B ARAEZEMNBRRZFBEET

Percentage of equity

attributable
to the Company
FRAEEREZED L
Place of Issued ordinary/
incorporation registered share Principal
Name and business capital  Directly Indirectly activities
ERATEER/
DEAR SR REEE N EBES B B IEXREH
Hoshing Limited* British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 - Investment holding
(2018: 100)
Hoshing Limited* RBARRES B . 1(/)% - REBRK
£:100)
139 Enterprises Limited Hong Kong uss2 - 100 Provision of administrative
(2018: 100) services
1B9EXBRAA] &b VE S 13(\) REATRRES
£:100)
Chaifa Finance Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding
(2018: 100)
BRYHARAH BE 2B " (g 1(}% REER
£:100)
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Corporate and group information (continued) 1.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

NAEIREBER (#)
MEBARZER (&)

Percentage of equity

attributable
to the Company
FRAEEREZED L
Place of Issued ordinary/
incorporation registered share Principal
Name and business capital  Directly  Indirectly activities
ERATEER/
DEAER SRR RBEE N EUBES BE B FEXRED
Central Wealth Infrastructure British Virgin Islands/Hong Us$1 - 100 Investment in and trading of
Investment Limited (formerly Kong (2018: 100) securities
name as Main Purpose
Investments Limited)
FEARREERAR (ABMan EBEBREE/BE (E - 100 REREEEH
Purpose Investments Limited ) (Z2-N
£:100)
Desert Gold Limited British Virgin Islands/Hong Us$1 - 100  Investment in and trading of
Kong (2018: 100) securities
Desert Gold Limited RRERRER/BE 1%7T " = 1(}% RERBEERS
£:100)
Celestial Lodge Limited* British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
(2018: 100)
Celestial Lodge Limited* EEARRES 1% = = 1(3% REER
:100)
Top Billion Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Money lending
(2018: 100)
EEHHERAA BA BT - 100 ME
(ZF-N
:100)
Winsey Enterprises Limited* British Virgin Islands USs$1 - 100  Investment holding
(2018: 100)
Winsey Enterprises Limited* REAARES (E - = 1(})8 REER
£:100)
Central Wealth Securities Investment Hong Kong HK$325,000,000 - 100  Brokerage and related
Limited (2018: 100) services
REEFREERAR e 325,000,000 7T = - 19% B B RS
£:100)
Central Wealth Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$23,500,100 - 100  Brokerage and related
(2018: 100) services
PEREERLA BB 23,500,100/ 7¢ . 1(}2 e
£:100)
Central Wealth Asset Management ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 Asset Management
Limited (2018: 100)
PEREEEREARAR BE 10,000,000/ 7T g 13% EERRE
£:100)
Sky Eagle Global Limited* British Virgin Islands USs$1 - 100  Investment holding
(2018: 100)
Sky Eagle Global Limited* KERBRES %7 - = 1())% REZRR
:100)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+-H=+—HI-FZ

1. Corporate and group information (continued) 1. ARAIREEEF @)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) MEABZER (&)
Percentage of equity
attributable
to the Company
ANEEEREZEDL
Place of Issued ordinary/
incorporation registered share Principal
Name and business capital  Directly  Indirectly ~activities
‘ B BRTEER/
NEAEB MR ER T R A EE B IRERED
Metro Victor Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100  Property Investment
(2018: 100)
ERFRAF BB 10,000/ 7T " e 1(/)8 NERE
%:100)
Instant Achieve Limited* British Virgin Islands US$46,500 100 - Investment holding
(2018: 100)
SEERAR RBEBARES 46,500% 7T - 1(}(\) - REEK
%:100)
Fortune China Bond SP Il Cayman Islands US$17,296,9364 = 29.26  Investment in and trading of
(2018: Nil) debt instruments
Fortune China Bond SP II FMEHS 17,296,936 7T # . 2926 EHETARERER
TN
FE)
Central Wealth Cornerstone The People’s Republic of ~ RMB35,000,000 - 100 Advisory service in debt
(Shanghai) Consulting Co Ltd* China (the “PRC”) (2018: 100) capital market and
investment in the fund
hERD (LE) XA hEARAME AR 35,000,000 - 100 BREATSERRE R
BRAR (TH&]) Tt (Z2-/\ EgRE
£:100)
g Not audited by Moore Stephens CPA Limited or another * REREFEESTMEHRMER AR
member firm of the Moore Global Network Limited REFZHRBPEEMKE R FER
# The shares represented participating shares # P&t +5 2 B AR AR
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, FRIMARRDESFARERNFEAEE
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally XEEFTEXEIBENAEREEFEE
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial EXOZARAMBRAB -AARIEER
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other REBEMHBRARIZEHNIIE S RIER
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the RITEK e

Company, result in particulars of excessive length.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2 —F—NF+_H=+—HI-F/E

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”).

They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for the equity, fund and debt investments and
investment property which have been measured at fair values.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the functional currency of the
Company, and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated. Certain comparative figures
in the consolidated financial statements have been reclassified
in order to confirm with current year’s presentations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+-H=+—HI-FZ

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)
(@) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs

In the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group has applied, for the first time, the following new
and revised standards issued by the HKICPA.

HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the
new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(@)

Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives
and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
HKFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and enquires lessees to account for all leases under
a single on-balance sheet model. Lessor accounting
under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from HKAS
17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either
operating or finance leases using similar principles as
in HKAS 17. Therefore, HKFRS 16 did not have any
financial impact on leases where the Group is the lessor.

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective method of application with the
date of initial application being 1 January 2019. Under
this method, the standard is applied retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits
at 1 January 2019, and the comparative information
for 2018 was not restated and continues to be reported
under HKAS 17.

2.
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2.

86

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(@

Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)
Definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains a lease if
the contract conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified asset and
the right to direct the use of the identified asset. The
Group elected to use the transition practical expedient
allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and HK(FRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed, i.e. the
Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore,
the Group has not reassessed contracts which already
existed prior to the date of initial application and the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied
only to contracts entered into or changed on or after
1 January 2019.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that
contains a lease component, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease and
non-lease component on the basis of their stand-alone
prices. The Group has used a practical expedient that is
available to a lessee, which the Group has adopted, not
to separate non-lease components and to account for
the lease and the associated non-lease components (e.g.,
property management services for leases of properties)
as a single lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2 —F—NF+_H=+—HI-F/E

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(@)

Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)
The Group being a lessee regarding leases previously
classified as operating leases

Nature of the effect of application of HKFRS 16

The Group has entered into lease contracts for various
office properties and staff quarters. As a lessee, the
Group previously classified leases as operating leases
based on the assessment of whether the lease transferred
substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the Group
applies a single approach to recognise and measure
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases,
except for two elective exemptions for leases of low
value assets (elected on a lease by lease basis) and
short-term leases (elected by class of underlying asset).
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for (i) leases of low-value
assets; and (ii) leases, that at the commencement date,
have a lease term of 12 months or less. Instead, the
Group recognises the lease payments associated with
those leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Based on the specific transitional provisions available
under HKFRS 16, lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were
recognised based on the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the applicable lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019. The
right-of-use assets were measured at the amount of the
lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised
in the statement of financial position immediately before
1 January 2019. All these assets were assessed for any
impairment based on HKAS 36 on that date. The Group
elected to present the right-of-use assets separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)
(@) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

2. MEBREREERTESS
BUER (@)

(@)

The Group being a lessee regarding leases previously

classified as operating leases (continued)

Nature of the effect of application of HKFRS 16

(continued)

The Group has elected to apply the following practical
expedients when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019:

e Applied the short-term lease exemptions to leases
with a lease term that ends within 12 months from
the date of initial application; and

J Excluded initial direct costs from measuring the

right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

The impacts arising from the application of HKFRS 16 as
at 1 January 2019 are as follows:

R REEITERBYBEHRSE
A ()

BB B ERE 165 HE ()
AEEREMOBARENELHE
ZHEMEA ()
EREEN B HREENEI6RITE
g ()
AEEER-_T—NF—A—BEMN
BEF WM EERE 165 EEZRA
AT RAITHEEJTA -

e HHEEHBEEREMAZHIRI
BARKLEHERAREHHE
Ef%: &

s TERRVKEMRAHFERE
REEENIEERRA

F:; NF—A—HERZBHHS
WEEAFBIRATEEZZENT

Carrying amounts Carrying
previously amounts under
reported at HKFRS 16 at
31 December 1 January
2018 Adjustments 2019
R-B-N%
AR —R—BRE
—e-N% ERHBHE
T=A=t-H EAZR163 2
ERZEEEE A RESHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Right-of-use assets EREEE - 19,764 19,764
Current Liabilities RBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE - (14,460) (14,460)
Accrual st ER (12,847) 736 (12,111)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAR - (6,040) (6,040)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2 —F—NF+_H=+—HI-F/E

2. MBBREREERTEGH

and principal accounting policies (continued) BUR ()
(@) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (continued) @ HAFIIRLEITEBUBRE
R (@)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The Group being a lessee regarding leases previously

classified as operating leases (continued)

Nature of the effect of application of HKFRS 16

BB HREERNEI65HE (8)
REBAEMHEAKLEHECHE
ZEFEA (&)

EREENGHREENEIRITE

(continued)

The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to
the operating lease commitments as at 31 December

2018 is as follows:

HE (%)
R-ZE-NE—-A—-BZHERER
RZB-NF+_A=+—BZEE
HEAEHRLT

At 1 January

2019
—NEF
—H—H
HK$’000
TET
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at RZZE-\F+ZA=+—H
31 December 2018 B2 REHE AR 22,726
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental R AR S(E K FI R/ 2B E
borrowing rates BE 22,604
Less: Early termination of lease B RAITARIEEE (925)
Practical expedient — leases with lease term A{TEERE-HEHBEXRE
ending within 12 months from the date of Rz BRRR2EARKIEZHEE
initial application (1,179)
Lease liabilities relating to operating leases EHERAEEMBHmE LR
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 FleRERZKLEHEZ
HERE 20,500
Analysed as DR
Current mE 14,460
Non-current FERE 6,040
20,500
When recognising the lease liabilities for leases EHALAMOBREEHEZHEEY
previously classified as operating leases, the Group has HERER AEEEREREMRA

applied incremental borrowing rates of the relevant
group entities at the date of initial application. The
incremental borrowing rates applied by the relevant
group entities range from 3.80% to 5.95% per annum.

KA BB SR B E R SR B AR R
HAKEEERAZBREGTNER
F53.80% £5.95% °
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2.

90

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2019. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(b)

(9]

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measures
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.
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2.

92

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(0

Business combination and goodwill (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.
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Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(0

(d)

Business combination and goodwill (continued)
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstance is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate is
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in
the associate, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associate is
included as part of the Group’s investment in associate.
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Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(d

(e)

Investment in an associate (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being the difference between the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a
part interest in the associate and the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the equity method was
discontinued, recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over the following
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease
terms or 3 years,

whichever is shorter
Motor vehicles, furniture, 3 to 5 years

fixtures and equipment
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Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(e)

®

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment property

Investment property is interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment property is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they
arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year of the retirement
or disposal.
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Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(®

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than financial assets deferred tax assets and investment
property), the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the value in use of the asset or cash-generating unit
to which it belongs and its fair value less costs to sell,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(h)

@)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation), had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets (other
than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to the fair value of the financial assets, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPP1”) on the principal amount outstanding.
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98

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

@

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are classified as measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income,
and fair value through profit or loss. The subsequent
measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows.

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

@

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are
not held for trading. The classification is determined on
an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Dividends are recognised as revenue in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are
not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,
or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

2.

MEBRREREERTES T
BUR (&)

@

REREMEREE (&)
Higqit 2 (&)
BERBZBHEMEEWEEQFET
RZeBMEE (RAKRE)

KA R AR B & FRBA
BRENATESEAFERRE/MT
B 2RBATHORAER BYIFFHIE
BEER BERAKRETAHE ML D
BRETEEEMEERERATE
FIRRHMIBR AT R DRI ERM T &
EEBE-

ZETBMEEN WS KBRS HK
EMTABSER BB &2
BB AR EBEMBERATERANE
= BERENEEENA S ER
BERGABERTHRRSUA - H
EASERNERKRECREE 7D
B 7R B BT 1S SRR R s B R BR SN - 10
HFEBIT @ % F Was X H 2 E R
s AR-ETEBEtbEEEREA
FEFIRNRATABAEETRER
filie

ERERRAFEIRZEHEE

BRBREATEIENEREER
EREEENESREE RYKER
FiEEEBRRE A FEIIRNEE
BE B ERRAFEFENS
BMEE-WANIHEELEDMmK
BEREE MZFEREESIER
FIEBBE - TETA(BEBIHA
AMTETR) RO BEARKIEEE
ZEMETAREERERE R TA
AR -RERELFEFINAE
EFEMEREE  TwmEXBHEN
el A BB RR A FEIED
BEE-BENLXAABEHBTA
AR B R A E B 2R IR
RNEEIIERDE BRI ERE
i BE 59K BR Sk B R D & R #5 AC - B
BB TAAEEREBREEATE
5l

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F#& 99



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

W

4= AR

B PR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+-H=+—HI-FZ

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

@

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments
and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
profit or loss are also recognised as revenue in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated
from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative
if the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss.
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Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

@

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

For financial assets, except for receivables from margin
clients and receivables from cash clients, the Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in
credit risk when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due. The Group considers these financial
assets are in default when contractual payments are 90
days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

0)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

For receivables from margin client and cash clients, the
Group considers there has been a significant increase
in credit risk when clients cannot meet the margin
call requirement and uses the loan-to-collateral value
(“LTV”) to make its assessment. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a margin client
receivable to be in default when there is a margin
shortfall which indicates the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full taking into
account the pledged securities held by the Group. A
margin client receivable is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs.

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that

are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+-H=+—HI-FZ

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

()

(k)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has applied loss rates which are
reference to the default rates from international credit
rating agencies, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, lease liabilities, third party interests
in consolidated investment fund, bank overdrafts and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(k)

0]

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Loans and borrowings (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Leases
Policy under HKFRS 16 applicable from 1 January 2019

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, including contract for acquisition of
ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components,
unless such allocation cannot be made reliably.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+-H=+—HI-FZ

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

0]

Leases (continued)

Policy under HKFRS 16 applicable from 1 January 2019
(continued)

Definition of a lease (continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

(continued)

As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when
the Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of premises that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

J any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

J any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

J an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

106  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited F3Z & BZRE R A 7

2.

MRBREREERFTES
BUER (@)

U]

HE (&)

B =-F—NF—H-HEREZEEEHN
B EERE 6558 B & ()
HENTEE (F)
BRELEEANEXEY (&)

ERATEENE RRBRAURHEN
HERATEBAERHPHEESMB
WEMTE/ IS RAENERHEE
HEBAZRFIZASELEA K-

RHHEMEEEEERS

AEBEHHB ARG A HESH2E
AU TATEEREEERNDE
HEERMEHHERRMR 2 ~EE
THEBEEENERMARRH L
RHHENEEEEEHENEER
AREHAREREZLEMEGRNT
SRR B

ERERE
EREEEXABRRE:

s HEREMNBEDE:

o RHABBHHZAIELNEIM
HEMFRENEKREERS:

o AKBEELNEMIEEEK
ZNd

o ARERFHNMBHRBEEE-
WK 18 P 72 3 B 3 5 AE B B IR
BEHE R RARMPTREM
BB EE L MR AN T ©

FEREEERKANRIMRFINER
BMEBETE YREFNEHFER
ERBELHAER-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

)

Leases (continued)

Policy under HKFRS 16 applicable from 1 January 2019
(continued)

Definition of a lease (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

J the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the option;
and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

2. MEBREREERTESS
BUR (&)

M

HE (8
—EFE-NF— A HEREEEH
BHEERE 16558 B E ()
HENEE (&)
EREEE (&)
7 = B A 72 i iE 70 A B A5 RS RS
HHEHEEEMA®R AERREEE
R FR e B 23 = AT A 4F B 48 SR B 4
E-RA EAREEREMAAE
REHRER(AREERE)ZE
BOEIE -

HEAE

REERBBEY AEERZAKE
NHENKOHREERMGERESR
B-AEHENTNBRER HEE
REMEAHEE MAKEERE
B AR IEEERANRETE -

HEMNREE:

e EEMNF(BEREEBEENNR
AT R HEER

. BEBASZE—EEEAE
NEEHENZHBENK (R
RZAEBAFE)

o ARBERBEXNHBEEERES
1 32 BRI -

o HEEBEMNTEE(KAKEA
BRETEBEEEE) Rk

o RUIHEMERMNR (HES!
RRASEITEERZERILE

) -

REBAHE HERERRNE
REEMNRIEHRE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £ 107



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

VN

wIN 3

B H R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+-H=+—HI-FZ

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

0]

(m)

(n)

(0)

Leases (continued)
Policy under HKAS 17 applicable before 1 January 2019

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and bank balances comprise
cash on hand and cash at banks, which are not
restricted as to use.

Bank balances held on behalf of clients

The Group has classified the clients’” monies as bank
balances held on behalf of customers under the current
assets section of the consolidated financial position
and recognised a corresponding trade payable to
respective clients on grounds that is liable for any loss
or misappropriation of clients” monies.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(p)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
tax authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

J in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:
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2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

J when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of preparation of financial statements

and principal accounting policies (continued)

(@) Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the

customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially

the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ
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performance obligation if one of the following criteria is o

met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and s MAKEEYD FPRKRFEIL
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's REANEBELN PRI
performance as the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances s XAEEEABIEXR(—IE
an asset that the customer controls as the Group BE ZEERAEBREH K
performs; or Bl P 5

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset s AEENBAVRELEHARE

with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good

or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
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consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required

before payment of that consideration is due.
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2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Commission income from securities and futures dealing

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in
time when the customer has received the service from
the Group, generally when the trades are executed.
Commission and handling income on securities and
futures dealing and broking is generally due within two
days after trade date.

Commission income from placing

The performance obligation is satisfied at point in time
when the customer has received the service from the
Group. The customer receives and consume the benefits
provided by the Group when the relevant services are
rendered.

Management fee income

The Group provides asset management and investment
advisory services on diversified and comprehensive
investment products to customers. Management fee
income is charged at a fixed percentage per month on
the net asset value of the fund managed by Group. The
management fee income is recognised when it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
net asset value of the fund is confirmed at each month
end.

Performance fee income

The Group is entitled to performance fee income from
its fund management business when the net asset value
of the fund exceeds certain benchmark at the end of the
relevant performance period. Similar to the management
fee income of the fund, the performance fee income is
recognised when it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the net asset value of the fund is
confirmed at each relevant performance period.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of preparation of financial statements

and principal accounting policies (continued)

(@ Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Property rental income is recognised on a time

proportion basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ
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period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of

the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the

dividend can be measured reliably.

(r) Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees
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render services as consideration for equity instruments

(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees

for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured

reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using the binomial model, further details of which
are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
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ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning

and end of that period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+-H=+—HI-FZ

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(r

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service conditions
have not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of
the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

()]

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group
which operate in the PRC are required to participate
in the central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries are
required to contribute a percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme as specified by the local
municipal government. The contributions are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+-H=+—HI-FZ

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(®

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss with the exception of monetary items that
are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the net investment
is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount is
reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange
differences on those monetary items are also recorded
in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(u)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the
date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(v)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity, fund and debt
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

118 Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited F3iZ & B =R E R A 7

2.

MR REREERFTES
BUR (@)

(v)

NP EE
AEEREREPRBATFENER
R EEREKRE - AFELSR
ARERAMMB2EEEAFR ST
EEEAN NI ERAEAINZ(E
Ko RFEFAEDNERBRNREER
BENIEDS IWEZTBMS
AREBEERABRENNTHETE
EEEXNERAENRIMETE -
BARBEMNMEAAAEEF G —
REEXBBENAFERTER TR
AmsE2RENGEEXRBETEER
RAMKRER LHBEMSL2EENE
REGENSTSE-

FERMEENAFEFEDZEERTS
S2EEBRBBEERERRERKAL
IREHET AR EERERE
K AL H) 2 B3E M E £ LB S /Y

ok
Be /] °

AEEEREREERBERXENEE
AHEFEAFEMNBERM &AL
ERERATBRREAZEREZERD
ER TSR ABE-

AFEERANBRRNGELRE
M EAERAM HENYATE
SHEERTEBEANREERBA
BEHFEBTRATFEER:

F-ER - REREEXREREZRDS
NEE (RERE)

FER - RREERBABBUEER
MEBRBEULTHAERE
AFEOHENE

FoER - RSEERBABBTIER

AYEEAEMSBEANG
fB77%



2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2 —F—NF+_H=+—HI-F/E

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(v)

(w)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

()  the party is a person or a close member of that
party p
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

(Il)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;
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2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)
(w) Related parties (continued)

(continued)

(I

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (I);

a person identified in (I)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Significant judgements and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires the
directors of the Company to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
The directors of the Company have considered the
development, selection and disclosure of the Group’s critical
accounting judgements and estimates.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
the directors of the Company have made the following
judgements which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:—

Determination of consolidation scope of interest in an
investment fund

The Group invested in an investment fund as described in
Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements which
the Group concluded that it has control over the relevant
activities of the fund despite the fact that the Group does not
hold more than half of the participating shares of the fund.

All facts and circumstances have been taken into
consideration by the directors of the Company in the
assessment of whether the Group, as an investor, controls the
investment fund. The principle includes the following three
elements of control: (a) power over the investment fund; (b)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from involvement with
the investment fund; and (c) the ability to use power over the
investment fund to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has effectively held
29.26% interest in a fund established in the Cayman Islands.
In marking the judgement as to whether the Group has control
over the fund, the directors of the Company considered the
fact that the Group is the only general partner of the fund
and is acting as the fund manager of the fund in accordance
with the management agreement. The Group has the rights
to all decision making about the operation of the fund and is
able to direct the relevant activities such as acquisition and
disposal of underlying assets of the fund at its sole discretion.
In addition, the fund manager could not be removed by other
participating shareholders, who are only entitled to the shared
returns on the fund based on its net asset value but did not
have any voting rights to the fund.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+-H=+—HI-FZ

3. Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Judgements (continued)
Determination of consolidation scope of interest in an
investment fund (continued)
After assessment, the directors of the Company concluded
that the Group has control over the fund and is accounted
for as a subsidiary of the Company in accordance with
the requirements of HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements”.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are described below:—

Credit loss allowances of trade receivables from margin clients
and cash clients

The Group calculates the ECLs of trade receivables from
margin clients and cash clients by estimating the probability
of decline in expected future collateral prices and liquidity of
collactural, with adjustment to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

Credit loss allowances of loan receivables from money
lending business and other receivables

The Group calculates the ECLs of loan and interest receivables
from individual clients based on the loss rates which are
reference to the default rates from international credit rating
agencies, with adjustment to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

The Group calculates the ECLs of loan and interest receivables
from corporate clients based on these loss rates which are
reference to the default rates from international credit rating
agencies, adjusted for forward-looking futures specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Credit loss allowances of trade receivables from the placing
and asset management business

The Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has applied loss rates which are reference to the
default rates from international credit rating agencies, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —FE—NF+ _H=—1—HILFEZ

Significant judgements and estimates (continued) 3. A ¥ B & f& 5+ (#)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) THEEfhat (&)
Credit loss allowances of trade receivables from the placing HEREEEEXKZENE ZHRAEE
and asset management business (continued) EiRrE R (58)
As part of a qualitative assessment of whether a counterparty ERURZHTREBENNTEMETEH—
is in default, the Group also considers a variety of instances Bo AEBENEEAIGERATKAIAE
that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. When certain events MOEBBER - BRHLEEFESHE KEE
occur, the Group carefully considers whether the events EHFAEREZEETH RO RETBERSY
should result in determining the counterparties as defaulted. TRREL -
Other than the above, no credit loss allowance has been bBrEXFIMEN BMEREMSMEER
provided for other financial assets as the related credit loss REEFERG RA/KEBEEBER
allowance were immaterial. HWETEK-
As at the end of the reporting date, the credit loss allowance RBEERHR ZREcREENGEEERE
for each type of financial assets is as follows: BEWT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FHERT FET
Loan receivables from money MEEBES 2 BRKER
lending business 20,058 1,774
Trade receivables from securities BERNHEEEERELL
and futures dealing business JEUN B 5 BR K 85,927 6,553
Trade receivables from placing MEREEEBEBEELEZ
and asset management business FEW & 5 B K 239 651
Other receivables E {th JE e 3k08 1,586 9,181
107,810 18,159
Further details are set out in Notes 20, 21, 22 and 23 to the S HFBHREGE T B RERMTE20
consolidated financial statements. 21~ 2223
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+-H=+—HI-FZ

3. Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (including investment in
associates, but excluding goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Related discourse about the impairment on the investment
in an associate are included in Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Valuation of an investment property

Investment property is stated at its fair value. The fair value
at the end of each reporting period was based on a valuation
on this property estimated by the directors of the Company or
conducted by an independent firm of professionally qualified
valuers using direct comparison method which involve
making assumptions, including prices realised on actual
sales of comparable properties, on certain market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair values of the Group's
investment property and the corresponding adjustments to the
gain or loss recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Valuation of share options

As described in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company engaged an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuer to assist in the valuation of the
share options granted during the year ended 31 December
2019. The fair values of options granted under the share
option schemes were determined using the binomial option
pricing model. The significant inputs into the model included
share price at the grant date, risk-free interest rate, exercise
price and expected volatility of the underlying shares. When
the actual results of the inputs differ from management’s
estimate, this will have an impact on share option expenses
and the related share option reserve of the Company.
2,743,020,000 (2018: 1,073,464,000) share options were
granted by the Company during the year ended 31 December
2019. The fair value of the share options granted by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019 was
HK$66,809,000 (2018: HK$44,918,000). The share option
expense of HK$66,809,000 (2018: HK$44,918,000) was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
carried forward to the extent that it is probable (i.e., more
likely than not) that future taxable profits will be available
against which the unused tax losses can be utilised, based
on all available evidence. Recognition primarily involves
judgement regarding the future performance of the particular
legal entity or tax group in which the deferred tax asset has
been recognised. A variety of other factors are also evaluated
in considering whether there is convincing evidence that it
is probable that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will ultimately be realised, such as the existence of taxable
temporary differences, tax planning strategies and the periods
in which estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets and related financial models
and budgets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and to the extent that there is insufficient convincing evidence
that sufficient taxable profits will be available within the
utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses carried
forward, and the asset balance will be reduced and charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+-H=+—HI-FZ

4. Operating segment information

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations and
the products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of the other business
segments. Summary of details of the operating segments are
as follows:

(@ the financial investments and services segment
comprises financial investments and trading, debt, fund
and equity investments and money lending business;

(b) the brokerage and commission segment comprises
provision of trading in securities and futures contracts
services;

(c) the property investments segment comprises leasing of
an investment property; and

(d) the corporate and others segment comprises corporate
income and expense items.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is measured consistently with the Group’s profit/
loss before income tax except that bank interest income, gain
on disposal of a subsidiary, impairment loss on investment
in an associate, share of profit/loss of an associate, gain on
deemed disposal of an associate, finance cost, head office and
corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —FE—NF+ _H=—1—HILFEZ

Operating segment information (continued) 4. REIEEH ®)

Segment assets exclude cash and bank balances, investment DHEETBRRERBITEF KN —H
in an associate, deferred tax assets and other unallocated BERNRZWE BEEHBEEERHEMA
head office and corporate assets as these assets are managed DEBIHRNREE AREZZFEENR
on a group basis. RHAEAREIR -

Segment liabilities exclude notes payable, bank overdrafts, DBEETBERNRE RITEX RIT
bank borrowings, other borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax EX HMER ENHE BRERABE
liabilities and other unallocated head office and corporate REMARSERABRABAG ARZSE
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis. BEDREAERER-

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference DEHBEENBEDN2EZERBATHEH
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the ETE=N2EEBET

then prevailing market prices.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z2-hAF+-A=+—-BHLEE

Financial Brokerage
investments and and Property Corporate
services commission investment and others  Consolidated
;E‘ji%ﬁﬁ o Al S, Sz
k%  KERAE NERE  LEREM &E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$/000
THET FHT THET TER TER
Segment revenue: TEBA:
External IR 25,468 903,166 1,350 17,760 947,744
Intersegment sales PEREE 2,646 = 1,522 4,168
905,812 1,350 19,282 951,912
Elimination 8 (2,646) = (1,522) (4,168)
Total it 903,166 1,350 17,760 947,744
Segment results PEEE 302,220 (43,989) (84,734) 197,384
Reconciliation: HiE:
Bank interest income RITFBIA 352
Gain on deemed disposal of RALE—RBERR
an associate W 105,739
Unallocated expenses APERX (1,460)
Finance costs HBER (60,561)
Share of profit of an associate e — & 2 &2 & 7,065
Profit before income tax BR BT 5 A8 248,519
Income tax expense FriERAX (40,132)
Profit for the year TERRT 208,387
Assets and liabilities BERAR
Segment assets PEEE 1,282,646 628,757 390,049 22,028 2,323,480
Reconciliation: Bk
Unallocated assets ROMEE 103,682
Total assets EERE 2,427,162
Segment liabilities NEEE 110915 122,337 33,977 267,316
Reconciliation: i
Unallocated liabilities KAk aE 944,499
Total liabilities BfER%E 1,211,815
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For the year endled 31 December 2019 B2 —F—NF+ _H=1—HILFEZ

4. Operating segment information (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. REPWERE (#)
BE-_T—N\GE+-_A=+—ALEE

Financial
investments and  Brokerage and Property  Corporate and
services commission investment others  Consolidated
BBRE
kR®  BEREE MERE rEREM )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx THER THx TER THx
Segment revenue: kLN
External IR 17,282 150,130 6,650 392 174,454
Intersegment sales NERHEE = 7267 = = 7,267
17,282 157,397 6,650 392 181,721
Elimination e - (7,267) = = (7,267)
Total @5 17,282 150,130 6,650 392 174,454
Segment results PEBRE 2,859 56,165 11,190 (62,481) 7,733
Reconciliation: HE:
Bank interest income RITHEWA 12
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —HEMEA Rz Wz 65,620
Impairment loss on investment in R EX BN A EER
an associate (51,257)
Unallocated expenses AAERY (2,664)
Finance costs HEER (64,407)
Share of loss of an associate AME—RBE AR BE (13,912)
Loss before income tax BRRAIEE (58,875)
Income tax expense FERRY (8,186)
Loss for the year AEEFR (67,061)
Assets and liabilities BERER
Segment assets NEAE 1,612,101 503,780 435,057 10,985 2,561,923
Reconciliation: #k
Unallocated assets FOEREE 328,976
Total assets BERE 2,890,899
Segment liabilities PEERE 2,420 117,464 1,639 13,102 134,625
Reconciliation: HE:
Unallocated liabilities AOEAE 907,452
Total liabilities BREE 1,042,077
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 =F—NF+=—A=—+—HIFFEZ

4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. REIEEHR )
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-ZE-NF+ZA=+-HLEFE

Financial Brokerage
investments and Property Corporate
and services commission investment and others  Consolidated
BERE
kR%E  KERES MERE  LERAM &8

HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$/000
TRR TER TRR TER TR

Depreciation on property, plant ~ #1% - BE K& BN E
and equipment 2,146 1,556 3,710

Depreciation on right-of-use EREEENE

assets

Credit loss allowances on loan ~ MEEBEL 7 BHER
receivables from money ZEEFBRRRRR
lending business, net

Credit loss allowances on trade ~ EHNHEEELBEL
receivables from securities and 2 JEWME HEHZEE
futures dealing business, net BRERIE

(Reversal of)/provision for credit  BeE R EEERERES

loss allowances on trade ZEKEGRTZEE
receivables from placingand BB EfE (BE) /
asset management business, HIRFE

net

Reversal of credit loss allowances &{ 78 « i & F 2 fth e
on financial assets included WHERE eREE
in prepayments, deposits and 2 5 S BREBEHEF
other receivables, net ® ) (7,595)

Share of profit of an associate 71 & 2 7 & ) (7,065)

Gain on deemed disposal of ~ RALE—HBERRZ
an associate Wiz (105,739) (105,739)

Loss on revaluation of investment EfE 1% E¥E 7 g
property

Write off of property, HsEmE BE LR
plant and equipment
Capital expenditure* BERRX
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and E BARXBERNEWE BEREKE-
equipment.
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4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. f
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Financial
investments  Brokerage and Property Corporate
and services commission investment and others Consolidated
HBRE
R TRkEe NERE TEREM FA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET TAx TET
Depreciation e - 495 31 1,492 2,018
Crediit loss allowances on loan HEEBELEZBHERZ
receivables from money lending ~ EEBEAFEFE
business, net 1,297 = = = 1,297
Credit loss allowances on trade BHERHMEEEERESRY
receivables from securities and EHESEREER
futures dealing business, net BREFE - 6,219 - - 6,219
Credit loss allowances on trade ~ EEREEEEZRELY
receivables from placing and RRESEHZEER
asset management business, net  BARFHE = 649 - 2 651
Credit loss allowances on financial ﬁmlﬁ e REMEY
assets included in prepayments, ~ FEEEZEBEER
deposits and other receivables, EERRETE
net 9,181 - - - 9,181
Share of loss of an associate HMEBERRZER - - - 13,912 13,912
Gain on revaluation of investment ~ Ef5 R E ¥ 2 W&
property - - (5,000 - (5,000)
Gain on disposal of items on MENE BERFZEER
property, plant and equipment b€ - - = (6) (6)
Capital expenditure* BRET* = 1,151 = 39 1,190
% Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and & BARXBERNEWE BEREKHE-

equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —FE—NF+ _H=—1—HILFEZ

Operating segment information (continued) 4.
Geographical information

The following tables present derived revenue from external
customers for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,

and certain non-current assets information as at 31 December
2019 and 2018, by geographical region.

Hong Kong
£

ReESFER (@)
i & & R

TREINBE-FT-NAFR_FT-N\F
TZA=+—RLEFERBEED ZKA
IRBEFPZRAERR _TE-AFR-F
—NFEt+t-A=t—RARWRIAHZET
FERBDEEER -

The PRC
i At

2018 2019 2018 2018

ZE-N\E ek T \F —E-N\EF
HK$/000 EEGECHON  HKS$'000 EEGICIOM  HK$000 EEEIEXe)
TERT FTABL TERT FTABL TERT TAEL

Revenue from external RENAEP 2 Wi

customers
Non-current assets FRBEE MEEWERE 1,976,485
Non-current assets* FmEEE* 412,773 664,798
* Excluded equity investments at fair value through other

comprehensive income, deferred tax assets, loan receivables
from money lending business and deposits and prepayment.

Information about major customers and suppliers

The aggregate revenue during the year attributable to the
Group's five largest customers was 68.04% of the Group's
total revenue, of which 37.07% was made to the largest
customer.

There was no single customer that contributed to 10% or
more of the Group’s total revenue during the year ended
31 December 2018.

There was no single supplier that contributed to 10% or more
of the Group's total purchase during the year (2018: Nil).

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors of the Company, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interests
in the Group’s customer or supplier during the year.

885,533 174,454 62,211 - 947,744

174,454
1,976,485
664,798

15,078 [ 1059201
1482 [ 427508

* TEEEREMEHKERAFEIIRZ
AR E RERBEE REEXEBELE
ZRRERRIES RIANFIE-

FHEEEFREEENER
FRAAEENTIAEFROKES HAE
REEBYE68.04% HPH KT PG
37.07% °

HIF2018F12A31B L EE HiEgeg —F%
FEAREEBUEERIT10% kA E o

FA MEE-—HERGAREAREE
B10% AL (ZF—N\F: &) -

FRAARBDEFTHREMRENBEARL
EARR (BARBESAA SEEAR
BIDBITIRAE5% A ERR)BIERAE
BHEPAMHER AR EMNEaEs-
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For the year endled 31 December 2019 B2 —F—NF+ _H=1—HILFEZ

5. Revenue, other income and (losses) or gains, 5. WA HMWAR (FE) KUK
net =R

An analysis of revenue and other income and (losses) or gains, BRAWA - EmUA K (EE) WS F5E
net is as follows: 2T
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Revenue N
Revenue from contracts BB BT BRI E 155 #E A
with customers within the RE G R R & &4
scope of HKFRS 15 recognised at KA
a point in time
Commission income from securities BHEEHEEE A WA
and futures dealing 9,690 21,015
Commission income from placing & 2 MElA 790,589 97,737
Performance fee income RIBUA 3,664 =
Management fee income EBBEWA 74,786 392

Revenue from other sources outside BB IR ERE 155 #

the scope of HKFRS 15 S0 B HIRMUA
Losses on disposal of equity HEBBBSZEATEIRZ

investments at fair value through B EZER

profit or loss (25,585) (14,357)
Gains on disposal of debt investments {H & & BERE N FETIKRZ

at fair value through profit or loss BEBRE 2 W 142 -
Dividend income from investment in ~ _EWRAFEHKRE 2R EWA

listed equity securities 7,523 -
Interest income from money WE FE 2 F 2 A

lending business 36,982 31,639
Interest income from securities margin 5 #1R 5 & 2 F B YA 41,519 31,378
Interest income from debt investments {BE#5&E 2 F 2 WA 7,084 =
Property rental income MEE T WA 1,350 6,650

947,744 174,454

132  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited 73 & H12 i 5 R 2 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 =F—NF+=—A=—+—HIFFEZ

Revenue, other income and (losses) or gains, 5. WA - Hi AR (E58) H K

net (continued) BEE @
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Other income and (losses) or Hib AR (BH8) = W F 8
gains, net
Gain on disposal of items of property, LEWHE HERZEEE 2
plant and equipment W - 6
Bank interest income RITH B M A 352 12
Handling fee income FEEWA 3,773 4,196
Change in third party interests in RiZaREESZE=T#R
consolidated investment fund* g+ (13,844) =
Others Hb 2,540 933
7,179) 5,147
& This amount represented the net change in net asset value 2 ZeREE=ZTRREEREREESE
of consolidated investment fund attributable to third-party EFEZFEY - KXEERNGERELES
shareholders. Details of the Group’s interest in consolidated Em 2 FERBENGE M BEmRNE29 o

investment fund are disclosed in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Finance costs 6. HMEEH
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBERDIWT
2019 2018
—E-NEF T N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEF S 8,726 11,749
Interest on other borrowings* HiEER B+ 42,489 45,474
Interest on bank overdrafts fETT BEFE 3,258 2,779
Interest on notes payable FEN RIEF B 4,431 4,395
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGNE 1,130 =
Others HAf 527 10
60,561 64,407
& Margin loan interest of approximately HK$25,662,000 (2018: e REEERF E 425,662,000 T (=&
HK$20,375,000) and unsecured other borrowings interest of — A\ :20,375, ooo&ﬂ&ﬁtﬁﬁﬁﬁtt%
approximately HK$16,827,000 (2018: HK$25,099,000) are B 5 416,827,000 T (Z T — N\ F:
included in the interest on other borrowings. 25,099,000/ 7)) IR HE M EEF B AR
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Profit/(loss) before income tax 7.
The Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

BRFTIS B
75 B0 TS BLALE A (B538) Tyl

AER, (E5#E)

(FEA)ATIHEBRZER:

Depreciation on e
Right-of-use assets (Note 16) ERREE (KEie)
Property, plant and equipment ME BB MR (HEE14)
(Note 14)
Employee benefit expense (including EERAMAX (BREEFME
directors’ remuneration (Note 8)): (Mt3E8) ) -
Wages and salaries TERF®
Equity-settled share option iR E 2 BIRELE 38
arrangements, net
Retirement benefit scheme RIRTE A E IR
contributions
Minimum lease payments under KREMEE T2 HERERNK
operating leases
Auditor’s remuneration A

Credit loss allowance on loan
receivables from money
lending business, net

Credit loss allowance on trade
receivables from securities and
futures dealing business, net

(Reversal of)/provision of credit
loss allowance on trade receivables
from placing and asset management
business, net

(Reversal of)/provision of credit
loss allowance on financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, net

Write off of property, plant and
equipment (Note 14)

Gain on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Loss/(gain) on revaluation of
investment property

Foreign exchange differences, net

BEEBELEZRUERZEER
BiERE TR

B ( %é‘@) /.:HE/%%E
WX BE R&m (HE14)
BEHREMEZEE (W)
PE X EER - FE

REEE 2 Wk

*

The amount represented short-term lease payments for the year *

ended 31 December 2019 under HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
retirement benefit schemes in future years (2018: Nil).
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2019 2018
—E-hE —T-)N\F
HK$’000 H K$f00_()
THET FAT
20,303 —
3,710 2,018
24,013 2,018
186,694 42,290
66,809 44,918
2,224 1,315
255,727 88,523
1,454 % 16,577
1,774 3,480
1,297

6,219

651

(7,595) 9,181
9 _
(6)
(5,000)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 =F—NF+=—A=—+—HIFFEZ

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

EEMS

R EMRE BB R A A ZE383(1) )
b)) RO BECARRR (FEEEFNEER)
HOIE2BEBECFRNESHE O T

2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT THET
Fees we 898 529
Salaries, allowances and benefits in ¥4 28 R EWEF
kind 16,467 8,234
Equity-settled share option SRz BRELH FRR
arrangements, net 11,159 29,444
Retirement benefit scheme RORAE A &R
contributions 112 111
28,636 38,318
During the year ended 31 December 2019, certain directors BE_T NG+ _A=+—HILFE:
were granted 487,480,000 (2018: 635,600,000) share options, 8 CANYNEIE- 8 2IJ ETEERRSE
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share %ﬁ$%ﬁ'\]ﬁ|§f§ﬁﬁﬁ§%487 480,000 (=
option schemes of the Company, further details of which are T — J\4F : 635,600,00017 ) B B AE - i — 25
set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. BN S W MR8 - ZF B
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised BAREBEREBARNGE B RER
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the date of ERQFEIRBELARERE MR&ZEF
share options granted, was determined as at the date of grant FEGABRENERY BEDHA L
and the amounts recognised in the consolidated statements EEHERBEEHA-
of profit or loss for the years were included in the above
directors’ remuneration disclosures.
Equity-
Salaries,  settled share Retirement
allowances option benefit
and benefits arrangements, scheme Total
Fees in kind net  contributions  remuneration
RgEE 2
Fe 2¥ BREZE RIKEA
#fe REWEA B8 sHEIfR MensE
2019 “E-NF HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THERL TER TER TER
Executive directors HITESE
Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman) ~ FREER %4 (£/%)

Mr. Xu Ke (Chief executive officer) &1 2L & (11745

Mr. Yu Qingrui RESEE

Ms. Lam Hay Yin it

Independent non-executive BUFBTES
directors

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong PEREE

Mr. Wu Ming R#ATE

Mr. Liu Hongwei (appointed on ~ ZIRE%EE (R=Z—nF
1 October 2019) TA—-REZHE)

RRERE(R-F-1&F
TA—RE{E)

Mr. ChenYouchun (resigned on
1 October 2019)

16,467
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8. Directors’ remuneration (continued) 8. EEME
Equity-
Salaries,  settled share Retirement
allowances option benefit
and benefits  arrangements, scheme Total
Fees in kind net  contributions  remuneration
EEE
e RMR BREZS EIRTER
ik EYEdl e BN Meen
2018 ZEN\E HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T T TBT TR
Executive directors HTEZE
Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman) ~ FREER L4 (£/8) = 5,621 5,889 31 11,541
Mr. Xu Ke (Chief executive % e (TTHAEE)
officer) (appointed on (RZB-N\F
27 February 2018)* ZRAZTtBEZM): = 1,007 5,889 = 6,896
Mr. Yu Qingrui REHLE = 124 5,889 6 6,019
Ms. Lam Hay Yin HEHz+ = 621 5,889 31 6,541
Ms. Lee Chau Man Ada (resigned ZMH L L (RZZ—N\F
on 23 November 2018) T-AZ+=H&E) - 861 5,888 83 6,792
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong BERLE 150 - - - 150
Mr. Chen Youchun REELL 240 - - - 240
Mr. Wu Ming (appointed on REXE (R-FB-N\F
2 October 2018) TRAZREZE) 39 - - - 39
Mr. Mai Qijian (reisgned on RHRAE (RZT-N\F
2 October 2018) TA=AE{) 100 - - - 100
529 8,234 29,444 111 38,318
g Mr. Xu Ke was appointed as the executive director and chief g RAEER_ZE-—NF_AZ++BEZ

executive officer on 27 February 2018.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2018: Nil).

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2018: Nil).
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Five highest paid employees 9.
The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2018: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set

out in Note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year

of the remaining three (2018: two) highest paid employees

who are not a director of the Company are as follows:

hfuBEHHES
ERENSEHFHEEREMS (-2
—N\EZREF BEIHEHER
EXMEs FRBT=A(—F— )\
ME)FARFAEEZREFHIER 2
SEEMT

12,8

Salaries, allowances and benefits
in kind

Equity-settled share option
arrangements, net

Retirement benefit scheme
contributions

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

Nil to HK$6,500,000
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000
HK$8,000,001 to HK$9,500,000
HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000
HK$10,000,001 to HK$60,500,000
HK$60,500,001 to HK$61,000,000
HK$61,000,001 to HK$65,000,000
HK$65,000,001 to HK$65,500,000

2019 2018
—ZE—-hEF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET AT
o EMEEDEH
132,305 10,787
PR sEE BB EL B8
3,532 3,869
RORAE FIFT Bl
52 35
135,889 14,691
MeNFTIHBEZHEST R T HE
BAZMT:
2019 2018
—E-h#F = — \F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
£ %6,500,000/8 7T -
6,500,001 7T £7,000,00078 7T 1
7,000,001 7T 27,500,000 7T -
7,500,001/ 7T 28,000,000/ 7T 1
8,000,001,8 7L £9,500,000/%8 T -
9,500,001,8 7L 2=10,000,0007% JT -
10,000,001 7T £60,500,0007% 7T -
60,500,001,8 7 261,000,000/ 7T -
61,000,001,8 7T £65,000,000/% 7T -
65,000,001%8 7L £65,500,000/%8 T -
2
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10.

Five highest paid employees (continued)

During the year, share options were granted to one (2018:
one) non-director highest paid employee in respect of his
service to the Group under the share option schemes of the
Company, further details of which are set out in Note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on the date of share options
granted, was determined at the date of grant and the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the years were included in the above non-director highest
paid employees” remuneration disclosures.

Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable in the
PRC in the current year have been calculated at the rates of
tax prevailing in the PRC in which the Group operates, based
on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

10.

EFVBRSHEMES &)

ER —%(CE—\E —R)SSHE
EEEERBADTZ BRE BN Y
AEEMRGEZEBRE E— SFBER
A BEEEM ST RE - 2O N E
HEREANERA BN ERR Y BRE
ATEDRELASET BERZEEE
BABREFRANSBEOHA LSS
GAEEREZHBEARF-

PS8 %%

EBNAH -EERAEEEBELY
ff 5t A SR B I 1 6.5% (=B — U
16.5% ) B % 5t » A4 [ 7 B8 SR DL
ZHEARRBATAN KEWZRER
B0 2 A A 2 AT B
EHH

2019 2018
—EB-AF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Current — Hong Kong B —&8
Charge for the year FREXH 28,511 11,041
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE - (42)
Current — the PRC BER—Hp
Charge for the year FREXH -
Deferred (Note 34) ST (PFiIaE34) (2,813)
Income tax expense PSR X 8,186

138 Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited 73 & H1E i 5 R 2 7




10.

11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —FE—NF+ _H=—1—HILFEZ

Income tax expense (continued)

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to
profit/(loss) before income tax using the statutory rates for the
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax position at the effective
tax rates is as follows:

10.

Ry A )
{6 FA A A B B A BB 40 BB A B FR AR 1O
R AR R E Y RBADEFN, (F8)
AR FFEREY BRERMRTE
SBREN 2 WEE T -

BRBLATE F, (B R)

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Tax at the statutory tax rates BEEMERTE 2HIE
(Gains)/losses attributable to

an associate

Income not subject to tax REBIA
Expenses not deductible for tax NEHIH R X

Tax losses not recognised AERTIEEE
Tax losses utilised EBANIEEE
Temporary difference not recognised 7 & 33 & I %= 58
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBEARE
Tax concession 75 R

Tax relief of 8.25% on first
HK$2 million assessable profit

8.25% 2 TIB R &

\\\\\

— R R R ES (KE) EE

BERV R E 2R

Tax at the effective rate

2019 2018
—E-hF —EF-N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET AT
248,519 (58,875)
44,184 (10,146)
(1,166) 2,441
(21,326) (11,192)
22,361 16,129
8,618 10,057
(14,230) (719)
1,876 1,823
- (42)
(20) =
(165) (165)
40,132 8,186

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Dividends

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of any final dividend for the year (2018: Nil)

11.

RZE—NFE=R=_+—RH FEIzre
BB CE—EFRBE (R (B75)IE
MEZR) ([ZER]) 5| AFEH AR -
ZEER-_ZTE—N\E=ZA-F+/\BHEEE
BAEERE INBATIZ - REFEHMK
Hl- A BEEEEE E2,000000%8 T% T
1 1% i %£8.25% S - i 48 82,000,000
TC )% R 8 IR B 2 16.5% BT - TR A& F15
HRRRH N EEER RN B EER6.5%
B &5 — TR R R

Bﬁ/%\
AARIEFLERZRANFRIRMNERR
MBS (ZT—N\F E)-
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12. Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to

owners of the Company

The calculation of the basic earnings per share (2018:
basic loss per share) amount is based on the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$208,387,000 (2018: loss of approximately
HK$67,061,000), and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue of 14,718,040,000 (2018:
13,856,376,000).

Adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the year ended 31 December 2019 in
respect of a dilution effect on the basic earnings per share
amounts presented.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amounts presented for the year ended 31 December 2018
in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share options
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per
share amounts presented.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share are based on:

12. ZABREEANELERERN

(E#’)
ERERZRN(ZE-—NF - BREALREB
B)SBENBREBEARGHEE AREFE NG

F#49208,387,0008 L (ZZE— N\F: 45
867,061,000/ 7T ) &E%éﬁ =@z m
SE 19 814,718,040, oooﬂﬁ (Z=—N\F:

13,856,376,0000% ) 5T &

EREREARTIZ2IISELBEYE
HRE-F-AFT A=t HILEE
2 BRBARTZ 2T S BIELBE -

HREARTTEBRESERERNERZZ
JeMARBEYE HIBHBE_Z
—NF+ZA=+—"HLEFEZERER
BRzE2EELERAR-

FREAREFERN (BE) HER TS
CRERCE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT TET
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to S+ HESREARREF AT~
owners of the Company, used in (BR)FAARRAEAA
the basic and diluted earnings/(loss)  FE{f F M@ F1, (E548)
per share calculations 208,387 (67,061)
Number of shares
KRG EE
2018
—EF-N\F
‘000
TR
Shares Hﬁ’@
Weighted average number of AESREARRT (EE)
ordinary shares in issue during FTREANE BT BRMNE
the year used in the basic earnings/ %k
(loss) per share calculations 14,718,040 13,856,376
Share options issued by the Company 782 &) 81T 2 BB A% i
(Note) (MF3E) 79,992 -
Weighted average number of SEEREERN, (BR)
ordinary shares in issue during FRAF AL 1T EBRNE
the year used in the diluted earnings/ %k
(loss) per share calculations 14,798,032 13,856,376
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12. Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to

13.

owners of the Company (continued)
Note:

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2018 did not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options since it would result in a decrease in the

loss per share.

Disposal of a subsidiary

On 25 April 2018, the Group disposed of its entire interest
in Goodview Assets Limited, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group to Future World Financial
Holdings Limited (“FWF”) for acquisition of 1,793,103,448
consideration shares in FWF, which represented 15.48%
equity interest in FWF and the equity interest in FWF was
accounted for as investment in an associate of the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

12. ZAFHEEBEANEEERERN
(B518) (@)

B aE:

BE-Z-N\E+-RA=1+THILFEEKREE
BEZAETRBRRITERRR ZHARITEE
et TENEEEHERERRD -

13. HE—RKBA T
RIE—N\EMA-+HHE NEBEMRKK
HREFIERARAT ([ARKHERLSE])
HEEME 2 E M EB A 7 Goodview Assets
Limited 2 & 2BAE %5 - LAULEE1,793,103,448
BARRERSBMRERG (hARRHERS
Bh15.48% WE EREBEZZ—N\F+=
BA=+—BLFE KRRERSm@AEA
RIEABREERBENT 2184 -

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
TET
Net assets disposed of: P EEEFE:
Investment property REWMHE 400,000
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERRIE - Re KA M EK I 35
Other payables and accruals HMENRIBRESER (1,007)
Bank borrowings RITEE (137,338)
261,690
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HWEB ARz K 80,793
Elimination of unrealised profits and losses on HIHEBENRIRHRZ AREER
transactions with the associate* (Note 18) A R Es R (MFE18) (15,173)
Gain on disposal attributed to the Group EENAKE HE WS 65,620
Satisfied by: BATHAER
Acquisition of consideration shares of Wi R Rt R & BB
FWF (1,793,103,448@HK$0.191) (1,793,103 ,4488% & %0.19178 7T ) 342,483

* The Group considered that the transaction resulting in loss
of control of subsidiary was sale or contributions of assets to
an associate prescribed in HKAS 28 where gains and losses
resulting from transaction between the Group and its associate
to be recognised only to the extent of unrelated interests in the

associate.

* AEERL BHREMB AR ZEH 2
ZROREEEHERRETEBEE
Q285 FTRI A Z B & A R] M AN KB &
HBERNRZXFEEN R G REBER/KE
REZE R BRE BA R T AR -
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14. Property, plant and equipment 14. Y% -BERRE

Motor vehicles,
Leasehold furniture, fixtures

improvements and equipment Total
HEWE RE R
£ RERRE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THER THET
At 1 January 2019: R=ZB-RFE-A—R:
Cost ZEN 6,482 5,980 12,462
Accumulated depreciation RETIE (4,850) (3,508) (8,358)
Net carrying amount RmFE 1,632 2,472 4,104
At 1 January 2019, net of R-Z—NE—AF—8"

accumulated depreciation kR REHITER 1,632 2,472 4,104
Additions RE 12,245 2,858 15,103
Write-off (Note 7) WisE (BsE7) - 9) )
Depreciation charged for the year FRITE S H (MiF7)

(Note 7) (2,474) (1,236) 3,710)
Exchange realignment BE 50 B - (22) (22)
At 31 December 2019, net of RZZE—hF+=A

accumulated depreciation =+—RB HBRRF

wER
At 31 December 2019: R-F—NE

t+=A=+—8:
Cost ZEN 18,727 8,799 27,526
Accumulated depreciation R2IE (7,324) 4,736) (12,060)
Net carrying amount FEFE 11,403 4,063 15,466
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14. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 14. Y% BERRKHE (80

Motor vehicles,
Leasehold  furniture, fixtures

improvements and equipment Total
HEWE ARE A
K& KENRE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FTET FET
At 1 January 2018: RZZE—-N\F—A—8:
Cost ZEN 6,448 4,959 11,407
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (3,605) (2,796) (6,401)
Net carrying amount Rm%E 2,843 2,163 5,006
At 1 January 2018, net of RZBE-NF—A—B"
accumulated depreciation MR EAFTER 2,843 2,163 5,006
Additions NE 34 1,156 1,190
Disposals HE - (74) (74)
Depreciation charge for the year ~ FRITE S H (MiF7)
(Note 7) (1,245) (773) (2,018)
At 31 December 2018, net of RZE—N\F
accumulated depreciation +-A=+—8"
kR R ER 1,632 2,472 4,104
At 31 December 2018: R-ZF-—N\&F
+ZA=+—8:
Cost BN 6,482 5,980 12,462
Accumulated depreciation RiE (4,850) (3,508) (8,358)
Net carrying amount REVFE 1,632 2,472 4,104
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15. Investment property 15. REYF

R—A—HBZEKEE

Carrying amount at 1 January

(Loss)/gain from a fair
value adjustment

7

NERABZ (BR) s

Carrying amount at 31 December

RT-—A=+—BZKEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
435,000 430,000
(45,000) 5,000
390,000 435,000

The Group held one investment property as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 which is located at No.2 Lincoln Road in
Kowloon.

The Group’s investment property was revalued on
31 December 2019 and 2018 based on valuation performed
by Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, an independent
professionally qualified valuer. Each year, the Group’s
management and the chief financial officer decide, after
approval from the audit committee, to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations
of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group’s financial
controller have discussions with the valuers on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results twice a year when the
valuation is performed for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The investment property was leased to a third party under
operating leases, further summary details of which is disclosed
in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s investment
property was pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group (Note 32(b)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 =F—NF+=—A=—+—HIFFEZ

15. Investment property (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s investment property:

15. REWHE )
ATLEBR
TERIIRAEMEZEYE Y AV EHEE
w

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
WER EXTHE BEARRT
mEHRE BWARE HBERAZE
(B—EB&R) (B5=E#&) (B=EH&R) #Hat
2019 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-hEF TAERT FTER TART TER
Recurring fair value IS o)
measurement for: MRFEEFE:
Property at No.2 L RS B25% 2
Lincoln Road LES 390,000 390,000
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AR ERAEHE BATAEBE
mHRE ) A BUE E N6
(B—E®R) (B=BH&) (B5=E#%) st
2018 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NF FET THET FET THET
Recurring fair value EJET?'J BHIKE
measurement for: NEEFE:
Property at No.2 T_LE’WF)EJ B2k 2
Lincoln Road % - - 435,000 435,000
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15. Investment property (continued) 15.

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair value of the investment property is determined using
direct comparison method by reference to recent sale price
of comparable properties on a price per square foot basis.
Below is a summary of the significant inputs to the valuation
of investment property:

BEYE (@)
AFEER (H)
BEME Y ATENSRBAA LB YRR
HEERAEEL B ARG FEHRERE
HERE T o T SO Bh IR B ) B 1T 1 R
EEPN PN ¢ E

Relationship of unobservable

Significant unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
OLE-2-3 P8 ¢ 3=
EXATUEEGARE TUBEEGABBHE D EHEER
(Discount)/premium on quality of -7.31% to 13.84% The higher premiums
property (e.g. location, size and (2018: =7.12% to 0.8%) for the quality of

condition of the property)

WEEEr (FE) EE -7.31% %13.84%

the Group's property,
the higher the fair value

AEEMELZNEELS

(Blan =R b B - R AR ) (ZB—N\F: —7.12%%0.8%) N ERIES

Selling price per unit of market HK$44,978 to HK$62,206

The higher the selling

comparable, taking into account (2018: HK$61,064 to HK$67,652) price per unit, the higher

different such as age and location
MGA & LR A AN B EE 44,9788 TL£62,206/5 7T

the fair value
BEMNEESS  ATFEIES

(Lt Rwnigh M2 E=8) ZE—N\F:61,064BTLE

67,6528 7C)

There were no changes to the valuation technique during the
years.

The fair value measurement is based on the investment
property’s highest and best use, which does not differ from
their actual use.

During the years, there were no transfers into or out of Level
3 or any other Level.
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16. Right-of-use assets

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —FE—NF+ _H=—1—HILFEZ

16. ERAREEE

Premises
LIES
HK$’000
T

Cost:

At 1 January 2019 recognised upon
the application of HKFRS 16

B
R-ZE—hhF—A—B (REAEE
BT REERI 165718 TR

Additions NE

At 31 December 2019 R-ZF-NAF+-A=+—~H
Accumulated depreciation: REtTE:

At 1 January 2019 R-E-NF—A—H
Charge for the year (Note 7) FRZH (H5E7)

At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=+—8H
Net carrying amount: BREFE

At 31 December 2019

R-E-h&E+=ZB=+—8H

The right-of-use assets represent the Group’s rights to use EREEEEARENER (N TF—Z2=F)
underlying leased premises as offices for its operations NREBELEHELHRELEXMAEHER
under operating lease arrangements over the lease terms, EMEERMAENEN  HIRKAR R
which ranged from 1 to 3 years, which are stated at cost ST E R R RERIE (NBE)FIEE WL
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment HEBBNEMEFRTSELRAR-
losses, if any, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease

liabilities.

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other BRROEARBEZHEEEZBMMEIN
than the security interests in the leased assets that are held HEWZEIL EEMERRSG HEEETD
by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for S REB A E IR

borrowing purposes.

2019
—EF-NF
HK$'000
TATT

Fixed payments
Expense relating to short-term leases

& 5E 5 3k 18,649
EHEERERY 1,454

Total cash outflow for leases

HERSRLAE 20,103
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16.

17.

18.

148

Right-of-use assets (continued) 16. EAEEE (@)
Leases committed B
During the year, the Group entered into a new lease to lease RERN AEEFTYZ —EBHAEAHEEM
the underlying asset as an office in Hong Kong that is not yet BMEAEERBARLE ZMEERRMIG
commenced, with the non-cancellable period of 2 years from BT - AMEENMKEABRFM
the commencement date of the lease in February 2020. The F S BT RS o 50 S BT HRICEE HA A 9 R SRR
total future undiscounted cash flows over the non-cancellable IR &M 8 M E R 4920,996,000/8 7T - H
period amounted to approximately HK$20,996,000, of 11 499,129,000/ JT A 1A $ &5 HARE) A5 R 18 —
which approximately HK$9,129,000 is payable within 1 FAZAT - RAI11,867,00078 7T 78 7 & HA
year from the end of the reporting period and approximately REREBEE - FEINR=ZFRNf -
HK$11,867,000 is payable over 1 year but less than 3 years
from the end of the reporting period.
Intangible assets 17. BLEE
The intangible asset is of indefinite useful life as it has no BEEYEINPR HABRAIEHSF
expiry date and represents the Futures Exchanges Trading R UWREERGREERAR QG ZH
Right in Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited. RS-
Investment in an associate 18. RBEE R 2 RE
2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAET
Share of net assets DIHEEFE 225,194
Goodwill on acquisition e B B g 2 51,257
276,451
Provision for impairment BB (51,257)
225,194
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18. Investment in an associate (continued)
Particulars of the associate are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Particulars of registration and

18. REFE QT 2 ’RE ()

il
=

BlZFBMT:

Percentage

of ownership
interest
attributable to

Name issued shares held business the Group  Principal activities
AR, REMD G
e RTRG AR & FrEfERERS
=L 21 #Y 3t 36 Bk EEXK
FWF* Ordinary shares Cayman Islands/ (Note (a))  Investment in and trading
HK$0.001 each Hong Kong 18.70% of securities, provision of
financing services and property
investment
AREREH* BREEC0IET HEHB FE (HiE@) KBEREEES RHBE
2 & AR 18.70% R R RIEA

*

Listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”)

The associate is accounted for using the equity method.

Notes:

(a)

As disclosed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group obtained 15.48% equity interest in FWF
through the disposal of a subsidiary (the “Disposal”). Prior to
the Disposal, the Group already had 3.30% equity interest
in FWF amounted to approximately HK$72,930,000 being
included in equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income. As a result, the Group held in total
18.78% equity interest in FWF at the date of Disposal when
two of the executive directors of the Company were also the
executive directors of FWF, representing 40% voting rights held
by the Group in the board of directors of FWF which has 5
executive directors at that time. The directors of the Company
assessed and concluded that the Group has significant
influence over FWF and therefore accounted for the equity
interest in FWF as investment in an associate of the Group
since the date of Disposal (i.e. 25 April 2018).

On 10 October 2018, the Group sold 9,660,000 ordinary
shares of FWF at approximately HK$0.0691 per share, resulting
in the Group’s equity interest in FWF decreased from 18.78%,
to 18.70%. Accordingly, a loss on partial disposal of investment
in an associate amounted to HK$472,000 and loss from release
of fair value reserve upon partial disposal of an associate
amounted to HK$407,000 were credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2018.

REEBAER

ZAARAGE ([BFH])

iR T
ENGUT L EINCE

NERA P IEHRRM 3BT AEEE
BHE—FHKNBARESRRERAER 2
15.48% R ([HEEHE]) -REHESFHE
ZE AEEER AR RS R#ES3.30%
R% 3 - &84 /572,930,0008 7T ' B 5T AFE
BEAM 2 EWESIR A FEYIER Z AL E -
At AEEREESHEARARBER
RittREF218.78% A% - 1 EERARQ
AIMEZMITERNMARRER SR Z T
EFE HERAEBREARERESRER
BERITERIRE 2 ESFT2HH40% K
ER-ARNRERTIHYRERBAEE
HREREASCHEABEATE N AR
KRR SR REGBHEFEAE (A
—E-N\EWNA-_+HRA)EARINAR
AEBE—EHMERRZEKRE -
RZZE-NF+A+TH xEEERERD
0.06917 7T H £9,660,0000% 7 2K it 57 & &b
TER BRAEERRREARAS K
HEH18.78% B 2E18.70% At - H &
DR E R R 2R E E18472,0007 T &
HEILOH LN R N ERERLDES
407,000 TEREBEEZE - —\F+=
A=+—HILFEFARABRR-
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18. %@%(%)QEZEEME

18. Investment in an associate (continued)

Notes: (continued)

TREREEARERSHANAESS
BEER NGV ERIEEEY RN
MBERBME:

(b)  The following table illustrates the summarised financial (b)
information in respect of FWF adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in

the consolidated financial statements:

2018
—E-NF
HK$'000
TET
Current assets MEEE 469,663
Non-current assets EMENEE 1,383,299
Current liabilities mBAE (567,576)
Net assets BEFE 1,285,386
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest REBERBE R R 2 R EER:
in the associate:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership RNEEEF LD 18.70%
Group's share of net assets of the associate AEEBDMBERNRCEAEFE 240,367
Goodwill on acquisition (less cumulative g & ORREHRE)
impairment) -
Elimination of unrealised profits and losses on IR E N PR SR 2 KRR AN R
transaction with the associate (Note 13) 518 (MI3E13) (15,173)
Carrying amount of the investment KREREE 225,194
Revenue YA 39,674
Loss for the year attributable to owners of FWF RREARSHAR ARERELZERE (79,839)
Other comprehensive loss for the year attributable KRR & @ ¥ A A BEARNEEEAM
to owners of FWF 2HEE (500,544)
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable  RRKEREHEFARERFELE
to owners of FWF E5i8 4858 (580,383)
Dividend received 2R S -
Fair value of the Group’s investment as at RZB-N\F+-A=+—HBA%H
31 December 2018 K’EZRFE 112,594
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18. Investment in an associate (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the recoverable
amount of the investment in an associate is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. The calculation uses pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management of the associate. Cash flows beyond the one-year
period are projected for the next four-year period using
the estimated growth in revenue and gross profit margin.
Thereafter, the cash flows are extrapolated using the terminal
growth rate not exceeding the long-term average growth rate
for the business in which the associate operates.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation is as
follows:

31 December 2018

Revenue growth rate 8.50%
Terminal growth rate 3.08%
Discount rate (pre tax) 9.26%

Management determined the budgeted revenue based on
their expectations of market developments with the growth
rates being estimated based on the industry forecasts and
management’s expectations. The terminal growth rate was
based on the expected inflation rate. The discount rate
reflected specific risks relating to the associate.

The market price of FWF significantly dropped from
HK$0.191/share as at 25 April 2018 to HK$0.052/share
as at 31 December 2018. As at 31 December 2018, the
carrying values of the investment in an associate exceeded
their estimated recoverable amounts and impairment of
HK$51,257,000 was made as at 31 December 2018.

18. REFE QT 2 ’RE ()

REBE-_FT— \F+_A=T—HLFE"
REE QB2 RE MR E 588 T IRE R
BEBT ZFHEMNBKERERRE
BEEMENMHEEENRARSRETRR -
BE—FHRNRSREERKRARER
R E R AR S HARE (E L TRR
Hg BenEBERTBEBREARME
EEBORBFHBRR ZKABREHE

Ho
Ea

EREBEEAEMATIERRNT

—E2-NE¥+=ZA=+—H

g A3 K = 8.50%
KA R =X 3.08%
WIRE (AT 9.26%

EEEREYMSERNENETEER
AN MEBERERDERTERANEEEN
EHMEE KARREXRDERARERK
%o B IR K [ bR ER B N BB B BV E R

LA
oo
ZON

o

AREARESBMITHEERE T —N\FW
BA-Z+HBZ2EM0.191B T AR NEE
—E—N\F+=-A=+—H2Z2H0.052/5
T RZE—NE+—RA=+—08 REgL
NAEIZEE Z T AT U Bl & ZE A8 1B B (G 5T
FREABETR -_ZT—N\F+_A=+—81
H3R{E51,257,00078 7T ©
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18. Investment in an associate (continued) 18.
On 24 December 2018, one of the common directors
between the Company and FWF resigned as a director of
FWEF. On 13 March 2019, three new executive directors were
appointed to the board of directors of FWF. As a result, the
voting rights in the board of directors of FWF held by the
Group via the remaining common director was decreased
to approximately 14.29%. The directors of the Company
assessed and concluded that the Group no longer had
significant influence over FWF since 13 March 2019 and the
18.70% equity interests in FWF were therefore reclassified
from investment in an associate to financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group intended
to hold the equity interest in FWF for long-term purpose
since 2017. The investment in an associate as at 13 March
2019 was derecognised and the fair value of the equity
interests in FWF, being calculated based on the market share
prices of FWF on 13 March 2019, in total of approximately
HK$331,287,000 was recognised and designated as financial
asset at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate of approximately
HK$105,739,000 was charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss during the year.

From 1 January 2019 to 13 March 2019, the revenue and
adjusted profit after tax generated by FWF was approximately
HK$8,092,000 and HK$37,781,000, respectively. The share
of profit of an associate of approximately HK$7,065,000 was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the year.

The following table illustrates the reconciliation of gain on
disposal of an associate on 13 March 2019:
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2019
—E-hEF
HK$’000
FTERT
Carrying amount of investment in an associate as at RZZ-—NF-A—BAR—RHBEAA
1 January 2019 KEZEREE 225,194
Share of profit from 1 January 2019 to 13 March 2019 DEE-NF-A—HEZZ-NF
= A+=HZ%H 7,065
Share of other comprehensive loss from 1 January 2019to  HDE=ZT—NF—A—HE=-T—NF
13 March 2019 —A+t=HZHMZ2EEE 6,711)
Carrying amount of investment in an associate as at RZZB-NF=A+=AR—FHBLE AR
13 March 2019 KREZREE 225,548
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate BREE—MHEERR 2 WE 105,739
Satisfied by: BT AAER
Fair value of the Group’s investment in FWF REERRRER SR REANTE
(2,165,273,636@HK$0.153) (2,165,273,636% & %0.153 % 7T) 331,287

The loans from FWF (2018: an associate) included in the
Group’s other borrowings with an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$215,000,000 (2018: HK$172,000,000) are
unsecured, interest-bearing at 8% per annum and repayable
on demand (Note 32).
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19. Equity investments at fair value through other 19. EBHE M2 EKFIR A FET
comprehensive income

RzBARE

2019 2018
—2-NF —TN\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
TER THAT

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, &% FRAE % A TE

at fair value

506,650 1,296,154

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at PR B AR E Ty S BB 45 T A E A
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group fEmEREREAFEIE RESAEE
considers these investments to be strategic in nature. RRZEREBRBEILE -

The fair values of the listed equity securities investments were FHRAEFRE 2 A TFE TR BT
determined based on the quoted market closing prices on the i W EBERE -

Stock Exchange.

An analysis of investment portfolio is as below: REBEDTWT :
2018
—g-n% S S
Stock code Name of securities HK$’000 Voae| HK$'000 Yo*
BRORE =HEE FEx %* TET %o*
572 FWF 29,659 - N/A
572 RRERE R 29,659 - TiER
1004 China Smarter Energy Group Holdings Limited 1,244 19,757 0.26
1004 TEEZEREEZERARAA 1,244 19,757 0.26
1141 CMBC Capital Holdings Limited 475,747 1,276,397 8.23
1141 RIBENZRBRAF] 475,747 1,276,397 8.23
506,650 1,296,154

& Percentage of shareholding in the listed securities held by the & REEMMFLITESIREB DL

Group
During the year, the Group received the amount of RAFE AEEBZEREWRBDERLELD
approximately HK$7,001,000 (2018: Nil) dividend from these 7,001,000 7T (ZT— )\ &) -
investments.
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19.

20.

154

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (continued)

During the year, the Group sold part of its equity investments
due to the forced sales of shares to repay margin loans as
requested by its brokers and sold part of equity investments
in a lump sum to an independent third party during the year
for strategic purpose. These shares were sold at an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$226,033,000 and resulted in
a cumulative loss of approximately HK$251,329,000 which
was transferred from equity investment fair value reserve to
accumulated losses during the year.

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income, with
carrying amount of approximately HK$499,621,000 (2018:
HK$1,276,397,000), have been pledged to secure the other
borrowings granted to the Group (Note 32 (c)).

Loan receivables from money lending business

19.

20.

ZRHMEEKEEZELFES
B2BRAKRE @)

RERN AEBRABLELEREEHER
DUNEEBREFSCERMEESDBARE -
WHEREBEENRENR—RBBLE=FH
—AERETIBRAKRE - ZEELRG
#EEHI226,033,00008 L EHHEIE—$F KR
2T E54849251,329,0008 T (E R FERN B IR
AEENFEREEREERITESE) -

RN_ZE—AFE+-_A=+—8 AEEHE
18 49499,621,0008 L (=T — N 4F:
1,276,397,0007% 70 ) i 8 H 4 2 W &= 1%
AEEVEZeREEDKBIEAEEE
Bz EMmEEZER (ME320) -

FEM &K
B EEEREE

Loan receivables
Less: credit loss allowances

B : FERNERED

Less: non-current portion

Current portion ENER &R 73

MEXEKRELE ZEKRER

2019 2018

—E-h#F —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000

T FHT

466,520 301,271
(20,058) (1,774)

446,462 299,497

(89,805) -

356,657 299,497

As at 31 December 2019, the gross amounts of
loan receivables represented loans of approximately
HK$466,520,000 (2018: HK$301,271,000) granted by the
Group to a number of independent third parties. The loans
bore interest at rates ranging from 5% to 12% (2018: 5%
to 12%) per annum and were repayable within two years
from the date of drawdown (2018: one year from the date
of drawdown). The grants of these loans were approved
and monitored by the Group’s management. The gross loan
balances of approximately HK$147,211,000 (2018: Nil)
were past due and approximately HK$319,309,000 (2018:
HK$301,271,000) were not past due at the ended of the
reporting period for which there was no recent history of
default.
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20. Loan receivables from money lending business 20. HEXBEEZEKER (@)

(continued)

The Group holds collateral or other credit enhancement N6 [ B A R W E R A R 49353,545,00078
over its loan receivables balance of approximately JL(ZZF—)\F :1179,485,0007%8 1) # B K
HK$353,545,000 (2018: HK$179,485,000), including charge HoEMEERARBHE BEMRES
of properties located in Hong Kong and the PRC, listed b BEZzYERM - BELMES FELT
securities in Hong Kong, equity interest in the unlisted Hong EEEROBRERERTNREREEIE &
Kong entity and note receivable of the borrower. The carrying WERZREEREEAFEBS -

amount of the loan receivables approximates their fair values.

Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount is as follows: FHAEZEHHMOT:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B Bx1 :329) P& ER3 Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FTHERT FHERT FTHERT
At 1 January 2018 R-FT—\F—A—H 476,765 = = 476,765
Transfer to lifetime BEZREEREZ
ECL not credit impaired ~ 2 HEHEEFHIE
(Stage 2) (F&Er2) (956) 956 - =
Transfer to lifetime BRZEEEEREL
ECL credit impaired FHREBEEER
(Stage 3) (F&ER3) - (925) 925 -
New loans during the year AFEHEERK 300,422 - - 300,422
Settlements during the year RNEE&EE (475,809) (31) (76) (475,916)
At 31 December 2018 and R =ZF—/\F
1 January 2019 tZA=t—Hk
—E-hE—-H—H 300,422 301,271
Transfer to lifetime BEZREEREZ
ECL not credit impaired ~ ZHEHIEEEE
(Stage 2) (PEER2) (255,920) 255,920 =
New loans during the year 74 Z 3718 &5 364,309 = 364,309
Settlements during the year NF[E4EH (198,879) - (199,060)

At 31 December 2019 R-ZZ—NE
+-A=+—H 209,932 255,920 466,520
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year endled 31 December 2019 B2 —F—NF+ _H=1—HILFEZ

20. Loan receivables from money lending business 20. HEXBEEZEKER (@)

(continued)
Analysis of changes in the corresponding credit loss allowance HEEEBEREREZEHONMT

is as follows:

2019
ZE-hF
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
P Bx1 P 2 P B3 Bt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THET THET THET TET
At 1 January ®w—A—H 925 = 849 1,774
Transfer to lifetime BEZREEREZ
ECL not credit impaired 2 HEHEEFHIE
(Stage 2) (BR2) (1,327)
New loans during the year AFEHEER 7,191
Settlements during the year RNEE4E (274)
Change in risk parameters @[ 2 (& &) -
At 31 December Rt+-A=+—8 6,515
Arising from: BTYRBEESE:
Loan receivables EUWE R 6,097
Loan commitments B E 418
6,515
ECL rates EHEEEREX 3.10%
2018
—E-N\F
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B B2 1 Pef Bx2 P& B3 BT
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FET FET TET
As at 1 January w—A—8 477 = = 477
Transfer to lifetime BEZREEREZ
ECL not credit impaired ~ 2 HEHEEHIE
(Stage 2) (B ER2) 1M 1 = =
Transfer to lifetime BEZEEEREZ
ECL credit impaired FHEBMEEER
(Stage 3) (BEER3) - (92) 92 -
New loans during the year 7R 2118 E K 482 = = 482
Settlements during the year NFE4H (33) = (76) (109)
Change in risk parameters @[ 2 8 & &) - 91 833 924
As at 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 925 - 849 1,774
Arising from: BT &BEESE:
Loan receivables U E T 885 = 849 1,734
Loan commitments B 40 = = 40
925 - 849 1,774
ECL rates RYEEERE 0.31% - 100% 0.59%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 =F—NF+=—A=—+—HIFFEZ

21. Trade receivables from securities and futures

21. EXRHEEERB 2 RKE

dealing business

5 B K

2019 2018

L El T \=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET

Trade receivables arising from BAENEEERBELZ
the securities and futures FEW E 5 R
dealing business
— Clearing house —HEET
— Cash clients -RexP
— Margin clients —RESEP
— Brokers -85

W EE R

Less: credit loss allowances

— 2,833
64,186 18,819
433,985 379,993
100 202
498,271 401,847
(85,927) (6,553)
412,344 395,294

Trade receivables from cash clients, clearing houses and
brokers arising from the securities and futures dealing business
are repayable on demand subsequent to the settlement date.
The normal settlement terms of the said trade receivables
are, in general, within 2 days after the trade date. The Group
allows a credit period mutually agreed with the contracting
parties for receivables from margin clients.

Except for receivables from margin clients, the Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances. The Group is allowed to dispose of the securities or
futures deposited by the customers with the Group to settle
any overdue amount.

Trade receivables are unsecured, interest free and repayable
on the settlement date of the relevant trades, except for
the receivables from margin clients of approximately
HK$433,985,000 (2018: HK$379,993,000) which bears
interest at a range of 6% to 12.25% (2018: 7% to 12.25%)
per annum and are secured by investments held by margin
clients of approximately HK$648,255,000 as at 31 December
2019 (2018: HK$705,157,000). The carrying amount of the
trade receivables approximates their fair values.

BAEMHEEEEBELEZERRERS
,Eﬁﬁﬁ&i&iEZé%ﬁEmEA%%ﬁEI?&E%E
KEB LB RESERZ EREER
ETRAXSHBAEMBERN- MJEHM%“‘C
EEREmMS ASEARFEITHFER
WEEER-

PREWRES TP IR AR B &
EZﬁ%ﬁ‘?%*ﬁ_EﬂﬁﬁﬁuuIJZE’rMZEjEﬂ

E- ARBEHERFFERAEEZ
&5 S E N TR B R0R -

H

RZE— N F+_A=+—HB EKE
SERAEERR THERBAREABE
SEERAEE HEKRKRZFESEFZX
T8 #9433,985,0008 L (=& — \F:

379,993,000/%7n)[5$57|\vﬁf'«% X IB 1% F
MEBENF6%E12.25% (ZFB— )\ F:

7% Z=12.25% )3T B WA RFBEEEZF A
1% & 49648,255,0008 7L ( —F — )\ F:

705,157,000 T ) fE4K 3 - TR U E 5 BR 3%
ZHREERERATFERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year endled 31 December 2019 B2 —F—NF+ _H=1—HILFEZ

21. BENHPEEEXEK2ERE

21. Trade receivables from securities and futures

dealing business (continued)

Included in the trade receivables as at 31 December 2019 are
amounts due from Mr. Xu Ke, Mr. Yu Qingrui, Mr. Wu Ming
and Mr. Chen Xiaodong, being the directors of the Company,
of HK$12,152,000 (2018: HK$39,403,000), HK$2,936,000
(2018: HK$2,932,000), HK$369,000 (2018: HK$327,000)
and HK$336,000 (2018: HK$300,000) respectively arising
from securities dealing transactions, which bears interest at
commercial rate and are secured by respective underlying
investments.

The Group maintains accounts with the clearing houses
through which it conducts securities and futures trading
transactions and settlement on a net basis.

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the
directors, the ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the business nature.

Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount is as follows:

Stage 1
P& B
HK$'000
TEx
As at 1 January »n—HA—8 148,058
Transfer to lifetime BEZREEREZ
ECL not credit impaired ~ Z2HEHEEFHIE
(Stage 2) (FEER2) (23,436)
Transfer to lifetime BRZCEERELZ
ECL credit impaired FHEBEEER
(Stage 3) (FEER3) (34,208)
Other changes (including E b (REHEE
new assets and RICILEREE)
derecognised assets) 74,237
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8 164,651
Arising from: BB HEL:
Cash clients HeRP 55,131
Margin clients RETEF 109,420
Brokers S 100

164,651
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2 R (#)
RZBE-NF+_A=+—B EKES
ERBEREFEERSIMEE ZEBIAK
RNRAIEERF LA - REHILE R E
N BRBER o &£ 2 FRIA D 512,152,000 T
—ZF— A% :39,403,00077T) *2,936,000
BT (ZZT—N\F:2,932,00087C)
369,000 7t ( ==& — J\4 : 327,000/ 7T )
$336,000/% 7C ( =& — )\ : 300,000/
TO) IEEEMERITE - UHSE ZHEBEER
B eI o

AEBREEARERE UWBETES
EHMEEER S Ui FHEERE-

VWEREREDN DEER/ENER
HE RO T ERMHBAINIMEE

FERHREESHOMMT

2019
—2-NF
Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
P B2 &3 ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THEx
166,239 87,550 401,847

23,436

(60,795) 95,003

40,403 (18,216) 96,424

169,283 164,337 498,271

6,130 2,925 64,186
163,153 161,412 433,985
- - 100

169,283 164,337 498,271



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

21. Trade receivables from securities and futures 21. E5RPAEEFEKR 2EWRE

dealing business (continued) Z R (&)
2018
—T-N\F
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
& B e Bx2 e B3 A5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET TEL TET
As at 1 January n—H—H 391,219 - - 391,219
Transfer to lifetime BEEREEREZ
ECL not credit impaired ~ 2 HEHEEEIE
(Stage 2) (F&Er2) (170,662) 170,662 = =
Transfer to lifetime BRZEEFEERELZ
ECL credit impaired THRPEEER
(Stage 3) (F&ER3) (224,104) - 224,104 -
Other changes (including E %% (REHEE
new assets and REILHEREE)
derecognised assets) 151,605 (4,423) (136,554) 10,628
As at 31 December Rt=-ZA=t+—H 148,058 166,239 87,550 401,847
Arising from: BTARBEL:
Clearing houses EEM 2,833 = = 2,833
Cash clients RexP 5,511 9,805 3,503 18,819
Margin clients RELEP 139,512 156,434 84,047 379,993
Brokers ke 202 - = 202
148,058 166,239 87,550 401,847
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fre MR RN

For the year endled 31 December 2019 B2 —F—NF+ _H=1—HILFEZ

21. Trade receivables from securities and futures

dealing business (continued)
Analysis of changes in the corresponding credit loss allowance

is as follows:

Stage 1
g
HK$'000
TET

As at 1 January

»n—HA—8 118

Transfer to lifetime BEZREEREZ
ECL not credit impaired ~ ZHEHEEFIE
(Stage 2) (FER2) ®)
Transfer to lifetime HREZEEEREL
ECL credit impaired FHEBEEER
(Stage 3) (F&Er3) 32)
Other changes (including E & (REHEE
new assets and R ILHEREE)
derecognised assets)
Change in risk parameters B[ 2 & &
As at 31 December BR+=—R=+—8
Arising from: BTARBEL:
Cash clients RexkpP
Margin clients RESEP
ECL rates EHEEBEX
Cash clients RexkP
Margin clients RESEP
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Z R (&)
MEEEEREEEHOHMNT:

2019
—E-NF
Stage 2
P B2

Stage 3

R B3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK
TER TER
846 5,589

21. EXRBEEERB CBWE

Total
#et
$’000

TR

6,553




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —FE—NF+ _H=—1—HILFEZ

21. Trade receivables from securities and futures 21. BS RHEEEEX£B2RBKE

dealing business (continued) Z 8RR (1)
2018
—T-N\F
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
& B e Bx2 e B3 A5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THET TET TAT FET
As at 1 January n—A—8 335 = = 335
Transfer to lifetime BEEREEREZ
ECL not credit impaired ~ ZHEHEEHIE
(Stage 2) (REER2) (156) 156 = =
Transfer to lifetime BEZEEEREZ
ECL credit impaired THRPEEER
(Stage 3) (F&ER3) (184) - 184 -
Other changes Hu#2E (BENEE
(including new assets N ILHEREE)
and derecognised assets) 60 (323) (15,825) (16,088)
Change in risk parameters B[ 2 8% &) 63 1,013 21,230 22,306
As at 31 December mt-—HA=t1—8~ 118 846 5,589 6,553
Arising from: BTAIBHEES:
Cash clients BEEF 26 3 1,010 1,039
Margin clients RELEP 92 843 4,579 5,514
118 846 5,589 6,553
ECL rates RHEEBEX
Cash clients ReEP 0.47% 0.03% 28.83% 5.52%
Margin clients RESEP 0.07% 0.54% 5.45% 1.45%
22. Trade receivables from placing and asset 22. BEREEEERBELEZE
management business W E 5 R
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Trade receivables arising from MERBEEEEXEBELEL
the placing and asset FEW E 5 R
management business
— Corporate clients —RAIRP 6,553
— Investment funds —-REES® 392
6,945
Less: credit loss allowances W EEBEEREE (651)
6,294
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year endled 31 December 2019 B2 —F—NF+ _H=1—HILFEZ

22 BEREEEERBELEZE

22. Trade receivables from placing and asset

management business (continued)

Trade receivables from corporate clients and investment
funds which are past due but not credit-impaired represent
receivables arising from placing and asset management
business which have not yet been settled by clients after
the Group’s normal credit period. Except for the credit loss
allowances provided, the outstanding trade receivables from
corporate clients and investment funds as at 31 December
2019 were considered not to be credit impaired as the credit
rating and reputation of the trade counterparty are sound.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade receivables from corporate clients and
investment funds using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2019

Current

0L

Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) FREI4A(E (T8 T) 50,913
ECL (HK$'000) BHEEBE(TEL) 195
ECL rates EHEEBREX 0.38%

As at 31 December 2018

WE ZR™M (@)

AEEFREERS Y DANEREER
BrRERESERENAEETEEEEN
% EEMREEREREECEBELE
K REWRR-RETE Y S EBEE
NRZE—AEF—A=+—A HRME
BrEEFRRERS Y EWE S ERRE
EBAEREERE BERARSUFHFZE
IR RIEBERT.

BRASERBREBEETENRE AR
EPRREESHNEREZRRNERER
REMETIMT

R-E—-hh&E+=ZB=+—8H

Past due
bk
1to3
months

—Z=fEA8

Over
3 months

BEB=MA

Less than
1 month

SR-8R
1,591

4
2.77%

R-ZE—-NF+=ZA=+—H

Past due
ki
Less than 1to3 Over

Current 1 month months 3 months Total

B SR-{EA -Z2=f@A BB=fA @t

Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) FREIA(E (F/5T) 392 6,553 = = 6,945
ECL (HK$'000) EREEER (TET) 2 649 = = 651
ECL rates EHEEERX 0.51% 9.90% = = 9.37%
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fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 =F—NF+=—A=—+—HIFFEZ

23. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

23. FE{IE

Prepayments FafRIE
Other receivables (Note (i) H fth & W sk 3E (BT () )
Deposits paid gEftRe

Less: credit loss allowances

B EERR R

Less: Non-current portion (Note (ii))

IR B R D

(P = (i)

Current portion

ik kP2l

Notes:

(i)

Interest receivables arising from the money lending business
with gross amount of approximately HK$27,988,000 (2018:
HK$16,545,000), of which the balance of approximately
HK$11,431,000 (2018: Nil) was past due. The corresponding
credit loss allowance amount are approximately HK$395,000
(2018: HK$116,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed
of certain listed equity investments to a third party of which
amounting to approximately HK$40,580,000 has not yet been
settled and corresponding credit loss allowance amount is
approximately HK$1,191,000. Pursuant to the agreement,
receivable amount will be settled within the nine months after
the transaction completed. The balance has not yet been past
due and is non-interest bearing.

A receivable from a third party arising from trading of equity
investments with gross amount of HK$9,065,000 was incurred
loss and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2018. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group collected the full amount
of HK$9,065,000 and the Group reversed the corresponding
credit loss allowance of HK$9,065,000.

The remaining balance of other receivables of approximately
HK$14,621,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$2,694,000) was neither past due nor impaired and relates
to a number of independent parties for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Included in the balances were prepayments of rental expenses
for 5 years amounted to approximately HK$17,538,000 (2018:
Nil). The remaining balances were rental deposits and operation
deposits to statutory and clearing house of approximately
HK$13,309,000 (2018: HK$12,799,000).

None of the prepayments and deposits is either past due or
impaired.

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables
approximate their fair values.

(ii)

RIE - -BREREMEKRFIE
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FB T THET
22,792 1,131
83,189 28,304
18,451 13,977
124,432 43,412
(1,586) (9,181)
122,846 34,231
(30,847) (12,799)
91,999 21,432
MEXBKELEZRRANBRLEEAY

27,988,000/ 7t ( ==& — J\4F : 16,545,000
ﬁém) H & 8%411,431,0008 7T (=
%—)\Eﬁ)&%@ﬂﬁo*ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%
B &% 5439500008 T (—ZF— )\ &F:
116,000/ 7T ) ©

BE-_T—hNF+-A=+—HLFE"
REERAEF=HFEHEETLETBRAKRE
H A1 4940,580,0007% T # & 45 E R EEE
EEBBESEA1,191,0008 T B
e BURIEBRR S ERENEAR
HE-EHREMAREEAT B

4 % ¥ 59,065,000 T2 R AR ER 5
EEZERRE=FRBEAEELBEL
ﬁé%zi_q—/\iwL A=+—H1Lt#HF
BZHREABRERRNER - BE_T—ILF
T A=+ —BLFE - AEEZFEUNER
9,065,000 LW B B B EEE BB R E
9,065,000/ T °

R-ZE—-hE+-_A=+—8 HibEkK
REZ 8T &8 414,621,0008 7T (= F
—/\%F 12,694,000/ 70 ) I & B HA sl (8
BEZ RIS ENCHR B S AR -

3 a%5¢fﬂﬁ%ﬁrﬁ§z%ﬁiﬁmlﬁm
17538000,%75( T—NFE) BT

ﬁ%ﬁiﬂﬁ&i&ﬁﬁi HEERTmE
@}ﬁ\‘ﬁmnaoaooo;‘%ﬁ(f::f/\i
12,799,000/ 7T ) °

BEEMRERMEEARADTHE-

Ze R H MR

HE

IR BREERE QA FE

[
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year endled 31 December 2019 B2 —F—NF+ _H=1—HILFEZ

23. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  23. BT RIE - RE& R Hth B KIE

(continued) (%)
Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount of financial FRAEHERRBEH eMIARER
instruments during the year contributed to changes in the loss BEZBEBHHHMT

allowance is as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

B Ex1 P& Ex2 P& ER3 st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

THERT THERT THERT THERT

At 1 January 2018 R-Z—\F—H—8 21,289 - - 21,289
Transfer to lifetime BEZEREEREZ
ECL not credit impaired ~ Z2HEHEE B

(Stage 2) (F&Er2) (10,340) 10,340 = =
Transfer to lifetime BRERZEEEREZ
ECL credit impaired THRBEEER

(Stage 3) (BEE3) = (10,484) 10,484 =

New assets during the year AFEHEE 14,599 144 = 14,743

Settlements during the year AN & & & (9,015) - (1,407) (10,422)

At 31 December 2018 and R =Z—/\F
1 January 2019 TZA=+-HEK
“E-NF—A—H 16,533

Transfer to lifetime BEZEREEREZ
ECL not credit impaired ~ 2 HTEHEEEE

(Stage 2) (F&Er2) (18,338) =

New assets during the year AFEHEE 77,567 77,567

Settlements during the year AN E & H (25,532) (34,609)

At 31 December 2019 RZZT—NF
+=—B=+—8H 50,230 68,568

Analysis of changes in the corresponding credit loss allowance  IHEEEBEBEE 2 EB DT

is as follows:
2019
—E-NF
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
2y P Ex2 M B3 aar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR THT THT TR
At 1 January n—HA—H 104 = 9,077 9,181
Transfer to lifetime BRERZREEREZ
ECL not credit impaired 2 HITEHEEEE
(Stage 2) (FEER2) (34) = =
New assets during the year AFEHEE 1,415 - 1,415
Settlements during the year AN & & & (29) (9,077) (9,106)
Change in risk parameters B[} 2 8 & &) 14 96
At 31 December AN AR 1,470 1,586
ECL rates EHEEBEX 2.93% 2.31%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —FE—NF+ _H=—1—HILFEZ

23. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  23. BT RIE - RE& R H W RKIE

(continued) (%)
2018
—E-N\F
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
P BT e Ex2 P B3 85t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT THET TET FET
At 1 January m—H—H = = = =
Transfer to lifetime BEREREEREZ
ECL not credit impaired 2 HTEHEEEE
(Stage 2) (F&ER2) (1,025) 1,025 = =
Transfer to lifetime EREFEEEREZ
ECL credit impaired >HEREEEE
(Stage 3) (FEER3) - (1,039) 1,039 =
New assets during REEHEE
the year 52 14 - 66
Settlements during KEEHE
the year = = (1,376) (1,376)
Change in risk parameters/&| 2 £ & 1,077 = 9,414 10,491
At 31 December R+-—H=+—~H 104 - 9,077 9,181
ECL rates BHEEBEX 0.63% - 100.00% 35.85%
24. Equity and fund investments at fair value 24, EBBRBRAFEIRZBRA
through profit or loss REEKRE
2019 2018
—EB-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER FAET
Listed securities, mandatorily RS REMRATEFE
measured at fair value — BB EMRAZS (MEE0) 38,432 21

— Equity securities listed
in Hong Kong (Note (i)

Unlisted fund investments, JEETESIESE  EHM
mandatorily measured at fair value & AF{EFE
— Investment fund in the Cayman -RASHEIREES
Islands (Note (i) (B &E (i) 48,417 =
— Investment funds in the PRC —-RPBEZREES (M3 Gi))
(Note (iii)) 28,656 -

115,505 21
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+-H=+—HI-FZ

24. Equity and fund investments at fair value 24, BBBEFRDAFEIRZBRA

through profit or loss (continued)

The Group invested in certain investment funds with primary
objectives for capital appreciation, investment income and
selling in the near future for profit as at 31 December 2019.
Pursuant to subscription agreements or equivalent documents,
the beneficial interests held by the Group in these investments
are in the form of participating shares or interests which
primarily provide the Group with the share of returns from
the investments but not any decision making power nor any
voting right to involve in and control the daily operation of
the investment funds.

These investments are set up and managed by respective
investment manager or general partner who are independent
third party of the Group, and has the power and authority to
manage and make decisions for the investments, or through
participations in decision making process of the underlying
investee companies.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group
does not have control on these investment funds. Therefore,
the Group does not consolidate these investments to its
consolidated financial statements and classified such
investments as the fund investments at fair value through
profit or loss.

Notes:

()  The above equity investments were classified as fair value
through profit or loss as they were held for trading. The fair
values of listed equity investments under Level 1 are based on
quoted market prices on the Stock Exchange.

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, with carrying amount of approximately
HK$6,022,000 (2018: Nil), have been pledged to secure the
other borrowings granted to the Group (Note 32 (c)).
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FEERE @)
N-E—hE+-_A=+—0 XE£ER
BEFRERS TBEEABARE &
BN BRI R SR G 25 o IR 1B R BB
BEKAE I AEERZERERA

BN EAEALERGUERTR =
BANEBEHYZRE I BIEEE T
EHRREHIREES A S LEOEMR
FRES T IR AE

RZEREHBRANEREL " REBAR
VRER REARAEEBIE=7"F
BRANEREEREB2EMABRRER
ARKEBIRIEHIREREK

ARREERA AEBYETFHZER
BEES Rt AREYERZERERS
AAARGEMBRER UKZEREDE
REBBREAFEIRZESRE -

P & -

(i) LRABRARERFEEE DEABEBER
BAFENER -BEBRIET EHRAKREZ
RFETIERB TS RE -

R-TE—hhF+_A=+—8 A£EE
HE 546,022,000 0 (ZF— \F: &)
ZEBBHEEATHEIENTHEE E
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2 —F—NF+_H=+—HI-F/E

24. Equity and fund investments at fair value

through profit or loss (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

The Group subscribed HK$40,000,000 participating shares of
the Cayman Islands fund, an exempted company with limited
liability registered under the laws of the Cayman Islands. As
at 31 December 2019, the Group holds 100% of participating
shares of the Cayman fund. The directors of the Company
considered that the Group does not have the controlling power
nor voting rights over the fund and the Group has the right to
require the fund to redeem the participating shares at any time.
The Group therefore classified the investment in the Cayman
Islands fund as fund investment at fair value through profit or
loss on initial recognition.

The directors of the Company estimated the fair value of
the Cayman Islands fund at each of the reporting period by
considering the fair values of the underlying assets of the fund
(i.e. trade debt securities) of which the quoted prices could
be observed in dealing markets. The fair value of the Cayman
Islands fund under Level 2 is estimated by aggregating the
fair values of all underlying assets comprising the fund as at
year end. During the year, the fair value gain of approximately
HK$8,417,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
subscribed RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$22,042,000) participating shares in two PRC funds (the
“PRC Funds”). As at 31 December 2019, the Group holds 6.3%
and 14.96% of participating shares of these two PRC funds
respectively. The directors of the Company considered that the
Group does not have the controlling power nor voting rights
over the fund and the Group has the right to require the fund
to redeem the participating shares at any time. The Group
therefore classified the investment in the PRC Funds as fund
investment at fair value through profit or loss on the initial
recognition.

The directors of the Company estimated the fair value of the
PRC Funds at each of the reporting period by considering the
fair values of the underlying assets of the funds (i.e. trade debt
securities) of which the quoted prices could be observed in
dealing markets. The fair values of the PRC Funds under Level
2 is estimated by aggregating the fair values of all underlying
assets comprising the funds as at year end. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, the fair value gain of approximately
HK$6,615,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

24, ERBEBZRAFEIRZKRA
FESEE @)

B eE

(ii)

(i)

(%)

AEBRER S/ 5 E £40,000,0007%8 7T
Z2HERM ZEcAHBERSHES

EOBECZEREBERAR -R_F—Ah
FT+-A=+—H - AEEREHREHES
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FEIEZESRE -

%EF
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oy

ARAEENERERNEBEERETR
REMEBENESNEREE (IS
BBES)RFE Bt PEESZAF
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AEARESNMBERBEERFRZA

FEBE-HE_T—NF+-_A=1+—
AIEFE 7 ﬂ?ﬁu& #96,615,0007 7T

FABERAER

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £ 167



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year endled 31 December 2019 B2 —F—NF+ _H=1—HILFEZ

25. Deb

t investments at fair value through profit

or loss

25. ERBERATEIRZER

RE

Listed debt securities (Note (i)) FhEBES (MEEG))
— listed in Hong Kong —-REBEL™
— listed in the PRC —RHPELET

Unlisted debt security (Note (ii))

R EMERES (M)

Notes:

(i)

The listed debt securities as at 31 December 2019 were interest
bearing and were classified as fair value through profit or loss
as they were held for trading. The coupon interest rates of listed
debts securities are ranged from 4.58% to 8.75% per annum
with the maturity dates ranged from 2020 to 2026.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
entered into a purchase agreement with a financial institution
for purchasing the Portfolio Linked Leveraged Note (the
“Leveraged Note”) at cash of approximately HK$44,664,000.
The Leveraged Note is linked to the return of the investment
portfolio in the debt markets. Both parties could terminate the
Leverage Note at anytime.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, four traded bonds
were invested in the Leveraged Note. The Group assessed the
fair value of the Leveraged Note by making referencing the
fair value of these bonds and recognised the fair value gain of
approximately HK$1,471,000 in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Group is entitled to the capital appreciation and interest
income from the trade bonds, as well as the principal amounts
of the trade bonds when the Leveraged Note is terminated.
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(ii)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET

22,108 -
100,287 -
46,135 -

168,530 -

RZB-NFE+-_A=+—B 2 LtTE®
BHEHBE RABIEEEmMABEABBRBER
BAFENE FTEEEFZEZEEN
T HF4.58%FE8.75% FHANF -F
—EFRE TR

BE-_Z—-NF+-_A=+—BI=EE"
7R £ B 5t LA IR & 4944,664,00078 T iE B 482
AHMERER ((BERER]E—HS
BBV EE RS BERREREEM
B ERBEEE ZEHRE N THEF AT R
TSR IEEESEE-

HE-Z—hhE+-_A=+—RHILFE"
AEEREERZEREANNNORBES-
AEBBEZSELFZAFETGHER
ERCsAYE BHE-_ZT—NAFE+=A
=+ HIEFERGZAIEERANERQTF
B R 491,471,00078 7T °

AEEFERFEFNEREELF B
AN AFEEREBERIEBIZESZA



26.

27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

Cash and bank balances

As at 31 December 2019, cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
approximately HK$8,736,000 (2018: HK$16,766,000).
The RMB are not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The
carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances approximate
their fair values.

Bank balances held on behalf of clients

As at 31 December 2019, the Group maintained client trust
monies via Central Wealth Securities Investment Limited
(“CWSI”) and Central Wealth Futures Limited (“CWF”), which
were not held for settlement of approximately HK$71,352,000
(2018: HK$90,966,000) in segregated bank accounts in
accordance with the provision of Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Client Money) Rules.

The Group has classified the client trust monies as cash
held on behalf of clients in current assets section of the
consolidated statement of financial position and recognised
the corresponding trade payables to the respective clients in
current liabilities section of the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group is allowed to retain some or all
of the interest derived from the clients’ monies. The Group
is not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own
obligations. The carrying amounts of the bank balances held
on behalf of clients approximate their fair values.

26.

27.

RERBITERT
R-ZE—hAhF+—A=Z+—HB £&£EH
MARB(TARKDEZERE S KR
17 B 48,736,000 L (ZF — NF:
16,766,000/ L) c ARBETAIBHRLRA
Ha & 8 - ARIR A B i 2 JMNE B 12
RBIAREE SERMNESTERT A&
BEEETEBERBETINEER 2RTT
BARBRBLABHMER -

FRI]ITZRESREET BRITHERARER
SRR EBRIA S -RITEFHFRALEEL
HENTRBAGE CRTT - RE RIRTT
REzREERL QA FEREE-

REBEFEFEZRITEE
RZE—NF+-_A=+—8 ~EEFE
BREZLEREERAR ([FEZEAE])
MhEzHEBRAR ([REHE])RE
EEBELFLRBE(FPZE)RBESTR
BYRITERP T EYIERSEAE 2R FPE
SEFRIBE 471,352,000 5 (ZF — \F:
90,966,000/ 7T ) °

AEEKEFERRED BEREES MBI
MARARDEEMD IRREFPHAZR
T UHENETEFPZHERMNE SRR
K| T HARAKARE B B0 HER -
AEBEREERBHNDIEZHRE TP KA
ZHE - AKEFSEREFPRASMNE
rEZ2EH - RREFPHBBEZIRITEFR
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28. Trade payables

28. BNEZ KRN

Trade payables arising from BEERDHEFR
the business of trading and REEREBELEZ
distribution of electronic and T E 5B
accessory products
Trade payables arising from BARNEEREBEEY
the securities and futures e E 5 R
dealing business
— Clearing houses —KEET
— Cash clients “-ReER
— Margin clients —-REREP

Trade payables arising from securities dealing business bear
interest at 0.01% per annum and repayable on the settlement
day of the relevant trades. The carrying amount of trade
payables approximates their fair values.

Trade payables arising from futures dealing business are
non-interest bearing and repayable on the settlement day of
the relevant trades. The carrying amount of trade payables
approximates their fair values.

Included in the trade payables as at 31 December 2019 are
amounts due to Ms. Lam Hay Yin and Mr. Chen Xiaodong,
being the directors of the Company, of approximately
HK$30,000 (2018: HK$30,000) and HK$8,000 (2018:
HK$2,000) respectively arising from securities dealing
transactions, which are unsecured, bears interest at 0.01%
(2018: 0.01%) per annum and repayable on the settlement
day of the relevant trade transactions.

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the
directors, the ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the business nature.

170  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited 73 & 12 i 5 fR 2 7

2019 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2 —F—NF+_H=+—HI-F/E

29. Third party interests in consolidated

investment fund

9. RGEREESZE=RH

2019 2018

L El T =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FBT

Payables to third party interest holder f1ﬁ£ﬁA?x§E‘£Z
of consolidated investment fund

—HEERAEAREA

109,599 -

At as 31 December 2019, the Group held 29.26% interest of
Fortune China Bond SP Il which is a segregated portfolio of
Central Wealth Investment Fund SPC (“SPC-SPII”). Pursuant to
the management and investment management agreement with
SPC-SPII, the Group is the manager and investment manager
of the SPC-SPILI.

The Group has consolidated SPC-SPII to its consolidated
financial statements as the directors of the Company believed
that the Group has control over SPC-SPII (see Note 3).

Third party interests in consolidated investment fund represent
the share of net asset value of the investment fund held by
third parties (i.e. the remaining 70.74% interest of SPC-SPII)
which are recorded as a liability since these third parties can,
on their discretion at any time, require the fund to redeem
their participating shares for cash based on the net asset value
of the investment fund at the date of redemption. Accordingly,
the third party interests in consolidated investment fund of
approximately HK$109,599,000 are classified as liabilities
as at 31 December 2019. Mr. Xu Ke (“Mr. Xu”), a director
of the Company, subscribed 34.7% participating shares of
SPC-SPII and the corresponding amount of approximately
HK$53,811,000 was included in this balance. Mr. Xu is not
an agent of the Group and he does not have any voting power
over the fund.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the profit
generated from SPC-SPII attributable to the third parties
amounted to approximately HK$13,844,000 (2018: Nil) was
recognised as a change in third party interests in consolidated
investment fund included in other income and losses or gains,
net in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (Note 5).

R-ZZE—NAF+_A=+—8 AEEH
A Fortune China Bond SP 11 229.26% 1
%= ° 1M Fortune China Bond SP Il & Central
Wealth Investment Fund SPC 2 ¥& 7 & & 48
& ([SPC-SPIIl ] ) « #R 4% 82 SPC-SPII & 12 K 1%
ﬁai%%u%% NEEABSPC-SPIHEIE A K
B IR o

KEEE A5 SPC-SPI HF A B 47 & BF IS 3R 3% -
BHEANQRESRSKNERLEH SPC-
SPII ( R BIE3) °

R ARERESC CEZHEZEE=Z A
BREES ZEEFENDE (BISPC-SPI &k
T70.74% H#Ewm)  ZBEETAREBE R
RAAEFE=ZHOHEREE X%éw“@a
HREECEEFEEBEDNEZ2ERHIA
BRRE AUREGEARERESZEZH
MEZ£#9109,599,0008 TR —E—NLF+ =
B=+—BoEAAE - ARAIEZHNA
S ([R5 £ 1) R SPC-SPIl 234.7% 2
EAR% 5 - FE E & B A 4953,811,000/%8 7T i 51
ANZEBR -REETIEAEBZRE BEH
RZES W EAMRERE-

HE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HLEFE"
%fFJETESPC-SPIIFEZZ’]B 844,000/
T(ZE2E—N\FE)RFEREE=ZFR
ﬁé%ﬁé%ﬁﬁﬁﬁtmuﬁz)\&%%awlﬁzfﬁ/aa
B NG REES 22 (MsEs) o
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30. Other payables and accruals 30.

Hitb BN RERETEA

2019 2018
—2-hF g AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FTHTT

5,830 8,775
13,066 8,635
5,660 2,970
31,866 14,845
7,075 -

63,497 35,225

Accruals EEtER

Note interest payables (Note 33) PR A S (P3E33)
Loan interest payables * e B FRF B

Other payables Ho A F& A 58

Contract liabilities aRaE

* The loan interest payables are derived from the unsecured other

borrowings and margin loans of approximately HK$5,224,000
(2018: HK$909,000) and HK$436,000 (2018: HK$2,061,000)
in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

The Group’s payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing
and are normally settled within three months. The carrying
amount of financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals approximates their fair values.

Changes in contract liabilities under the management fee
services income during the year are as follows:

& ERERF B R EEE I WK W32
2 B GR E M 18 B 495,224,000/ T (=
Z — \4F : 909,000/ L) R R FE S BERH
436,000 70 (=& — J\4F : 2,061,000
JT) e

AEBEZERNFREAREFERRTER
—RRAR =8 A RE R - E &~ FRE &
FEAHEREEZERMAB REEEALR
FERE-

RERN ERERBURABEBTAHAGESE
EyFUNNE

2019 2018
—2-nF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T

Carrying amount at beginning of REH 2z FREE
the year

Increase due to receipts in advance KEFEF 2 AR IE N
from customer

Revenue recognised for the year REARER 2K E

9,500 -
(2,425) -

Carrying amount at end of the year ~ RERZ BREE

7,075 -

The performance obligation of the management services is
satisfied when the services are rendered and advances are
required before rendering the services.

The Group selected to choose a practical expedient and no
disclosure of remaining performance obligation of those
unsatisfied contracts with customers was made as all related
contracts have a duration of one year or less.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —FE—NF+ _H=—1—HILFEZ

31. Lease liabilities 31. HEAE
2019
“E-hEF
HK$’000
THERT
Within one year R—FR 20,010
Over one year but not more than two years HBiE—FETHBBRAE 5,142
25,152
Less: portion classified as current liabilities o BAREBABENISY (20,010)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 5,142
Lease obligations that are denominated in RMB other than the NARBMIEHBEEEREEEE
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out ZHEEAEHIMAT
below:
HK$'000
TET
At 31 December 2019 RZF—NF+ZA=1+—8 1,207
As at 31 December 2019, the future minimum lease payments R_ZB-NAF+-_RA=+—HB %EHE
of the net minimum lease payments are as follows: MNFREZ RRKEBERNKEINNT
2019
—2-NF
HK$’000
FTHET
Within one year R—FRX 20,670
Over one year but not more than two years iR —FETHEBRE 5,212

Total lease payments HE R REEE 25,882
Less: Finance charges B E A (730)

Total lease obligations fAEREREE 25,152
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32. Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
and bank overdrafts

Current
Bank overdrafts - secured

I
RITEX-HHEM

Bank borrowings - secured

Current portion of
mortgage bank
borrowings - secured

RITEE-FHM

REBRATERNBHD

-HER

Other borrowings
- unsecured
Other borrowings

- secured

EtEE- AN

EtbfEE-FHR

Non-current
Mortgage bank
borrowings - secured

FEH
RBRITER-FER

Effective
interest
rate per

annum (%)

BERENZ
(%)

481053
4.8%5.3

3.0t04.9
3.024.9

331035
3.3%3.5

8.0

8.3 to 14.1
8.3214.1

3.31t03.5

2019
“E-NE

Maturity

Ep

On demand
REX

2020
—Bo%F

2020
—ECEE

—=—=

On demand
REX
2020
—E-EF

—_——=

2021 - 2037

33835 “E--FZF

= B4
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EX

HK$/000
TR
117,103

105,000

8,057

113,057

215,000

214,854

429,854

660,014

148,283

808,297

32. SIERITREMEEURET

2018
“E-N\F
Effective
interest
rate per
annum (%) Maturity HK$'000
ERERE
(%) 5|5 FET
4910525  On demand 45,095
4.9%525 REX
22t03.7 2019 134,500
22837 ZE-hE
3.2t03.6 2019 7,798
32836 —E-NE
142,298
8.0  Ondemand 172,000
e
7.3t013.1 2019 300,178
738131 ZE-AF
472,178
659,571
32t03.6 2020 -2037 156,362
32836 “E-THE
“E=4F
815,933
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 =F—NF+=—A=—+—HIFFEZ

32. Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 32. St RMITREMEGURRIT

and bank overdrafts (continued) &% ()
Notes: BT
(@)  The Group's overdraft facilities amounting to HK$175,000,000 @@ AEEZFEXFER75000000/%E T (=

(2018: HK$175,000,000), of which approximately T — )\ 175,000,000 70) - R & H

HK$117,103,000 (2018: HK$45,095,000) had been utilised as REBHMEH#117,103,0008 T (= F

at the end of the reporting period. — /\% : 45,095,000/ 7T) °

(b)  The Group’s bank overdraft and certain of the Group’s bank b) LERFABEAEBETEINAEEET
borrowings included above are secured by: RITIEE T AT 5 B IEEHE A :

i. mortgages over the Group’s investment property situated i. REBURBEBEZREMFE 2 RIG
in Hong Kong, which had a carrying value at the end MR &E HIR 2 BR ™ {8 A390,000,000
of the reporting period of HK$390,000,000 (2018: # T (=2 — V5 :435,000,000/&
HK$435,000,000) (Note 15). 7t) (MiEE15) -

ii. listed securities pledged to the Group held by i. ABTREEFHBEEATAEE
certain margin clients with an aggregate amount 2 F TR % #8EH 4 /220,439,000
of approximately HK$220,439,000 (2018: B (ZZF—/\F:197,595,000/&
HK$197,595,000). L) ©

(c)  Certain of the Group’s other borrowings are secured by listed (© AEEBHHMEEUREEFFN LT
securities held by the Group with market values as below: BEHFEEM MEAT:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF

Stock code Accounting classification HK$’000 HK$’000

R 5 2508 FTHER THET

0388 Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss 5,060 -

FRBERBRATEIRZBRARE
1323 Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss 962 -
FRBERRATEIRBRARE

1004 Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

FREMEEWEEQNTFEIEZBRARE

0572 Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

FEREMEEAREZRATEIIRZBRAKRE

1141 Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income 475,747 1,276,397
BEREMEERRIEAFEIRZKAEE
505,643 1,276,397
(d)  Other borrowings — unsecured are repayable on demand to d) HtfEm— ﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁaﬁk%ﬂﬂ B TR
Globally Finance Limited, a subsidiary of FWF. REeEBZHBRARERABERAF
(e) Current portion of bank borrowings and other borrowings are (e) R1T W\&Eﬁﬁf FENH R —F
maturing within one year. The carrying amounts of these loans Al @J Hﬁ EERNEEREEEAT
approximate to their fair values. BRE
() Mortgaged bank borrowings bear floating rates with reference H EBFITER2R %f:/%'f ﬁﬁ]%?ﬁ%
to HIBOR and Prime Rate. The carrying amounts of these loans REEBEFNEFHEZE -ZFERZ
approximate their fair values. FREESEAATEREE-
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33.

34.

176

Notes payable

33.

Notes payable ENEE

ENRE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
86,574 86,574

The Group issued notes (the “2016 Notes”) with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$92,100,000, before related expenses
of HK$5,526,000, to an independent individual. The 2016
Notes bear interest at a rate of 4% per annum and will mature
in January 2024. The interest will be repayable by the Group
annually on the anniversary of the issue date of the respective
notes and up to the maturity date.

The Group has calculated the interest of notes payable by
the effective interest rate at 5.04% (2018: 5.04%) per annum
and the amount of notes payable interest of approximately
HK$13,065,000 (2018: HK$8,635,000) included in the other
payables in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the
year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

34.

REEMR —BBIALTEHTEE([ZZ
—NEZIE])  HBR5,526,00078 JT H B8 5
SRl Z A 4% 592,100,000 L = F
—RNEZBERFEMNRI4%FE IR T
—MFE—- AR ALEAEIHARE
FRAEEERTASZBFEERER S -

KREBDREFS04% (T — N\ F:
5.04%) 2 ERMERAERNEZEF S &
NEER B Z254%13,065,0008 7T (=ZF
—J\fF 18,635,000/ 70 ) it AR & B F5 HR 3%
MI5E302 B fib JEA 5RIE

i FE B 1]
BERABEREENFRZEHMT

EEBHERE

Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related

depreciation

TEREEB

BENE

HK$’000

FET

At 1 January 2018 AT \F—H—H 134
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated RNt Aff& Bam&k ZBERIE (EE10)

statement of profit or loss during
the year (Note 10) (49)

Gross deferred tax liabilities at
31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated FRRERE
statement of profit or loss during
the year (Note 10)

ZE-N\F+ZA=F+T—HEK
“E-NF-A-RZEEHRAGERRE
Bam RN RIEN IR (MiEE10)

Gross deferred tax liabilities at
31 December 2019

CE-NFTZRA=+-BIZELEHIEABERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —FE—NF+ _H=—1—HILFEZ

34. Deferred tax (continued)

34, IEERIE (@)

Deferred tax assets EEHIEEE
The related
Credit loss  depreciation
allowances of in excess of
Share-based other financial depreciation
compensation assets allowance Total
UR#HAE HttmEE FBRFTEES
EfcHE FEBBRERE WERE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FH T#x T8 T#x
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\¥—-A—H - 55 - 55
Deferred tax credited to FNFAGEBERR L
the consolidated EEFIE (KE10)
statement of profit or
loss during the year
(Note 10) 2,553 211 - 2,764

—E-N\E+ZA=t—H
E=—F-NF—-A—-HZ

Gross deferred tax assets at
31 December 2018 and

1 January 2019 EEHEEERE
Deferred tax credited to FNFAGEBERZ
the consolidated ERERIE (HEE10)

statement of profit or loss
during the year (Note 10)

“E-NF+ZA=+—-H
ZERHRBERE

Gross deferred tax assets at
31 December 2019

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial
position. As at 31 December 2018, the deferred tax balances
of the Group amounted to approximately 2,734,000 for
financial reporting purposes.

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$1,300,680,000 as at 31 December 2019
(2018: HK$1,337,734,000) that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Such unused tax losses are subject to the
approval of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised due to unpredictability
of future profit streams. Tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

RENBHMs ETECHBEBEENLE
BERUHBRAREHE R_ZT—N\F
+—A=+—8 BMYBEREHmME K
B ZBEERIBLAERL 52,734,0008 7T ©

RZBE—-NE+—A=+—H KEBAH
REBE A 2 FHIAE B H1,300,680,0007
T (ZZF—N\%:1,337,734,000/8 7T) * A]
R IR BB 2 AR 2 KK FERFEF
ZEADAHEERASEEHS B E
BRHAEE AR A EF RN T A IE
AN B EER T EERIBEE B
B e ERREA -
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35. Share capital 35. BR&
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
Authorised: SETE
80,000,000,000 80,000,000,0008%
(2018: 80,000,000,000) ordinary (== —)\4% :80,000,000,0000%)
shares of HK$0.01 each BREBEIETZERR 800,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR:
14,719,650,461 14,719,650,4610% (= ZF— N\ 4F:
(2018: 14,716,650,461) ordinary 14,716,650,4615% )
shares of HK$0.01 each BREE.OB Tz LBk 147,197 147,167

A summary of movements of the Company’s issued shares
capital and share premium account is as follows:

BEAD R BTRA R % EE s &
gy T

Issued Share
Number of share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
BRETRAHE BERITRA B4R ER @zt
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
gz TAET TAET TEL
At 1 January 2018 R-E-N\F—H—H 12,716,650,461 127,167 4,491,489 4,618,656
Issue of new shares ESavilan) (i) 2,000,000,000 20,000 180,000 200,000
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F
and 1 January 2019 +-A=+-HK
“E2-h&—HR—H 14,716,650,461 147,167 4,671,489 4,818,656
Exercise of share options TR 2 (ii) 3,000,000 30 215 245
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NEF
+-A=+—H 14,719,650,461 147,197 4,671,704 4,818,901
Notes: 3T -

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group placed a
total of 2,000,000,000 shares at HK$0.1 per share representing
15.73% of its total issued capital at that time. The proceeds
from the placing of approximately HK$200,000,000 was used
for the repayment of loan.

(i)~ During the year ended 31 December 2019, 3,000,000 share
options were exercised which results in 3,000,000 shares being
issued at a price of HK$0.059 per share.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the scheme are included in Note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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2,000,000,0000% 8% 15 - HE R E R 2 26
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36. Reserves

The contributed surplus of the Group arose as a result of the
Group reorganisation upon listing of the Company’s shares
in 1994, and represented the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the former holding company of the
Group prior to the Group reorganisation and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

In addition, pursuant to special and ordinary resolutions
passed at the special general meeting held on 22 September
2000, the issued and fully paid share capital of the Company
was reduced by HK$448,992,000 through a reduction in the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company. The credit
so arising was transferred to the contributed surplus.

On 28 July 2005, a capital reorganisation scheme was
approved by the shareholders under a special resolution,
pursuant to which, every 10 shares of HK$0.01 each in
the issued share capital of the Company were consolidated
into one consolidated share of HK$0.10 and every issued
consolidated share was reduced in nominal amount by
cancelling HK$0.09 of the capital paid up for each issued
consolidated share so as to form (after the share consolidation)
one reorganised share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was
transferred to the contributed surplus.

On 26 March 2013, a capital reorganisation scheme was
approved by the shareholders under a special resolution,
pursuant to which, every 5 shares of HK$0.01 each in the
issued share capital of the Company were consolidated
into one consolidated share of HK$0.05 and every issued
consolidated share was reduced in nominal amount by
cancelling HK$0.04 of the capital paid up for each issued
consolidated share so as to form (after the share consolidation)
one reorganised share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was
transferred to the contributed surplus.

36.

i
AEBZEGEKRREARR B RN N
—ANmFEENRMETZEEEHA B
SEEARMAEEZATERARROEE
BARARARRBWZEFRN MBTRM 2E
BEFT% hc Bag

N BER-_ZEEEFNA -+ -HHE
TZBRERFIAE LMBBEZEIRER
RER AR ZEBRTRBERANER
BB AN~ B B8 28 2 T & M Bl Bk448,992,000
B -ENEAZEREREETHRG -

R_EBETERFE+A -+ NA BAELHA
BRI —EE R R R R - Rt
AARBBEITRAF F10/ SR EEO.01
B zBRHAEfAE—KREELIOBTZA
GERRfy MEBREBITAMHRH Z2EES
BIEEESBBITAFRMIBILZHRE
BE AN F AR Bt E A (R E &)
—REE0.OB T 2 &=, - AttESE
CHFREREEEE R%-

RZE—=F=A=+ 8 BRAEMHE:
R — IR RR B R BRI - Bt
ARRAFEEITRAF HRER@E.01E
TTZ M AR —REE0.05E T Z & B
By MEBRCETAHBROZEEEBR
HHE D BRITAMHKRN0.04B T ZBREK
AT LAHDR B E A (R & HH18) —
PREME0.OTE T2 REBER M -EILEEZ
EREREEHAR-
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36. Reserves (continued)

On 27 February 2015, a capital reorganisation was approved
by the shareholders under a special resolution, pursuant
to which, every 10 shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued
share capital of the Company were consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.10 and every issued consolidated
share was reduced in nominal amount by cancelling HK$0.09
of the capital paid up for each issued consolidated share so
as to form (after the share consolidation) one reorganised
share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was transferred to the
contributed surplus.

The equity component of convertible bonds arose from the
convertible bonds with the maturity date of 15 November
2010 issued by the Company in 2007, which had been fully
redeemed by the Company upon maturity.

37. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash
flows
(@ Major non-cash transactions
Other than disclosed in the notes 13 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements, no other material
non-cash transaction for the Group.

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statements of cash flow as cash flows from
financing activities.
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37. MERERERMT (&)

37. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash
flows (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing bRETBHREEEE YR (&)
activities (continued)
Other
borrowing
interest Total liabilities
Lease included in Other Bank Notes ~ from financing
liabilities  other payables borrowings borrowings payable activities
FAEMERN
B EAh REEDZ
HEak EEFIS s BiTteE ERRE RERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
At 1 January 2019 RZE-hE-A-R - 909 472,178 298,660 86,574 858,321
Effect of adoption of ERERYBREED
HKFRS 16 gl ivaZ 20,500 - - - - 20,500
At T January 2019 (restated) RZF-n%-A-H
(BE5)) 20,500 909 472,178 298,660 86,574 876,821
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BEREHEHE:
Proceeds from new unsecured other ~ ¥TiE BEH At &
borrowings FEHA - = 55,000 = = 55,000
Proceeds from new secured other  FTEHEFEMEES
borrowings FEHE S S 134,776 = S 134,776
Proceeds from new secured bank  FTEHEFFITEE
borrowings FEME - = = 105,000 = 105,000
Repayment of secured bank ERBEAMRGEE
borrowings - - - (142,320) - (142,320)
Repayment of unsecured other BERERADEE
borrowings - - (12,000) - - (12,000
Repayment of secured other ERAEMEMES
borrowings - - (220,100) - - (220,100)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEfEas (17,519) = = = L (17,519)
Payment for interest portion of XEBEENSHH
other borrowings = (909) (11,603) = = (12,512
Payment for interest portion of XFRTEENSED
bank borrowings = = = (8,726) = (8,726)
Payment for interest portion of XNEERERHSHH
lease liabilities (1,130) = = = = (1,130)
Total changes from financing RERERNELDEE
cash flows (18,649) (909) (53,927) (46,046) - (119,531)
Other changes: H%e:
Interest charges on other borrowings  EfEE 2 FIEEA = 5,224 11,603 = - 16,827
Interest charges on bank borrowings  F/TEE 2 FIEEA - - - 8,726 = 8,726
Interest charges on lease liabilities ~ EEBEZFIEBA 1,130 = = = = 1,130
New lease liabilities HERERR 2,171 - - - - 2,171
Total other changes Et28eE 23,301 5,224 11,603 8,726 = 48,854
As at 31 December 2019 RZB-N%
+-A=1-H 25,152 5224 429,854 261,340 80,574 808,144
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37. MEBREREBRME @
b REETHFFEEEEZHER (&)

37. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash
flows (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (continued)

Other
borrowing
interest
included Total liabilities
Shareholder in other Other Bank Notes ~ from financing
loan payables borrowings borrowings payables activities
A AR
FAEZ A BEEDZ
BRER EERE HfplieE RITHHE eSS BEAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR TR TAT TAT TR TR
As at 1 January 2018 N-8-N5-5-A 122,000 6,847 525,930 331,819 86,574 1073170
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BER&H2E
Proceeds from new unsecured other %ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁwﬁg
borrowings s = = 55,000 = 55,000
Proceeds from new secured other ~ ¥TEREREAMEE
horrowings R = = 125,248 = 125,248
Proceeds from new secured bank MEREARTEE
borrowings FrEE - - - 75,000 75,000
Repayment of secured bank EEFERROREE
borrowings = = = (109,933) (109,933)
Repayment of unsecured other BEEERAMES
borrowings - - (234,000) - (234,000
Payment for interest portion of other X { £t R EF|E 55
borrowings - (0,847) (24,190) - (31,037)
Payment for interest portion of bank X3 BT EFEHH
borrowings - - - (11,749) (11,749)
Total changes from financing cash ~~ BRERSHEFBER
flows = (6,847) (77,942) (46,682) (131,471)
Other changes: EtEE:
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RMBAR - = = 1,774 1,774
Repayment of a shareholder loan ~ EEBERE (122,000) = = = (122,000)
Interest charges on other borrowings  EfEE 2 FIEEA = 909 24,190 = 25,099
Interest charges on bank borrowings  ${7{EE 2 7 & & - - - 11,749 11,749
Total other changes Et20eE (122,000) 909 24,190 13,523 (83,378)
As at 31 December 2018 RZB-NF
+=A=1+-H = 909 472,178 298,660 858,321
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38. Share option schemes

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the share option schemes include the
Company’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group or any invested
entity, suppliers of goods or services to the Group or any
invested entity, customers of the Group or any invested entity,
shareholders of the Group or any invested entity, holders of
securities of the Group or any invested entity and persons
or entities that provide research, development or other
technological support to the Group or any invested entity. A
share option scheme became effective on 27 August 2003
and expired on 26 August 2013 (the “2003 Scheme”). A new
share option scheme was adopted and became effective on
27 September 2013 (the “2013 Scheme”). Unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, the 2013 Scheme will remain in force
for 10 years from the effective date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted under the
2003 Scheme and the 2013 Scheme (collectively, the “Share
Option Schemes”) is an amount equivalent to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the dates of approval
of the Share Option Schemes unless approval for refreshing
the 10% limit from the Company’s shareholders has been
obtained. The maximum number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options granted to each
eligible participant in the Share Option Schemes (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders” approval in a general
meeting.

Under the Share Option Schemes, share options granted to
a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any grant of share options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, which would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5,000,000 is subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in a general meeting.

38. BRRETE

AARRTEBRETE BESEREE
HAEEANEREEBEMEMZEER
ZHEE-EREFISGERL2EERIER
NAEZ(BEBYIFNTESE) K&
BT MARERRZEMEES AEH
HEMAIRERR 2 EY kR ER -
AEBHRKTMARERRZEPL AEE
HAEMATERERR ZIE  ANEE [
it B Ral2BHFFBAMBAREERT
AT E N Al etk s H b H TS % 2
ALTSE AR - —HEREFIN _ZTZ=
FNAZH+LEHAERIR —_TE—=F\A
T+ ARBRS([ZEE=F:t8])-—E
FEREFERN - E—=FALA-++H
ERMER ([ —=F:12]) K Ik
BITBUHREBEIIN —E—=FEHRN
M HEBRFT T FEARABRK -

HITERE_ST=FHER_T—=F
AE (RS [ ZERRETEDEREER
BELZEBERE JRTZEHHMN
ZEMREN S EZSFREREFEAHRAR
AIE BTN 210% " BFRIEEAR A RIAR Rt
HEEFT10% < ERR - PER + — 18 A Hif -
AzEBhEt3saER2EETHE
By ZBEREMBETRERTZES KRN
A (BRETE EEHRRRITEZE
) N SEBARAT D HITRMN Z21% °
E—FRTEBHOWREZBRERABRR
ERRAES EHtE-

ZEBEREERT MAREEE 1TH
BHNTERRAIBEE 2T MBBEALE
TEERR B R L EVS B JE I TE B A -
N MER FARRREBARE B I
PWITEETRHEZEMBEEAL 2B
BEHREERTEREER (BFEER)
B+ ABERTEREEBEALTER
L ERE 2 ERE (BREETHE -BEFEK
MARITHECERE) MBI REETHR
HBEARREBE BTN 20.1% R EE (1R
EREEREZEBARARMHKTETE)
B 485,000,000/ 7 I ZEEAEBR R RS
EEUS IR ER L -
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38. Share option schemes (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option
Schemes may be accepted within 28 days from the date of
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determined by the directors, save that such period
shall not be more than 10 years from the dates of adoption
of the Share Option Schemes subject to the provisions for
early termination set out in the Share Option Schemes. Unless
otherwise determined by the directors at their sole discretion,
there is no requirement of a minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options granted under the Share
Option Schemes is determined by the directors, but shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the
share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share of the Company on the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders” meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 2,743,020,000
(2018: 1,073,464,000) share options were granted under the
2013 Scheme to eligible participants, 1,005,466,000 (2018:
Nil) share options were lapsed and 3,000,000 (2018: Nil)
share options were exercised. The outstanding options granted
under the 2013 Scheme shall continue to be valid and are
subject to the provisions of the 2003 Scheme and Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules.
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38. Share option schemes (continued) 38.

The following share options were outstanding during the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018:

BRETE (5
DTERERBEE-"T-AER-2— )\
E+ = A=+ — A EE RIS

2013 Scheme
weighted average

exercise price Number of
per share options

—T-=F5E

Az 0
FHITERE BESE
HK$’000 ‘000
TAET T
At 1 January 2018 R_ZE—N\F—HA—H 0.181 896,000
Granted during the year FARE 0.117 1,073,464

At 31 December 2018 and RZB-NF+_A=+—HRK

1 January 2019 —E-hAE—HA—H 0.146 1,969,464
Lapsed during the year FREH 0.174 (1,005,466)
Granted during the year FARE 0.059 2,743,020
Exercised during the year FATE 0.059 (3,000
At 31 December 2019 RZF-—N+ZA=+—8 0.169 3,704,018

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The exercise period of the share options that were outstanding
as at 31 December 2019 are from 18 April 2018 to 10 April
2020, 3 May 2019 to 2 May 2021, 4 June 2019 to 3 June
2021 and 20 June 2019 to 19 June 2021.

R BB 2 77 518 oK 4 AR - ¢ 17 40 AR
AR 2 HAELE B B -

R-E—NAF+_A=+—H  HEKTE
EREZTERAE-_Z— /\FEMNA+/\H
E_ET-_ZFNA+H -ZE—NFHA
—HE-_E-_—FRA-H -ZE—NF
ANANBE-_ZE-_—FXNAZBAEK=FE
—hERNRAZ+tRE-ZZE-_—%FXATAh
E]o

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F£#& 185



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2019 B2 —F—NF+ _H=1—HILFEZ

38. Share option schemes (continued) 38.
The fair values of the equity-settled share options granted
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 were
estimated by Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, an
independent firm of professionally qualified valuer, using the
binomial option pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
fair value of the equity-settled share options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2019 was HK$66,809,000
(2018: HK$44,918,000). The Group recognised a share option
expense of HK$66,809,000 (2018: HK$44,918,000) during
the year ended 31 December 2019. The following table lists
the inputs to the model used.

Share options granted 20 June
2019
—B-NF

BB ARE AAZ=+H
Dividend yield (%) Az B R (%) N/A T A
Expected volatility (%)  TEFHEIE (%) 78.09
Historical volatility (%) & 52 K 1@ (%) 78.09
Risk-free interest rate (%) % &g F1] & (%) 1.74
Expected life of FREtERESH (F)

options (year)
Share price at grant MR L B BARE

date (HK$ per share) (BT 8k)

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
3,704,018,000 (2018: 1,969,464,000) share options
outstanding under the Share Option Schemes, which
represented approximately 25% (2018: 13%) of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in full
of the share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 3,704,018,000 (2018:
1,969,464,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of approximately HK$37,040,000
(2018: HK$19,695,000) and share premium of approximately
HK$587,750,000 (2018: HK$268,076,000) (before issue
expenses).

No vesting period of the share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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= i L — T\ F
ANAMOA AA=H RibiEWANE
N/ATER NAFTER BVLSS:EE
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2
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39. Lease arrangements

As lessor

The Group leases its investment property (Notes 15 to the
consolidated financial statements) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms of 1 year. The
terms of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay
security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants falling due as follows:

39.

HEZ 5

ERHBEA
AEERBLEHELCHHBEEREDE
(REAMBBMEMTIS) BFEHOARH
—F-HEGRRT -—REXBEFLARE
Ee TREERBRITHRAERERES
o

RZZBE-NFF+-_A=1T—8 XEEHR
BEARBGEEEMER T 5 R < - KA
FZARZEREFIBARBEAOT :

—FN

Within one year

2019 2018
—z-n5 LI
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiBT BT

- 1,350

As leasee

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the Group
adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to these leases (see Note 2(a)). From 1
January 2019 onwards, future lease payments are recognised
as lease liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position in accordance with the policies set out in Note 2(l),
and the details regarding the Group’s future lease payments
are disclosed in Note 31. No operating lease commitment for
the Group as at 31 December 2019.

No operating lease commitment for the Group as at
31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group leases certain of its
properties under lease arrangements. Leases for properties
are negotiated for term arranged from one to three years.
The Group had total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows.

ERABE AN

AEBEFERACETBPEINSERAES
B RE R EB165R - RIBUL 5 AEH
FAERN -_ZE-NE—F—BNHYKE
NHEREZEHEFBNHEERE (RH
H2@) B -_ET—h&E—A—B# Kk
FHEMRBERBEHME20) FEHBERES
HBRANEABRATRERGE EHAE
EARKBEMNRZFBERMEIIRE K
EER-ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HEBHER
BHEAIE-

RZE—NE+-_A=+—HB AEBEL
BB TR E A -

RZFE-NFE+T_A=+—B AKER
BFHEZHHEEEETYER -BEWEHE
WA —E2=F -AKERBETAHHEL
LSHERTIHEIB 2 RARRKEREN
AR T

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

F_FEFLF (BREEMF)

2019 2018
—B-hF —EN\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERx TET
16,398

6,328

22,726
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39. Lease arrangements (continued) 39. HEZH @)
As leasee (continued) EREBA ()
The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of offices held AEERBRBELEHERENETHAE
under operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of WAEBA - BHR-—ROTR—FH=F 7
one to three years with options to renew the lease when all EEHMBEAMBGRRREN -HEEE
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases include contingent N REE -
rentals.
40. Commitments 40. H4¥E
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in B b SCBY FE39PT a2 8 & T B AHE SN
Note 39 above, the Group did not have any significant capital RN EHR AEB W EEEKRE R
commitments at the end of the reporting period. el
41. Related party transactions 41. BEALR S
(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in @ MBRAFBEBRREMBOMSFLE LS
these financial statements, the Group had the following SN REBERAFEAATEE TR
transactions with certain related parties during the year. BALZRS:
2019 2018
—F-hEF —T-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FTER THET
Interest income on margin KREEFETEFREER
financing from directors RHZRECHEZ
arising from securities M EUA
dealing transactions (i) 2,391
Commission income received ~ WHEFETEREE
from directors arising from RHZ2MEHA
securities dealing transactions (i) 136
Interest expenses on loans *E—RBERRIERZ
from an associate MEFX (if) 12,241
Interest income of an associate B —&EFWHLZ
received from a director —MEE AT 2T BUA (i) 1,109
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41. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)
Note:

(i) Commission income and interest income on margin
financing received from directors of the Company which
arose from securities dealing transactions were charged
based on mutually agreed terms with reference to the
prices and conditions similar to those offered to other
customers of the Group.

Commission income and interest income on margin
financing received from directors of the Company of
approximately HK$1,749,000 (2018: HK$1,409,000)
also constituted connected transaction as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(ii) Interest expenses on loans from an associate were
charged at a rate of 8% per annum on the principal
amount for the period from 1 January 2019 to 13 March
2019.

As disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had lost significant influence over
the associate on 13 March 2019 and hence the lender
is not considered by the Group as a related party since
then.

(iii)  Interest income of an associate received from Ocean
Wave Motion Pictures (International) Limited, 50%
owned by Mr. Chen Xiaodong, an executive director of
the Company, was charged at a rate of 12% per annum
on the outstanding amount of advancement.

As disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had lost significant influence over
the associate on 13 March 2019 and hence the lender
is not considered by the Group as a related party since
then.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:
The Group considers the directors of the Company to be the
key management personnel, whose compensation has been
disclosed in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the balances with the Company’s directors as at 31

December 2019 and 2018 are included in Notes 18, 21, 28
and 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

41. BEALTR S (#)

(%)
B 5L :
i) WREARREFLETEFEERS

ZHREWRARRBSBEF WA
1Z A E % R UE W2 E R
AEFBEMBEFRHEZABESLR
i

WEARREREZAS WA RRE
T RE R B U A 41,749,000/ 7T
(== — )\ 4 : 1,409,000/ 7T ) IR
RETBBFEUAZBENREZBE
HER 5

i) R-E-—h&—A—-BE-T—h
E=A+ZBMME BEANRK
2 ) 8.3 T B S FE 8% ) A
YR -

A AR A B IS R MY R 18P B ER
AEER-_Z-AF=A+=HE
HEMENRREEARZE N At
BUt AR REBTBBERAR
REEAL

(i) BRHZE(BHBE)ERAR (AR
REAMTEERERELEHEE50%)
W HR B — @) B i X R) 2 R BT
FEARE B B RIR 2% B F R UYTHR -

A AR A B RS R MY R 18P B ER
AEER-_Z-AF=A+=HBE
HEMENRIREBAZE N At
BUb AR RNEBTBEBERAR
REEANL-

AEBXEEBEABZHE
AEFBR/ARAESTH/IBEEEAR
BEALTZHMERNERS BT MR 8K
o

HEE AT 2 REEER

AR _ZEZ-—NFER-ZTZ-N\F+_A

T+ BHEAQRRESIZEHBZFBIR
RAMBHmARMEI8 . 21 28%29 -
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42. Financial instruments by category
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

Financial assets

Financial asset

42. ZERE SR IT A

EESMTANREHK EEENT

TREE

Financial asset
at fair value

at fair value
through profit

Financial assets
at amortised

through other
comprehensive

or loss cost income
FEREHM
ERBERE 2H KRR E
DNEEGERZ REHRAR R DNEEYEZ
CREE ZEMEE CREE wt
—E-NEF
31 December 2019 +=—A=+—H HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT THERT TERT THERT
Debt investments at FHiBERIEATEE
fair value through BIEE Y BIEILE
profit or loss 168,530 168,530
Equity investments at FHiREHMETE I E
fair value through AT EGEY
other comprehensive AR A3
income 506,650 506,650
Equity and fund FEBEREATE
investments at fair BIEBR 7 PE A &%
value through HEHBE
profit or loss 115,505 115,505
Loan receivables MEEBEL
from money EE =
lending business 446,462 446,462
Trade receivables BENHEES
from securities and MIKEA S
futures dealing e U 2 5 RE 2R
business 412,344 412,344
Trade receivables MEREESE
from placing and BIKEA Y
asset management EE 5=
business
Financial assets included 5+ A ¥8 1 FI& -
in prepayments, Re RHE MWK
deposits and HEY S MEE
other receivables 100,054 100,054
Cash and bank balances IR & NiR{T451% 99,219 99,219
Bank balances held REEZPIEAR
on behalf of clients RITHET - 71,352 = 71,352

284,035 1,181,696 506,650 1,972,381
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42. Financial instruments by category (continued) 42. RERE D 2T E #)

Financial asset

investments
Financial asset at fair value
at fair value  Financial assets through other
through profit atamortised  comprehensive
or loss cost income Total
ERBHRE ERHEM2ENR
ATEIRY REHRAIE HRATFEIE
SREE ZEMEE ZEoRMEERE @t
31 December 2018 ZB2-\¥t=ZA=t-H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Equity investments at fair value BB E M2 H Kz
through other comprehensive 2 AF{EFIER 2 RARE
income - - 1,296,154 1,296,154
Equity investments at fair value EBBREATEER
through profit or loss BAKRE 21 = = 21
Loan receivables from money — ME¥EE 2 BRER
lending business = 299,497 = 299,497
Trade receivables from securities AN HEETEKELEZ
and futures dealing business EUE 587 = 395,294 = 395,294
Trade receivables from placing EEREEEREBELZ
and asset management business  FE4UE Z R = 6,294 = 6,294
Financial assets included in FABARE -BER
prepayments, deposits and other H B FRIE 2
receivables tREE - 33,100 - 33,100
Cash and bank balances BeRBTER = 100,910 . 100,910
Bank balances held on behalf of KXZFHEBRITEE
clients = 90,966 = 90,966
21 926,061 1,296,154 2,222,236
Financial liabilities SHAE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-)N\F
Financial liabilities at amortised cost XK AR 2 S RO B (& HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Trade payables JENE SRR 74,108 99,486
Financial liabilities included in FSFAHMENRIEREFERZ
other payables and accruals TRBE 56,422 35,225
Third party interests in consolidated REGEREESZE=FEn
investment fund 109,599 -
Notes payable EANEE7 86,574 86,574
Lease liabilities HEARE 25,152 =
Other borrowings HmEE 429,854 472,178
Bank borrowings RITEE 261,340 298,660
Bank overdrafts IRITEX 117,103 45,095

1,160,152 1,037,218
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43. Offsetting of financial instruments 43. HEFE TR ITH

The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off RNE BB R A AR 1T K 85 U &
receivable and payable with Hong Kong Securities Clearing ENEETREZEERAF ([BEEEE])
Company Limited (“HKSCC”) and Hong Kong Futures LREBHEHEEMERAR ([HEEER
Exchange Clearing Corporation Limited (“HKCC”); and the Al ZzHE: MAEBBRIRFREZERI
Group intends to settle on a net basis as trade receivables IENBEEELRPEGERRICESE
from or trade payables to HKSCC and HKCC. e

In presenting the amounts due from/to the clearing houses, REVNEH R EERRER  KEE
the Group has offset the gross amount of the trade receivables EMEREERZE SR EEEHERN
from and the gross amount of the trade payables to the HEMZESERABE-BEHES BT
clearing houses. The amounts offset and the net balances are BRI

shown as follows:

Gross amount Amount Offset Net amount
B BKHESHE FE
31 December 2019 —E-NF+=ZA=+—H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TERT TET
Amount of trade receivables R E T2 & S8R
from the clearing houses 203,629 (203,629)
Amount of trade payables ENEEMZE SRR
from the clearing houses (209,103) 203,629 (5,474)
Gross amount Amount Offset Net amount
Hx CHEHESE FE
31 December 2018 —E-NF+=ZA=+—H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAER FTAER FER
Amount of trade receivables EW4EEFT 2 E 5 BER
from the clearing houses 246,576 (243,743) 2,833
Amount of trade payables ENEE R ZE SRR
from the clearing houses (249,931) 243,743 (6,188)
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44. Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and bank balances, loan receivables from money lending
business, trade receivables from securities and futures
dealing business, trade receivables from placing and asset
management business, trade payables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
bank overdrafts, bank and other borrowings, and third party
interests in consolidated investment fund approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The Group's finance department is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. The finance manager reports
directly to the financial controller and the audit committee.
At each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.

The valuation is reviewed and approved by the financial
controller. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair value of the notes payable and lease liabilities have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities, which
approximate to their carrying amounts.

44.

TRIAERNFEHER

HRBEERRTET NEXBELEZE
WER BFMMEEEXHEL 2RI
BIRK BEENEEEERKELZRE
WE SRR BNE SRR s ATRMNFE
BehEMEERAZEMEE FFAH
MENRBELREAERZEREE RIT
BEX RTREMBEEARREEREER
EXE=ZTHEBAZREMAINE WE
BERARETLARFERAKREERS

AEEMBHPEERESRTARATE
AFEBUR R - MRS S B & (R B 5 4R
ENBERZEQER - NERSBH UK
MEASMEMTABEZEH REEME
RAREANEZEABE-

GEmTBEEEN RN - BREER
BRIEEBRRERNEBREEWHRS
SEFRFR -

TRMEENMBBENATFERZIARER
X577 (MFRAIBREE)EMZH T
MARHEBARKR: NI T ARBRIA
RIEERFE:

RNEBELEERENAFEBRBERAR
wRLGT  EERR RF SR BMERN
TEEMAR/MNEMTABERRRRESRE
mEtE - BEKREERS -
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44. Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments 44. E@MTAAFEER (&)

(continued)

The fair values of listed equity investments at fair value FRHEMEPEARRRAFEINEKZ ETR
through other comprehensive income and equity investments R E KRB BIBERERNTAEIE R
at fair value through profit or loss are based on quoted market BZ ATV EERTISHREMETE
prices.
The fair values of debt investments at fair value through profit FRBAERATEIRNERREZRTF
or loss and fund investments at fair value through profit or ERFBBEFZBRATFTEIEZEESRED
loss are based on quoted market price in inactive markets. ERATERBNTSRMEMETE -
Fair value hierarchy NFEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRITAEEeRIANATFHETEE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: &
Assets measured at fair value: BAFEAENEE:
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets input inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
WER BEAUERE BAFTEE
S HRE BAHE BARE
(E—E&) (B=E#&) (B=EB&) #act
At31 December 2019  RZZ—h%F
t-HA=1+—H HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TR TR
Debt investments at BRBHREATE
fair value through JIfR BEHIRE
profit or loss 168,530 168,530
Equity investments at FREMREKE
fair value through BN ENEZ
other comprehensive BRARE
income 506,650 506,650
Equity and fund BERBRRATE
investments at fair SR Z RA
value through EeRE
profit or loss 38,432 77,073 115,505

545,082 245,603 790,685
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44. Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments

45.

(continued)

44. ERMITERAFEEBHK @)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) NP EER (&)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets input inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RIER EATERE EAFTTHE
miEHRE BAHE BAHE
(5—E&R) (FZEB&R) (F=E®&) Bt
As at 31 December 2018 AT —/\F
+=A=+—H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHERT THERT FHERT
Equity investments at FREMEEKR
fair value through BATEINEZ
other comprehensive BRAKE
income 1,296,154 - - 1,296,154
Equity investments at FRBHEEATE
fair value through SR AR E
profit or loss 21 - - 21
1,296,175 - - 1,296,175

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 (2018: Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise equity,
debt and fund investments and cash and bank balances. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables from
securities and futures dealing business, trade receivables from
placing and asset management business, loan receivables
from money lending business, trade payables, notes payable,
other borrowings, bank borrowings, third party interests in
consolidated investment fund and lease liabilities. Details of
the major financial instruments and the Group’s accounting
policies in relation to them are disclosed in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

45.

FRAVTEEF-EREE _ERENQF
B EEE(ZZ—N\F:8)-

AEER - Z-NFR-_ZE-NF+_A
St RAYEEMEAFEFEZERA

& o

BEEEEEEREE

FEEZIZERTIABERN BB X
ESRENRBSMBTEF HLFTER
TAFZEERAREZZESRES
AEEREEM TR zZEMEERAE:
MESLMEEEXBREEZREE SR
R EEREEEEREBELEZCREES
BRX BEEBELEZRKER ENES
R RANER HEMEE RITEE R
HEREEGZE=FTRaEEEE-
TESRTARAEEHZFERTAZ
HESTHRRF RN GEE MWK 23

o
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BEEREEEEREE @

45. Financial risk management objectives and 45.

pOliCieS (continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from dealings in securities which are
settled in currencies other than the Company’s functional
currency and holding of bank balances in foreign currency.
As at 31 December 2019, cash and bank balances of
RMB7,810,000 (2018: RMB16,076,000) and US$8,756,000
(2018: US$4,346,000) were held by the Group. As the
HK$ is pegged to the US$, the Group considers the risk of
movements in exchange rates between the HK$ and the US$
to be insignificant.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to reasonably possible changes in the
RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Company’s profit/(loss) before tax and the Company’s

equity.

AEBzZeRTAMELAZ T ERR AN
¥Rk MERER- EERR RBESE
RERAERER - EZSCRALAR
It F R 2 ERBR - WA T -

SMEE | By
AREBASZZFEERK -BHERKKS
AARDNBIHEEE M NI Bl E - &5
RGUBRNINERRB ZRITETF - KT
—hE+ZA=+—8B r&£EEEHES
RRITHEEARY7,810,000T (ZZE— N
F£: AR #16,076,0007T ) }8,756,000% 7T
(ZZ— )\ 4,346,000 7T) - R B T
BMETHE AEERABTLLETZE
REBEBER

TRHABEMBEMERERTTE N K
FHRRARBEXRZAEAREHHAR
ARBANEN, (BB RARBER 2%
BIHRE-

(Decrease)/ Increase/
increase in (decrease) in Increase/
exchange rate profit/(loss) (decrease)
(%) before tax in equity

BB Al
Ex B (BB R
(F&) /L£#  #&m/ CRL)  #&m/ CE)
(%) HK$ HK$
BT BT

31 December 2019 —E-NF+-A=+—H

If the Hong Kong dollar WETHARERE
weakens against the RMB
If the Hong Kong dollar HWETEARETHE

strengthens against the RMB

31 December 2018 - N\F+=ZA=+—H

If the Hong Kong dollar BT ARERE

weakens against the RMB (5) 838 737
If the Hong Kong dollar HBETRAREAE

strengthens against the RMB 5 (838) (737)
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45. I EKREEBZEREEK &)

R E
ARBRTHENREHMAT 2 ARTE
EARRBLFBHANEA B ZEEEM-

45. Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCieS (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings
with a floating interest rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a TRUFE A E MBS T LR
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other EAHELER NESEARZEFHE AR
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, of the RAIKRBADRF, (B1R) CRBYZEEME
Company’s profit/(loss) before tax (through the impact on E2HBIRARRER B BRE -
floating rate borrowings) and the Company’s equity.

2019 2018
“E-hE “T-N\E
(Decrease)/
Increase/ increase/in  (Decrease)/ Increase/ (Increase)/ (Increase)/
(decrease) in OIISTVEEE S (decrease) in+ decrease in - decrease in
basis points ~ before tax basis points loss before tax equity
BRBE DR A BREaEE En
E%sEn/ (HD) / i EEm/  (Em) / (gm /S
(R2) B CR) e e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TAL TAL
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (2,505) (2,363) 100 (4,076) (3,841)
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) 2,505 2,363 (100) 4,076 3,841

The Company’s policy to manage its cash flow interest rate
risk is to minimise the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings
which bear interest at floating rates.

ARBEBAERSRENEER 2 BRD
EBERLARBRIHMEGFEZFE
=S,

B X

=

FERR
AEEERRRANERAREZE=T7E
IR -BBARBZHE  FRERIRESR
HETR S RPBARBEERERRF-
e S - L B 3R D P AS A A4 B 4 R WA £
B MAKE 2 ZRREBRIL AEK AR
B EERNEREAR  JTHRARAES
CEEERBEL ZRBWE ZERR LA
ERBETEXRBEL ZRKE S KRRA
ZETRAEFER-

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Company’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
by the risk management department on an ongoing basis
and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant. The
Company has no significant concentration risk in view of the
fact that the Company’s trade receivables from securities and
futures dealing business and trade receivables from placing
and asset management business relates to a large number of
diversified customers.

BB ASRERRSAPEEEXTEL
ZRBESEFREENEEERRBE

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables from securities and
futures dealing business and trade receivables from placing EZRWKEZERMAREERR ZE—
and asset management business are disclosed in Notes 21 and SECEBNGEA P B |RRME21 k228K
22 to the consolidated financial statements. B

ARmHEtmeREE (EPaERe R

The credit risk of the Company’s other financial assets,

which comprise cash and bank balances and trade and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

TR DA R R URCE 5 B 3R e H At FE MR GR R )
ZIEERBBERZTHBRNKMAES R
R EMRBERNZELEZREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+-H=+—HI-FZ

45. Financial risk management objectives and
pOliCieS (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December
2019 and 2018
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December 2019. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial

45. IR EREE B EREBE (@)

EERK (#)
REZFE-NFR-ZF-NF+ZH=4+—
H 895 &5 /B B K G 4 B AR B

TRINTHR Z_ZZFE—NLF+-_A=+—H8BE
RAEEFERRZEGEEEZREAZ 2 &
SEERR HXBREAHEN (BRIEF
BANHTIBERASANABZEME
B URFEBLB DB -TE25 2 &%
ABEMEEZAKRAE-

assets.
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A B4
BEER PHRMEERA
Simplified
31 December 2019 ZE-NE+ZA=t-H Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-E& FER FER LHA2 At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR TER TER TER TER
Cash and margin client ReRRELER
receivables A
— LTV at 100% or above -EFHEENE
1R100% A £ - - 164,337 - 164,337
- LTV between 80% and 100%  — S EELE
7280% £100% = 169,283 - - 169,283
~ LTV less than 80% —ERHEELEDNE0% 164,651 - - - 164,651
164,651 169,283 164,337 - 498,271
Loan receivables, corporate EUER BREXEP
client receivables, JOR U ERER
investment funds receivables Hfth FE IR
and other receivables
— Not yet past due —HRBH 260,162 - - 50,913 311,075
— Less than 90 days past due -8 1908 = 274,258 = 1,591 275,849
~ More than 90 days past due ~ — %1 #iE1B90H - - 668 - 668
260,162 274,258 068 52,504 587,592
424,813 443,541 165,005 52,504 1,085,863
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 (continued)

45. B EREE B EREXK (&)

FEERRK (&)
RZE—NFR-_F—NF+-A=+—
H 895 = fE e R F 42 B AR B (1)

12-month ECLs

Lifetime ECLs

1218 A R
FEBE 2HEHEERE
Simplified
31 December 2018 ZE-\f+ZA=t-H Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-K& E-RR EZER k147 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THER TR TER THER
Cash and margin client RekRELERP
receivables JE W R
- LTV at 100% or above -ERHEELER
FA100% 504 £ = — 87,550 = 87,550
~ LTV between 80% and 100%  —EF I BEH X
180% £100% - 166,239 - - 166,239
— LTV less than 80% —ERHEELEDR0% 148,058 - = = 148,058
148,058 166,239 87,550 - 401,847
Loan receivables, FERES ERMERF
corporate client PR ERREEER
receivables, investment Hib IR
funds receivables and
other receivables
— Not yet past due —HARH 316,955 = 861 392 318,208
~ Less than 90 days past due —BH 4 r0R - - - 6,553 6,553
~ More than 90 days past due ~ —#1EiE1890R - - 9,065 - 9,065
316,955 - 9,926 6,945 333,826
465,013 166,239 97,476 6,945 735,673
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45. BERABREEEEREE (&)

45. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., trade receivables from securities and futures
dealing business, trade receivables from placing and asset
management business and loan receivables from money
lending business) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of the
Group’s available cash and its listed equity investments.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

On demand
or within
1 year
RERD
R—FR
—F-NE
31 December 2019 +tZA=+—H HK$'000
THER
Trade payables FET & 5 BRI 74,108
Financial liabilities T A E Ath fE At
included in other IR ERHE R
payables and accruals 2 & BB E 56,422
Third party interests E=ZFREERE
in consolidated BEo s
investment fund 109,599
Notes payable NS 3,684
Lease liabilities HE&E 20,670
Other borrowings HiEE 477,054
Bank borrowings RITEE 118,332
Bank overdrafts RITBEX 117,103

946,972
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RBESRRE

AEENAREERDESHE T AER
EeNRzZER HLATAZESHTA
ReMEE(PINMBEFRMEEEXEKE
EZRBESER BEREEERER
EXCREEIRARMERBEL ZE
WER)ZHHMBERFEAREEMBZR

by ~i—§
@/ﬁg"

AEEZBERERERBERAKE A
AREERELTRARE REESHE
[ESE IR LI

AEERBEATNARNBANRONTERE
BERREMRZ BB RAT :

Over 5
years

EFUE

HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TEr

= 109,599
103,253 - 106,937
5,212 = 25,882

= - 477,054
53,328 136,026 307,686
= = 117,103

161,793 136,026

1,244,791




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

45. Financial risk management objectives and 45. B RABERE B FEREX @)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBESERE (&)
On demand
or within Tto5 Over 5
1 year years years Total
BERRK
R—%FRA —ZERE AFUE st
—T-N\F
31 December 2018 +ZA=+—H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAERT FTET
Trade payables BT E SRR 99,486 = — 99,486
Financial liabilities ST AE BRI
included in other NEFERZ
payables and accruals £ @& & 35,225 - - 35,225
Notes payable EN & 3,684 106,937 — 110,621
Other borrowings HEuEE 475,720 = = 475,720
Bank borrowings RITEE 147,386 51,191 145,684 344,261
Bank overdrafts RITEX 45,095 - - 45,095
806,596 158,128 145,684 1,110,408
Price risk Ei%E
Price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity investments, BREBRERAKRE BHEREREESR
debt investments and fund investments decrease as a result BHRFETH®RZER TDHRRBRAER
of changes in the levels of equity indexes and the values of KERBAKEBEZEAB - AEEH
individual investment. The Group is exposed to price risk FREVERER RIS KRR AKRE &
mostly arising from equity investments, debt investments BRERESRE(DEREBBEXA
and fund investments that are classified as financial assets fEEKREAFEIEZEREE) - A
at fair value through profit or loss or other comprehensive SEHNKRMORAKRE REBHRE G
income. Majority of the Group’s equity investments and debt RIIREBWNBINEFXZH LT Ik
investments are listed on the Stock Exchange and respective FTREEGRNBINIZIMBEE -

overseas stock exchanges, while the unlisted investment fund
are traded in the over-the-counter markets.
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45. Financial risk management objectives and
pOliCieS (continued)
Price risk (continued)
Listed equity investments
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting
period. For the purpose of this analysis, for the equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
the impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve and no
account is given for factors such as impairment which might
impact on the statement of profit or loss.

45. BERABREEEEREE (&)

ERmERE (&)

LTRARE
TRETBREBRSHRZEREE RAKR
B2 RNFES% EE MR L MERERST
BYHBRRBAZEMNTERIHXE -5
ANFms HEBEMEEBSERAF
BIRZBEARE X ERER/E R FE
Bz E BETPYEZRBESTIEY
ERDmRCHE-

Carrying

amount
of equity
investments

BABREREE
HK$’000
TER

31 December 2019 —EZ-hF+=ZB=1+—H

Investments listed in: RTFEE ETHZIRE

Hong Kong — Equity investments & /& — i #8 H fth 2 @
at fair value through WaRATEINERZ
other comprehensive income IR AIRE

Hong Kong — Equity investments &% — & BB m ik A FE
at fair value through IR 2 AR E

profit or loss

506,650

38,432

Change in the
Group’s profit
before tax
AEEERBA
a2 E
HK$’000
TR

Change in the
Group’s equity

AREREZZEY

HK$'000
TERT

Carrying
amount Change in the
of equity Group's loss Change in the
investments before tax Group's equity
RE BT A
PR A% & BREE BIEEY AEERZED
31 December 2018 —E-N\F+ZA=+—H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FAT FAT
Investments listed in: RIS E EMZIRE -
Hong Kong — Equity investments & /& — 3% 8 H ith 2
at fair value through other WaRE A FEIRZ
comprehensive income AR E 1,296,154 = 64,808
Hong Kong — Equity investments &7 — & i@ 8@ & A F{E
at fair value through IR 2 IRAIRE
profit or loss 21 1 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

45. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Price risk (continued)

Unlisted fund investments

The fair value of unlisted fund investments of approximately
HK$77,073,000 (2018: Nil) depend on the valuation of the
respective investments or underlying investments. If the unit
price increased/decreased by 5%, profit before tax for the year
would have an estimated approximately HK$3,854,000 (2018:
Nil) increase/decrease.

Debt investments

For sensitivity analysis purpose of debt investments amounting
to approximately HK$168,530,000 (2018: Nil), if the prices
of debt investments had been 5% higher/lower, the profit
before tax for the year ended 31 December 2019 would have
increased/decreased by approximately HK$8,427,000 (2018:
Nil).

In opinion of the management, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the price risk as the year end exposure
does not reflect the exposure during the year.

45. B EREE B EREXK (&)

EE b (F)

HLTRERE

#377,073,0008 T E EME SR EN A
FE(ZE-NF E\)ESKRELEA
BERNHEZ - WEMERIL IR
5% F R BB A m A 1 5T 35 00,08 A 49
3,854,000 L (ZE—\F &) -

FL4168,530,000/8 70 (—ZF — )\ 4F : )Y
BEREREZHFEESNTME  MEBHKE
HE® LT T 5% BBEE T —NE
+ - A=+ —B I FERF AR A58,
L #98,427,0008 70 (Z T — )\ F &) o

EEERS SREITHERRRT S
¥ ARRKRY BFRRERIL A RRFA
22 o
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For the year endled 31 December 2019 B2 —F—NF+ _H=1—HILFEZ

45. MEAKREEEEZERBEK (@)

45. Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCieS (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders” value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity
ratio calculated as total debt, excluding lease liabilities,
divided by total equity. The debt-to-equity ratios as at the end
of the reporting periods were as follows:

EXERE

AEEEAEE 2T ERARRREARE
ERELERERRENERN LR UX
FEEBI RBERHERZAEE-

AEEEEREARE  WRELEMRR
MBI RBEEE BRSEmELHE-
AREEAREFHERN TRROKE AR
REEEARRBITHE AERFIHEE
ARB-RBE_T-NEFR-_ZF-)N\F
TZA=+T-BLFE AEEERER

AKBNUBEES SR (RERAE (T
BEAEAE) RIARRAENE) 2 &%
ERHAR NRENRZERE AL
R

2019 2018

—E-hF ZT-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FT#Ex FHET

Notes payable NS 86,574 86,574
Other borrowings HMEE 429,854 472,178
Bank borrowings RITEE 261,340 298,660
Bank overdrafts RITEL 117,103 45,095
Total debt EREFEEE] 894,871 902,507
Total equity HEmiasE 1,215,347 1,848,822
Debt-to-equity ratio IR R L & 73.6% 48.8%

The increase in debt-to-equity ratio as at 31 December 2019
was mainly due to the decline in the market values of listed
equity investments of approximately HK$789,504,000 (2018:
HK$1,296,175,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 =F—NF+=—A=—+—HIFFEZ

46. Statement of financial position of the 46. A1 F) 2 B #AR R &
Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the R|BERR NRBMBRREK 2 BRI
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: T
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WE RRE 1,122 1,827
Rights-of-use assets EREEE 5,601 —
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZI’E 247,082 267,433
Deposits ®e 8,146 7,759
Total non-current assets EMEBBEERE 261,951 277,019
Current assets REBEE
Due from subsidiaries FE U BT B A R FIE 815,981 1,548,107
Prepayments, deposits and FANFIE R A EKHIA
other receivables 37 892
Cash and bank balances Be MRITHETT 432 724
Total current assets MEBEERE 816,450 1,549,723
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals H B R K EETE A 18,977 12,217
Lease liabilities HEARE 6,464 =
Due to subsidiaries FEASHFfY /B A R FRIA 312,062 195,075
Other borrowings Hibfg g 215,000 172,000
Total current liabilities MBI AERE 552,503 379,292
Net current assets RBEEFE 263,947 1,170,431
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRRBER 525,898 1,447,450
Non-current liability FREBEE
Notes payable CENEE 86,574 86,574
Net assets BEFE 439,324 1,360,876
Equity =
Share capital &N 147,197 147,167
Reserves & 292,127 1,213,709
Total equity - Fag ik 439,324 1,360,876
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+-H=+—HI-FZ

46. Statement of financial position of the

Company (continued)

46. AR T ZMBERR K @)

Note: B 5T
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows RABFEHEHRENT :
Equity
component
Share Share of
premium  Contributed Capital option  convertible Accumulated
account surplus reserve reserve honds losses Total
TR
&%
ROEER BB  EARRE BRERE  BEERH  RHER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TATL TEL TERT TATL TEL TET
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-\§-F-H 4,491,489 675,671 556 60,600 47,257 (2,962,767) 2,312,806
Profit and total comprehensive loss AERENREARERE
for the year - - - - - (1,321,015 (1,321,015)
Equity-settled share option RS BRERS
arrangements, net FHE = = = 44918 = = 44918
Issue of new shares, BFTHRG  HRES R
net of expenses 177,000 = = = = = 177,000
At31 December 2018 and RZZE-N\%
1 January 2019 TZA=+-BR
“Z-NE-A-H 4,668,489 675,671 556 105,518 47,257 (4,283,782) 1,213,709
Profit and total Comprehensive loss AERENREABRLER
for the year = = = = = (984,6609) (984,669)
Exercise of share option TEERE 215 = S (69) = = 146
Lapse of share option BlREEY - S S = = 60,600 60,600
Equity-settled share option REEE 2 BRERH
arrangements, net FE = = = 2,341 = = 2,341
At31 December 2019 RZZ-NE
+-A=t+-H 4,608,704 675,671 556 107,790 47,257 (5,207,851) 292,127

HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HLEFEZ
E7181,321,015,0007% 7T B 5 £ [@ & Iy R A
FIM B A B FIE62,00078 7T ©

The loss of HK$1,321,015,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018 included write-back of due from
subsidiaries of the Company of HK$62,000.

ARB 2 BEHBFRIRE WM A6 2 E AR
BEHE-NEMKEHNBRARER 2AHE
EFERARASRBLZFEEMEITK
2 E{ERE 2 8Ua -

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result
of the capital reorganisation referred to in Note 36 and
represented the excess of the then combined net assets of
the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

206 Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FZEBZRERA A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HI-FZ

47. New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
BEAUGWELER|FE175 RiEE L
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

BEVBHREEAFIRER] FEHIER

47. BRITEMKRENR S HHTRE

BIEEMKREER
AEELERAEACBTEERER
TR AT RIS T E BB T IR £ A

Effective for annual
reporting periods beginning
on or after
RUTHHS 2 &R Z
FERSHBEX

1 January 2021
—Z2-—%—H—H

1 January 2020"
—E2-TF—H—A8"

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined*
and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

BANE®RELERFE105 & HEEFHEBEARNEEEELHZ RERE*
ARG HERE285 2185 BEHESTE

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material 1 January 2020
HKAS 8

BEASIHENBITR BEARZEE —E-TF—H—H

FR T ERFESHR ZIER]

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

BB RS ERNESNR FREENE
BR G ERE395%E R
BREMBMELERNE7HR 2 EFT

1 January 2020

—E£-TF—H—H

Conceptual Framework for Revised Conceptual Framework for 1 January 2020

Financial Reporting 2018 Financial Reporting

T \EHBREMSER RIEFTZHBHREBRIER

* On 1 January 2016, the HKICPA issued “Effective Date of
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28", following the
International Accounting Standards Board’ s equivalent
amendments. This update defers/removes the effective
date of the amendments in “Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor or its Associate or Joint Venture” that the
HKICPA issued on 7 October 2014. Early application of these
amendments continues to be permitted.

The HKICPA will start using the revised Conceptual Framework
immediately when revising or developing Standards or
Accounting Guidelines. The revised Conceptual Framework has
an effective date 1 January 2020 for companies that use the
Conceptual Framework to develop accounting policies when
no Standards or Accounting Guidelines applies to a particular
transaction.

—E-FTF—H—H

* R-ZF—RE—A— B BEReE8E
ERFEHAMERR BB AER
M [BEMBREENEI0RLEL G
R ZE285% 2 E R £ A Hl] - % E #
AHE/BEBEAEGMAZTN —T—N
FrAtABRMz [REEEEBEQF
HABCEIHAZEEREITEEFT
ZEBBEH RN EBEREI R RBS

ZFER]

N OEREHBAREST LR R
$53| 545 ) 46 0 PR 4 45 AT 4 2 AE 28 -
EETHAER Y CHABA_E_F
—A— B EANERE @ 638
BRBER S 2 B TR ERE
B 2 AR
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47.

48.

49.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature
or magnitude of information. A misstatement of information
is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions made by the primary users. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020.
The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group but may affect the presentation and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.

Events after the reporting period

(@) Disposal of a subsidiary
On 20 March 2020, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party, to dispose of the entire issued shares capital of
Metro Victor Limited (“Metro Victor”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, and all the shareholders’ loans
advanced to Metro Victor, at a cash consideration of
HK$380,000,000. Up to the date of this annual report,
the disposal was not completed. Further details of the
disposal are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 4 February 2020, 12 February 2020, 28 February
2020, 19 March 2020 and 23 March 2020.

(b) Assessment of the impact of the novel coronavirus
Due to the outbreak of the novel coronavirus
(COVID-19) epidemic in China in January 2020
and the COVID-19 has spread across the world, the
macroeconomic is expected to be affected by epidemic
in 2020. The Group will keep continuous attention on
the situation of the COVID-19, assess and react actively
to its impacts on the financial position and operating
results of the Group. Up to the date of this annual
report, the assessment is still in progress.

Approval of the consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 March
2020.
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47.

48.

49.

B BATE M R R 2 35T RS
BB BB H S LR ()

BT XAtz 5] RSB EEMBERE
HASN RABIEEFRE RAl RARK
A AT RSIET BB B RELE
AT EHGEMBREABREATE -

FRGTERE IR LB B G ERFHR
ZEATRBETHEAMZER - FTERR
EER - BRABHRABEER TS
BEmERerBRRM BRI 2EIER
RERBEZSEVBRRMELRE  AIZE
BHBER - ZFEARBERNEKRT
BB ZEERIZEME - i o] & 32 3t 78 53
BHZ#ERRAKETEXTEEREFD
RERIERBEEREER IBEKR - A%
BERSE T _TF - A BEAEL
WERMZEFE - ERARFEIBRATE
UAKRENMERR MK RERERTZE -
HRAIRE R ERAM B RRNEN RIBE -

WEHKRER

(@ HE—HEHEBAFE
RZE_TF=ZA-+H AEEHH
—BBUE=ZFIIN—EE W
NWHEAEE2ENBRARIESESR
RAR([EBMEIBEBEITRA
MEBHFERRET BEeREA
380,000,000 - EE=AFH A H -
HEEBEHNRATK - BEREESREZ
E—TSHBHNARARBEA=-Z =
TEF_ANH -ZEEF-_A+=
A —E-_FEF_-_A-_+NH =&
—EFZA+NBRZE_ZEF=A
—t+=HHRE-

(b)) FEFEIRFENEE

AR EAMREB S (COVID-19) K15
R-ZE-_ZTEF—AaEHEERE B
COVID-19E RELEE R REH - THHA
FEEBEBEN T _SFEFINREN
TR REFEGEEREZECOVID-19/
RERE FHEUXEBETERR
MAS SR AE BN A W TSR E 7%
FE-BHEAFHRAY FEDEE
17

HESSHBRER

EEEeN T A -_F+HBEIAETR
TR A M RE -
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